COMMON POLICY - DECLARATIONS % v z’

Renewal of Policy

C___H631-000067-02 D Practorian Insurance Corporation
500 Park Boulevard, Suite 1350
Policy No. Itasca, Illinois 60143
C__H631-000067-03

Named Insured and Mailing Address Agent

(No., Street, Town or City, County, State, Zip Code)
NY State Bridge Authority NIF Governmental Services, Inc.
Mid Hudson Bridge Plaza - 103 Spring Valley Road
Highland, NY 12528 Montvale, NJ 07645

12:01 A.M. Standard Time at your mailing

Policy Period: From 08/01/10 to 08/01/11 address shown above. (Unless changed by
C ) ( ) the Section Declarations.)

Business Description: SPECIAL DISTRICT

IN RETURN FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PREMIUM, AND SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS OF THIS POLICY, WE AGREE WITH YO
TO PROVIDE THE INSURANCE AS STATED IN THIS POLICY.

THIS POLICY CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING COVERAGE PARTS FOR WHICH A PREMIUM 1S INDICATED. THIS PREMIUM MAY

BE SUBJECT TO ADJUSTMENT.
PREMIUM

Commercial Property Coverage Form $ NOT APPLICABLE
Commercial Crime Coverage Form $ NOT APPLICABLE
Commercial Inland Marine Covcrgge Form $ INCLUDED
Commercial General Liability Coverage Form $ NOT APPLICABLE
Commercial Auto Coverage Form $ INCLUDED
Law Enforcement Liability Coverage Form $ NOT APPLICABLE
Employee Benefit Liability Coverage Form $ NOT APPLICABLE
Equipment Breakdown Coverage Form S NOT APPLICABLE

: TOTAL $67,043
New York State auto surcharge $ 810
Premium shown is payable $ 67,043 at inception; $ 1* Anniversary; $ 2™ Anniversary; $

Form(s) and Endorsement (s) made a part of this policy at time of issuance* ; PIC Jacket (12/09), 1L ¢017(11/98), 1L 0021(07/02), NIF 1103,
NIF 1104, NIF 1142NY.

L__20mite applicable Eorms and Fndorcements if shown in specific Coverage Part/Coverage Form Declaration -
Countersigned: ,
ISSUE DATE: 08/04/10 By:

Authorized Representative

THESE DECLARATIONS TOGETHER WITH THE COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS, COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS,
COVERAGE PART COVERAGE FORM(S) AND FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS, IF ANY, ISSUED TO FORM A PART
THEREQF, COMPLETE THE ABOVE NUMBERED POLICY.
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COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE COVERAGE FORM DECLARATIONS

Effective Date 08/01/10 Policy H631-000067-03

Schedule of Coverages
Limit of Insurance

Accounts Receivable Insurance $
Builders and Installation Risk Insurance $
Contractors Equipment Insurance §
Electronic Data Processing Insurance $
Fine Arts Insurance $
Transportation Insurance $
Valuable Papers Insurance $
Inland Marine Commeon Conditions $
X Miscellaneous Equipment $ 600,000

Insurance is provided only for the coverage indicated by an x and for which a specific limit is shown.

X Deductible: $ 5,000 Self- Insured Retention: $

Forms and Endorsements: CM 0001(09/00), NIF 1159, IL0952(11/02).

Premium: $ included
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MISCELLANEOUS EQUIPMENT COVERAGE FORM
DECLARATIONS
NY State Bridge Authority
H631-0000067-03
LIMITS OF INSURANCE: $ 600,000
COVERED PROPERTY

Description of Property ' Limit of Insurance

Limits are listed below. Coverage is the lesser of Actual Cash Value, cost to reasonably restore or replace with
substantially the same property, unless otherwise stated. Deductibles are $5,000 each occurrence, including
computers, EDP equipment, data or media, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

Miscellaneous equipment consisting of the following truck:2009 International 5600, $600,000
vin # {HTXHAHT89J058606.

DEDUCTIBLE: 3 5,000 Each occurrence

LOSS PAYABLE to you and

as interest may appear
Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage. Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights, duties and
what is not covered.

Throughout this policy, the words “you “ and “your” refer to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations. The
words “we,” “us” and “our” refer to the Company providing this insurance.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks have special meaning. Refer to the DEFINITIONS section
of this Coverage Form.

A. COVERAGE
We will pay for “loss” to Covered Property from any of the Covered Causes of Loss.

1. COVERED PROPERTY, as used in this Coverage Form, means the above described equipment that is your
property or property of others in your care, custody or control.

2. PROPERTY NOT COVERED
Covered Property does not include:

4. Accounts, bills, deeds, notes, securities, evidences of debt, letters of credit, tickets, passports, documents,
manuscripts, mechanical drawings, valuable papers of any kind, record electronic data and media;

b. Money, currency, bullion, gold, silver and other precious metals, diamonds, precious or semi-precious
stones, jewelry, furs and fine arts;

NIF 1159 07/00 Page 1 of 5



C.

d

c.

Property held for sale;
Contraband, or property in the course of illegal transportation or trade; or

Land or water.

3. COVERED CAUSES OF LOSS

Covered Causes of Loss means RISKS OF DIRECT PHYSICAL “LOSS” to Covered Property except those
causes of “loss” listed in the Exclusions.

4, COVERAGE EXTENSIONS

a.

)

@

€)

¢y

(0]

Debris Removal

We will pay your expenses to remove debris of Covered Property caused by or resuiting from a Covered
Cause of Loss that occurs during the policy period. The expenses will be paid only if they are reported to
us in writing within 180 days of the earlier of:

(a) The date of direct physical “loss”; or

(b) The end of the policy period.

We will pay up to $10,000 for debris removal expense in any one occurrence when the sum of the direct
“loss” and debris removal expense exceeds the applicable Limit of Insurance shown in this Coverage Form
Declarations.

This coverage extension for debris removal does not apply to costs to:

(a) Extract “poltutants” from land or water; or

(b) Remove, restore or replace polluted land or water.

Pollutant cleanup and Removal

We will pay your expenses to extract ““pollutants” from land or water if the release, discharge or dispersal
of the “pollutants” is caused by or results from a Covered Cause of Loss that occurs during the policy
period. The expenses will be paid only if they are reported to us in writing within 180 days of the earlier
of?

(a) The date of direct physical “loss”; or

(b) The end of the policy period.

The most we will pay under this Coverage Extension is $25,000 for the sum of all such expenses arising
out of Covered Causes of Loss occurring during each separate 12 month period of this policy.

B. EXCLUSIONS

1. We will not pay for a “loss” caused directly or indirectly by any of the following. Such “loss” is excluded
regardless of any other cause or event that contributes concurrently or in any sequence to the “loss”.

NIF 1159 07/00 Page 2 of 5



Governmental Action

Seizure or destruction of property by order of government authority. But we will pay for damage or
destruction of Covered Property ordered by governmental authority:

(1) Taken at the time of a fire to prevent its spread if the fire would be covered under this Coverage Form;
or

(2) That is a direct result of a Covered cause of Loss.

. Nuclear hazard

(1) Any weapon employing atomic fission or fusion; or

(2) Nuclear reaction or radiation, or radioactive contamination from any other cause. But we will pay for
direct “loss” caused by resulting fire if the fire would be covered under this Coverage Form.

War and Military Action

(1) War, including undeclared war or civil war;

(2) Warlike action by military force, including action in hindering or defending against an actual or
intended attack, by any government, sovereign or other authority using military personnel or other
agents; or

{3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped power or action taken by governmental éuthority in
hindering or defending against any of these.

Ordinance or Law
The enforcement of any ordinance or law:
(1) Regulating the construction, use or repair of any property; or

(2) Requiring the tearing down of any property, including the cost of removing its debris.

2. We will not pay for a “loss™ caused by or resulting from any of the following:

Delay, loss of use, loss of market or any other consequential loss.

b. Dishonest acts by:

C.

(1) You, your employees or authorized representatives;

(2) Anyone else with an interest in the property, or their employees or authorized representatives; or

(3) Anyone else to whom the property is entrusted.

This exclusion applies whether or not such persons are acting alone or in collusion with other persons or such
acts occur during the hours of employment. But this exclusion does not apply to Covered Property that is
entrusted to others who are carriers for hire.

Unexplained disappearance.
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d. Shortage found upon taking inventory.

e. Processing or work upon the Covered Property. But we will pay for direct “loss” caused by resulting fire or
explosion.

f. Antificially generated current creating a short circuit to other electrical disturbance within the Covered Property.
But we will pay for direct “loss” caused by resulting fire or explosion.

g. Faulty materials, improper workmanship, errors in design or specifications.

h. Theft from any unattended veliicle owned, leased or operated by you unless at the time of theft its windows,
doors and compartments were closed an locked and there are visible signs that the theft was the result of forced
entry.

3. We will not pay for a “loss” caused by or resulting from any of the following. But if “loss” by a Covered Cause
of Loss results, we will pay for that resulting “loss”.

a. Wear, tear, gradual deterioration, depreciation, any quality in the property that causes it to damage or destroy
itself; hidden or latent defect; mechanical breakdown; corrosion or rust.

b. Dryness or dampness of atmosphere, extremes or changes of temperature including freezing; insects, vermin,
rodents or worms.

C. LIMITS OF INSURANCE

The most we will pay for “loss” in any one occurrence:

1. For Covered property is the applicable Limit of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

2. For Coverage Extensions is the Limit of Insurance applicable to a Coverage Extension.

D. DEDUCTIBLE

We will not pay for “loss” in any one occurrence until the amount of adjusted “loss” exceeds the deductible shown
in this Coverage Form declarations. We will then pay the amount of the adjusted “loss™ in excess of the Deductible,
up to the applicable Limit of Insurance.

E. ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS

The following conditions apply in addition to the Inland Marine Conditions and Common Policy Conditions:

1. Coverage Territory

We insure Covered Property wherever located within the 50 states of The United States of America, District of
Columbia and Canada. :

2. Coinsurance

All Covered property must be insured for its total values as of the time of “loss” or you will incur a penalty. The
penalty is that we will pay only the proportion of any "loss” that the Limit of Insurance shown in the Inland Marine

NIF 1159 07/00 Page 4 of 5



Declarations for all Covered Property bears to the total value of all Covered property as of the time of “loss”. If the
Covered Property consists of two or more items which are scheduled in this Coverage Form Declarations, or in a
schedule referenced in the Declarations, with a Limit of Insurance applying to each item, this penalty will apply to
each item separately.

3. lmpairment Of Recovery Rights

If in any act or agreement after a “loss” you impair our right to recover from others liable for the “loss”, we will not
pay you for that “loss”.

4. Valuation
The valuation condition contained in the Inland Marine Conditions is replaced by the following:

The value of property will be the least of the following amounts:

a. The actual cash value of that property;
b. The cost of reasonably restoring that property to its condition immediately before “loss™; or
c. The cost of replacing that property with substantially identical property.

In the event of "'loss”, the value of property will be determined as of the time of “loss”. However, we will not
deduct depreciation on the adjustment of a partial “loss” to an item when the “loss™ is less than twenty percent
(20%) of the actual cash value of the item.

F. DEFINITIONS

1. “Loss” means accidental “loss” or damage.

2. "“Pollutants” means any Covered Property that becomes a solid, liquid, gaseous or thermal irritant or

contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals and waste. Waste includes
materials to be recycled, reconditioned or reclaimed.
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IL 09 5211 02

POLICY NUMBER:

IL 09 52 11 02

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF
TERRORISM

BOILER AND MACHINERY COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL CRIME COVERAGE FORM
COMMERCIAL CRIME POLICY

COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE COVERAGE PART

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE PART
EMPLOYEE THEFT AND FORGERY POLICY
FARM COVERAGE PART

GOVERNMENT CRIME COVERAGE FORM
GOVERNMENT CRIME POLICY

KIDNAP/RANSOM AND EXTORTION COVERAGE FORM

KIDNAP/RANSOM AND EXTORTION POLICY
STANDARD PROPERTY PCLICY

. Cap On Certified Terrorism Losses

"Certified act of terrorism" means an act that is
certified by the Secretary of the Treasury, in con-
currence with the Secretary of State and the Attor-
ney General of the United States, to be an act of
terrorism pursuant to the federal Terrorism Risk
Insurance Act of 2002. The criteria contained in
that Act for a "certified act of terrorism" include the
following:

1. The act resulted in aggregate losses in excess
of $5 million; and

2. The act is a violent act or an act that is danger-
ous to human life, property or infrastructure
and is committed by an individual or individuals
acting on behaif of any foreign person or for-
eign interest, as part of an effort to coerce the
civilian population of the United States or to in-
fluence the policy or affect the conduct of the
United States Government by coercicon.

With respect to any one or more “certified acts of
terrorism" under the federal Terrorism Risk Insur-
ance Act of 2002, we will not pay any amounts for
which we are not responsible under the terms of
that Act (including subsequent action of Congress
pursuant to the Act) due to the application of any
clause which results in a cap on our liability for
payments for terrorism losses.

© ISO Properties, Inc., 2002

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

B. Application Of Exclusions

The terms and limitations of any terrorism exclu-
sion, or the inapplicability or omission of a terror-
ism exclusion, do not serve to create coverage for
any loss which would otherwise be excluded under
this Coverage Part or Policy, such as losses ex-
cluded by the Nuclear Hazard Exclusion or the
War And Military Action Exclusion.

Page 1 of 1
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COMMERCIAL INLAND MARiNE
CM 00 01 09 00

COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE CONDITIONS

The following conditions apply in addition to the Common Policy Conditions and applicable Additional Conditions
in Commercial Inland Marine Coverage Forms:

LOSS CONDITIONS
A. Abandonment

6. As often as may be reasonably required, permit
us to inspect the property proving the loss or

CM 00 01 09 00

There can be no abandonment of any property to
us.

. Appraisal

If we and you disagree on the value of the property
or the amount of loss, either may make written
demand for an appraisal of the loss. In this event,
each party will select a competent and impartial
appraiser. The two appraisers will select an um-
pire. If they cannot agree, either may request that
selection be made by a judge of a court having ju-
risdiction. The appraisers will state separately the
value of the property and amount of loss. If they
fail to agree, they will submit their differences to
the umpire. A decision agreed to by any two will
be binding. Each party will:

1. Pay its chosen appraiser; and

2. Bear the other expenses of the appraisal and
umpire equally.

If there is an appraisal, we will still retain our right

to deny the claim.

. Duties In The Event Of Loss

You must see that the following are done in the
event of loss or damage to Covered Property:

1. Notify the police if a law may have been bro-
ken.

2. Give us prompt hotice of the loss or damage.
Include a description of the property involved.

3. As soon as possible, give us a description of
how, when and where the loss or damage oc-
curred.

4. Take all reasonable steps to protect the Cov-
ered Property from further damage, and keep a
record of your expenses necessary to protect
the Covered Property, for consideration in the
settlement of the claim. This will not increase
the Limit of Insurance. However, we will not pay
for any subsequent loss or damage resulting
from a cause of loss that is not a Covered
Cause of Loss. Also, if feasible, set the dam-
aged property aside and in the best possible
order for examination.

5. You will not, except at your own cost, voluntar-
ily make a payment, assume any obligation, or
incur any expense without our consent.

Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1999

damage and examine your books and records.

Also permit us to take samples of damaged
and undamaged property for inspection, test-
ing and analysis, and permit us to make copies
from your books and records.

7. We may examine any insured under oath,
while not in the presence of any other insured
and at such times as may be reasonably re-
quired, about any matter relating to this insur-
ance or the claim, including an insured's books
and records. In the event of an examination, an
insured's answers must be signed.

8. Send us a signed, sworn proof of loss contain-
ing the information we request to settle the
claim. You must do this within 60 days after
our request. We will supply you with the nec-
essary forms.

9. Immediately send us copies of any demands,
notices, summonses or legal papers received
in connection with the claim or suit.

10. Cooperate with us in the investigation or set-
tlement of the claim. ’

D. Insurance Under Two Or More Coverages

If two or more of this policy's coverages apply to
the same loss or damage, we will not pay more
than the actual amount of the loss or damage.

. Loss Payment

1. We will give notice of our intentions within 30
days after we receive the sworn proof of loss.

2. We will not pay you more than your financial
interest in the Covered Property.

3. We may adjust losses with the owners of lost
or damaged property if other than you. If we
pay the owners, such payments will satisfy your
claim against us for the owners' property. We
will not pay the owners more than their financial
interest in the Covered Property.

4. We may elect to defend you against suits aris-
ing from claims of owners of property. We will
do this at our expense.
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5. We will pay for covered loss or damage within
30 days after we receive the sworn proof of loss
if you have compliied with all the terms of this
Coverage Part and:

a. We have reached agreement with you on
the amount of the loss; or

b. An appraisal award has been made.

6. We will not be liable for any part of a loss that
has been paid or made good by others.

. Other Insurance

1. You may have other insurance subject to the
same plan, terms, conditions and provisions as
the insurance under this Coverage Part. if you
do, we will pay our share of the covered loss or
damage. Our share is the proportion that the
applicable Limit of Insurance under this Cover-
age Part bears to the Limits of Insurance of all
insurance covering on the same basis.

2, If there is other insurance covering the same
loss or damage, other than that described in 1.
above, we will pay only for the amount of cov-
ered loss or damage in excess of the amount
due from that other insurance, whether you can
collect on it or not. But we will not pay more
than the applicable Limit of Insurance.

. Pair, Sets Or Parts
1. Pair Or Set

In case of loss or damage to any part of a pair
or set we may:

a. Repair or replace any part to restore the
pair or set to its value before the loss or
damage, or

b. Pay the difference between the value of the
pair or set before and after the loss or dam-
age.

2. Parts

In case of loss or damage to any part of Cov-
ered Property consisting of several parts when
complete, we will only pay for the value of the
lost or damaged part.

. Recovered Property

If either you or we recover any property after loss
settlement, that party must give the other prompt
notice. At your option, the property will be returned
to you. You must then return to us the amount we
paid to you for the property. We will pay recovery
expenses and the expenses to repair the recov-
ered property, subject to the Limit of Insurance.

Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1999

|. Reinstatement Of Limit After Loss

The Limit of Insurance will not be reduced by the
payment of any claim, except for total loss or dam-
age of a scheduled item, in,which event we will re-
fund the unearned premium on that item.

. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others

To Us

If any person or organization to or for whom we
make payment under this Coverage Part has
rights to recover damages from another, those
rights are transferred to us to the extent of our
payment. That person or organization must do
everything necessary to secure our rights and
must do nothing after loss to impair them. But you
may waive your rights against another party in writ-
ing:

1. Prior to a loss to your Covered Property.

2. After a loss to your Covered Property only if, at

time of loss, that party is one of the following:

a. Someone insured by this insurance; or
b. A business firm:
(1) Owned or contrelled by you; or
(2) That owns or controls you.
This will not restrict your insurance.

GENERAL CONDITIONS
A. Concealment, Misrepresentation Or Fraud

This Coverage Part is void in any case of fraud, in-
tentional concealment or misrepresentation of a
material fact, by you or any other insured, at any
time, concerning:

1. This Coverage Part;

2. The Covered Property;

3. Your interest in the Covered Property; or
4, A claim under this Coverage Part.

. Control Of Property

Any act or neglect of any person other than you
beyond your direction or control will not affect this
insurance.

The breach of any condition of this Coverage Part
at any one or more locations will not affect cover-
age at any location where, at the time of loss or
damage, the breach of condition does not exist.

. Legal Action Against Us

No one may bring a legal action against us under
this Coverage Part unless:

1. There has been full compliance with all the
terms of this Coverage Part; and

2. The action is brought within 2 years after you
first have knowledge of the direct loss or dam-
age.

CM 00 01 09 00
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D. No Benefit To Bailee

No person or organization, other than you, having
custody of Covered Property will benefit from this
insurance.

. Policy Period
We cover loss or damage commencing:

1. During the policy period shown in the Declara-
tions; and

2. Within the coverage territory.

. Valuation

The value of property will be the least of the follow-
ing amounts:

1. The actual cash value of that property;

Caopyright, Insurance Services Cffice, Inc., 1999

2. The cost of reasonably restoring that property
to its condition immediately before loss or
damage; or

3. The cost of replacing that property with sub-
stantially identical property. '

In the event of loss or damage, the value of prop-
erty will be determined as of the time of loss or
damage.

Page 3 of 3
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AUTO COVERAGE FORM

DECLARATIONS
Effective Date: 08/01/10 Policy No: H631-000067-03
Schedule Of Coverages
Limit of Liability Deductible
X Auto Liability $ 1,000,000 $ none
X Personal Injury Protection as stated in the pip form SN/A
X Uninsured Motorists $1,000,000 SN/A
X Underinsured Motorists $1,000,000 SN/A
X Medical $5,000 /A
X Collision $ACV $1,000*
X Comprehensive $ACV $1,000*

Covered Vehicle: Any auto as respects auto liability and any owned and leased auto as respects collision and comprehensive
coverage, except as may indicated below or by endorsement.

CA 99 34 01 87 Social Service Agencies — Volunteers as Insureds, applies.
The volunteer must maintain a $500,000. limit of liability on their personal auto policy. Ifthey fail
to maintain this limit, our policy will apply as if the $500,000. limit of liability were still in place.

CA 99 33 02 99 Employees as Insureds app]ies;
The employee must maintain a $500,000. limit of liability on their personal auto policy. Ifthey fail
to maintain this limit, our policy will apply as if the $500,000. limit of liability were still in place.

Physical damage coverage is provided at actual cash value subject to:
$ 250. collision deductible on 2004 and later model vehicles.
$1,000. collision deductible on all other covered vehicles,
$ 200. comprehensive deductible on 2004 and later model vehicles,
$1,000. comprehensive deductible on all other covered vehicles.

Physical damage coverage applies to all owned and leased vehicles, except 2009 International 5600, vin #
THTXHAHTS89J058606. (This vehicle is covered under the INLAND MARINE for Physical Damage). Physical damage
coverage includes hired and non-owned autos to a maximum unit value of $35,000 and deductible of $1,000; hired and non-
owned vehicle coverage applies in excess of other valid and collectible insurance.

Liability coverage applies to ANY auto. UM/UM coverage applies to owned auto subject to compulsory uninsured motorists law.

Insurance is provided only for the coverage indicated by an x and for which an amount is shown.

Self-Insured Retention N/A $ each accident
Premium: Included (] Deposit X Non-adjustable

Forms and Endorsements: CA0001(03/06), CA 3107(11/98), CA 2232(07-02), NIF 1005, NIF 1003
CA 9903(07-97), CA 2356(11/02)CA 2233(07/02), CA2260(04/92), CA 0420(01/03),CA 9933(02/99)
CA9934(01/87), CA0038(12/02)

NIF 1103 03/99




POLICY NUMBER: H631-000067-03

COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 22 33 07 02

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL PERSONAL

INJURY PROTECTION

(NEW YORK)

The company agrees with the named insured, subject to all of the provisions, exclusions and conditions of the
New York Mandatory Personal Injury Protection Endorsement, not expressly modified in this endorsement as

foltows:
SCHEDULE
Added Personal Injury Protection (Additional Limits)
Without Additional Death Benefit Additional
Death Benefit
Total Additional | Monthly Other
Designation Or Personal Injury Work Expenses :
Description Of Vehicle | Protection Limits Loss (Per Day) Premium | Limit Premium
All schedule vehicles $ 100,000 $ 3,000 $ 50 $included |3 5,000 |$included
$ $ $ $ $ $
$ 3 $ $ $ $
$ 3 $ $ $ $
$ $ $ $ $ $

ADDITIONAL PERSONAL INJURY PROTECTION

The company will pay additional first party benefits to
reimburse for extended economic loss on account of
personal injuries sustained by an eligible injured per-
son and caused by an accident arising out of the use
or operation of a motor vehicle or a motorcycle during
the policy period. This coverage oniy applies to motor
vehicle accidents within the United States of America,
its territories or possessions, or Canada.

ELIGIBLE INJURED PERSON

Subject to the exclusions set forth below, an eligible
injured person is:
{a} The named insured and any relative who sus-
tains personal injury arising out of the use or
operation of any motor vehicle; or

{b) The named insured and any relative who sus-
tains personal injury arising out of the use or
operation of any motorcycle while not occupy-
ing a motorcycle;

{c) Any other person who sustains personal injury
arising out of the use or operation of the in-
sured motor vehicle while occupying the in-
sured motor vehicle; or

{d) Any other person who sustains personal injury
arising out of the use or operation of any other
motor vehicle (other than a public or livery con-
veyance) while occupying such other motor ve-
hicle, if such other motor vehicle is being oper-
ated by the named insured or any relative.

EXCLUSIONS

This coverage does not apply to personal injury sus-
tained by:

" (a) Any person while occupying a motor vehicle
owned by such person with respect to which
the coverage required by the New York Com-
prehensive Motor Vehicle Insurance Repara-
tions Act is not in effect;

{b) Any person while occupying, or while a pedes-
trian through being struck by, a motor vehicle
owned by the named insured with respect to
which additional personal injury protection cov-
erage is not provided under this policy;

(c) Any relative while occupying, or while a pedes-
trian through being struck by, a motor vehicle
owned by such relative with respect to which
additional personal injury protection coverage is
not provided under this policy;

CA 223307 02 © IS0 Properties, Inc., 2002 Page 10f3



{d) Any New York State resident other than the
named insured or relative injured through the
use or operation of a motor vehicle outside of
New York State if such resident is the owner of
a motor vehicle for which the coverage required
by the New York Comprehensive Motor Vehicle
Insurance Reparations Act is not in effect;

{e) Any person while occupying a motorcycle;

(f) Any person who intentionally causes his own
personal injury;

{g) Any person as a result of operating a motor
vehicle while in an intoxicated condition or while
his ability to operate such vehicle is impaired by
the use of a drug (within the meaning of Sec-
tion 1192 of the New York Vehicle and Traffic
Law); or

(h) Any person while:

(i) Committing an act which would constitute a
felony, or seeking to avoid lawful apprehen-
sion or arrest by a law enforcement officer;

{ii) Operating a motor vehicle in a race or
speed test;

(iii} Operating or occupying a motor vehicle
known to him to be stolen; or

(iv) Repairing, servicing or otherwise maintain-
ing a motor vehicle if such conduct is within
the course of a business of repairing, ser-
vicing or otherwise maintaining a motor ve-
hicle and the injury occurs on the business
premises. ‘

ADDITIONAL FIRST PARTY BENEFITS

Additional first party benefits are payments equal to
extended economic loss reduced by:

{a) 20 percent of the eligible injured person's loss
of earnings from work, to the extent that the ex-
tended economic loss covered by this en-
dorsement includes such loss of earnings;

{b) Amounts recovered or recoverable on account
of personal injury to an eligible injured person
under State or Federal laws providing social
security disability or workers’ compensation
benefits or disability benefits under article 9 of
the New York Workers' Compensation Law,
which amounts have not been applied to re-
duce first party benefits recovered or recover-
able under basic economic loss;
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(c) Amounts recovered or recoverable by the eligi-
ble injured person for any element of extended
economic loss covered by this endorsement
under any mandatory source of first-party
automobile no-fault benefits required by the
laws of any State (other than the State of New
York} of the United States of America, its pos-
sessions or territories, or by the iaws of any
province of Canada.

EXTENDED ECONOMIC LOSS
Extended economic loss shall consist of the following:

(a) Basic economic loss sustained on account of .

an accident occurring within the United States
of America, its possessions or territories or
Canada, which is not recovered or recoverable
under a policy issued in satisfaction of the re-
quirements of article 6 or 8 of the New York
Vehicle and Traffic Law and article 51 of the
New York Insurance Law;

{b) The difference between:
(i) Basic economic loss; and

(ii) Basic economic loss recomputed in accor-
dance with the time and dollar fimits set out
in the declarations; and

{c) An additional death benefit in the amount set
out in the declarations. '

TWO OR MORE VEHICLES INSURED UNDER THIS
POLICY

The limit of liability under this endorsement applicable
to injuries sustained by an eligible injured person while
occupying, or while a pedestrian through being struck
by, the insured motor vehicle shall be as stated in the
declarations for that insured motor vehicle. The limit of
liability for injuries covered by this endorsement and
sustained by an eligible injured person while occupy-
ing, or while a pedestrian through being struck by, a
motor vehicle, other than the insured motor vehicle,
shall be the highest limit stated for this coverage in the
declarations for any insured motor vehicle under this
policy.

ARBITRATION

In the event any person making a claim for additional
first-party benefits and the Company do not agree
regarding any matter relating to the claim, such per-
son shall have the option of submitting such dis-
agreement to arbitration pursuant to procedures
promulgated or approved by the Superintendent of
Insurance. :
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SUBROGATION

In the event of any payment for extended economic
loss, the Company is subrogated to the event of such
payments to the rights of the person to whom, or for
whose benefit, such payments were made. Such
person must execute and deliver instruments and
papers and do whatever else is necessary to secure
such rights. Such person shall do nothing to prejudice
such rights.

OTHER COVERAGE; NONDUPLICATION

The eligible injured person shall not recover duplicate
benefits for the same elements of loss covered by this
endcrsement or any other optional first-party automo-
hite or no-fault automaobile insurance coverage.

If an eligible injured person is entitled to New York
mandatory and additional personal injury protection
benefits under any other policy, and if such eligible
injured person is not entitled to New York mandatory
personal injury protection benefits under this policy,
then the coverage provided under this New York Addi-
tional Personal Injury Protection Endorsement shall be
excess over such other New York mandatory and
additional personal injury protection benefits.
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When coverage provided under this endorsement
applies on an excess basis, it shall apply only in the
amount by which the total limit of liability of New York
mandatory and additional perscnal injury protection
coverage available under this policy exceeds the total
limit of liability for any other applicable New York
mandatory and additional personal injury protection
coverage.

Subject to the provisions of the preceding three para-
graphs, if the eligible injured person is entitled to
benefits under any other optional first party automobile
or no-fault automobile insurance for the same ele-
ments of loss covered by this endorsement, this Com-
pany shall be liable only for an amount equatl to the
proportion that the total amount available under this
endorsement bears to the sum of the amounts avail-
able under this endorsement and such other optional
insurance, for the same element of loss.
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COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 00381202

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
WAR EXCLUSION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

BUSINESS AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE FORM

MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

SINGLE INTEREST AUTOMOBILE PHYSICAL DAMAGE INSURANCE POLICY
TRUCKERS COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless modi-
fied by the endorsement.

A. Changes In Liability Coverage (3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution,

The War exclusion under Paragraph B. Exclu-
sions of Section Il — Liability Coverage is re-
placed by the following:

WAR

"“Bodily injury”, "property damage" or “covered
pollution cost or expense" arising directly or in-
directly, out of;

a. War, including undeclared or civil war;

b. Warlike action by a military force, including
action in hindering or defending against an
actual or expected attack, by any govern-
ment, sovereign or other authority using
military personnel or other agents; or

c. Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped
power, or action taken by governmental au-
thority in hindering or defending against any
of these.

. Changes In Garagekeepers Coverage

If the Garagekeepers Coverage endorsement or
the Garagekeepers Coverage — Customers' Sound
Receiving Equipment endorsement is attached,
the following exclusion is added:

We will not pay for “loss" caused by or resulting
from the following. Such "loss" is excluded regard-
less of any other cause or event that contributes
concurrently or in any sequence to the "loss":

WAR
(1) War, including undeclared or civil war;

(2) Warlike action by a military force, includ-
ing action in hindering or defending
against an actual or expected attack, by
any government, sovereign or other au-
thority using military personnel or other
agents; or

CA 00 38 12 02

© IS0 Properties, Inc., 2003

usurped power, or action taken by gov-
ernmental authority in hindering or de-
fending against any of these.

C. Changes In Auto Medical Payments

If the Auto Medical Payments Coverage endorse-

ment is attached, then Exclusion C.8. is replaced

by the following:

6. "Bodily injury", arising directly or indirectly, out
of:

a. War, including undeclared or civil war;

b. Warlike action by a military force, including
action in hindering or defending against an
actual or expected attack, by any govern-
ment, sovereign or other authority using
military personnel or other agents; or

¢. Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped
power, or action taken by governmental au-
thority in hindering or defending against any
of these.

. Changes In Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists

Coverage

If Uninsured and/or Underinsured Motorists Cov-
erage is attached, then the following exclusion is
added:

This insurance does hot apply to:
WAR

1. "Bodily injury" or "property damage", if applica-
ble, arising directly or indirectly, out of;

a. War, including undeclared or civil war,;

b. Warlike action by a military force, including
action in hindering or defending against an
actual or expected attack, by any govern-
ment, sovereign or other authority using
military personnel or other agents; or
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¢. Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped
power, or action taken by governmental au-
thority in hindering or defending against any
of these.

E. Changes In Personal Injury Protection
Coverage

1. If Personal Injury Protection, no-fault, or other
similar coverage is attached, and:

a. Contains, in whole or in part, a War exclu-
sion, that exclusion is replaced by Para-
graph 2.

b. Does not contain a war exclusion, Para-
graph 2. is added.

2. This insurance does not apply to:
WAR

"Bedily injury” or "property damage", if applica-
ble, arising directly or indirectly, out of:

a. War, including undeclared or civil war,;

b. Warlike action by a military force, including
action in hindering or defending against an
actual or expected attack, by any govern-
ment, sovereign or other authority using
military personnel or other agents; or

c. Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped
power, or action taken by governmental au-
thority in hindering or defending against any
of these.

F. Changes In Single Interest Automobile
Physical Damage Insurance Policy

The War exclusion is replaced by the following:
a. War, including undeclared or civil war;
b. Warlike action by a military force, including

action in hindering or defending against an
actual or expected attack, by any govern-
ment, sovereign or other authority using
military personnel or other agents; or

. Insurrection, rebellicn,” revolution, usurped

power, or action taken by governmental au-
thority in hindering or defending against any
of these.
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COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 23 56 11 02

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

BUSINESS AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE FORM

GARAGE COVERAGE FORM

MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

SINGLE INTEREST AUTOMOBILE PHYSICAL DAMAGE INSURANCE POLICY
TRUCKERS COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless modi-
fied by the endorsement.

A. With respect to any one or more "certified acts of B. Application Of Other Exclusions

CA 23 56 11 02

terrorism", we will not pay any amounts for which
we are not responsible under the terms of the fed-
eral Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 (includ-
ing subsequent acts of Congress pursuant to the
Act} due to the application of any clause which re-
sults in a cap on our liability for payments for ter-
rorism |osses.

"Certified act of terrorism" means an act that is
certified by the Secretary of the Treasury, in con-
currence with the Secretary of State and the Attor-
ney General of the United States, to be an act of
terrorism pursuant to the federal Terrorism Risk
Insurance Act of 2002. The federal Terrorism Risk
Insurance Act of 2002 sets forth the following cri-
teria for a "certified act of terrorism":

1. The act resulted in aggregate losses in excess
of $5 million; and

2. The act is a violent act or an act that is danger-
ous to human life, property or infrastructure
and is committed by an individual or individuals
acting on behalf of any foreign person or for-
eign interest, as part of an effort to coerce the
civilian population of the United States or to in-
fluence the policy or affect the conduct of the
United States Government by coercion.

© I1SO Properties, Inc., 2002

The terms and limitations of any terrorism exclu-
sion, or the inapplicability or omission of a terror-
ism exclusion, do not serve to create coverage for
any loss which would otherwise be excluded under
this Coverage Form, such as losses excluded by a
Nuclear Hazard Exclusion or a War Or Military Ac-
tion Exclusion.
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COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 22 32 07 02

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NEW YORK MANDATORY PERSONAL INJURY
PROTECTION ENDORSEMENT

The Company agrees with the named insured, as follows:

Section |
Mandatory Personal Injury Protection

The Company will pay first-party benefits to reimburse
for basic economic loss sustained by an eligible in-
jured person on account of personal injuries caused
by an accident arising out of the use or operation of a
motor vehicle or a motorcycle during the policy period
and within the United States of America, its territories
or possessions, or Canada.

First-Party Benefits

First-party benefits, other than death benefits, are
payments equal to basic economic loss, reduced by
the following:

(a) 20 percent of the eligible injured person's loss
of earnings from work to the extent that an eli-
gible injured person's basic economic loss con-
sists of such loss of earnings;

(b) Amounts recovered or recoverable on account
of personal injury to an eligible injured person
under State or Federal laws providing social
security disability or workers' compensation
benefits, or disability benefits under article nine
of the New York Workers' Compensation Law;

(c) The amount of any applicable deductible, pro-
vided that such deductible shall apply to each
accident, but only to the total of first-party
benefits otherwise payable to the named in-
sured and any relative as a resuit of that acci-
dent.

Basic Economic Loss

Basic economic loss shall consist of medical expense,
work loss, other expense and, when death occurs, a
death benefit as herein provided. Except for such
death benefit, basic economic loss shall not include
any loss sustained on account of death. Basic eco-
nomic loss of each eligible injured person on account
of any single accident shall not exceed $50,000,
except that any death benefit hereunder shall be in
addition thereto. '

Medical Expense

Medical expense shall consist of necessary expenses
for:
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(a) Medical, hospital (including services rendered
in compliance with article 41 of the Public
Health Law, whether or not such services are
rendered directly by a hospital), surgical, nurs-
ing, dental, ambulance, X-ray, prescription
drug and prosthetic services;

(b) Psychiatric, physical and occupational therapy
and rehabilitation;

(c) Any nonmedical remedial care and treatment
rendered in accordance with a religious
method of healing recognized by the laws of
New York; and

(d} Any other professional health services.

These medical expenses will not be subject to a time
limitation, provided that, within one year after the date
of the accident, it is ascertainable that further medical
expenses may be sustained as a result of the injury.
Payments hereunder for necessary medical expenses
shall be subject to the limitations and requirements of
section 5108 of the New York Insurance Law.

Work Loss

Work loss shall consist of the sum of the following
losses and expenses, up to a maximum payment of
$2,000 per month for a maximum period of three
years from the date of the accident:

(a) Loss of earnings from work which the eligible
injured person would have performed had such
person not been injured, except that an em-
ployee who is entitled to receive monetary
payments, pursuant to statute or contract with
the employer, or who receives voluntary mone-
tary benefits paid for by the employer, by rea-
son of such employee's inability to work be-
cause of personal injury arising out of the use
or operation of a motor vehicle or a motorcycle,
shall not be entitled to receive first-party bene-
fits for loss of earnings from work to the extent
that such monetary payments or benefits from
the employer do not result in the employee suf-
fering a reduction in income or a reduction in
such employee's level of future benefits arising
from a subsequent illness or injury; and
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(b) Reasonable and necessary expenses sus-
tained by the eligible injured person in obtain-
ing services in lieu of those which such person
would have performed for income.

Other Expenses

Other expenses shall consist of all reasonable and
necessary expenses, other than medical expense and
work loss, up to $25 per day for a period of one year
from the date of the accident causing injury.

Death Benefit

Upon the death of any eligible injured person, caused
by an accident to which this coverage applies, the
Company will pay to the estate of such person a
death benefit of $2,000.

Eligible Injured Person

Subject to the exclusions and conditions set forth
below, an eligible injured person is:

(a) The named insured and any relative who sus-
tains personal injury arising out of the use or
operation of any motor vehicle;

(b) The named insured and any relative who sus-
tains personal injury arising out of the use or
operation of any motorcycle, while not occupy-
ing a motorcycle,

(c) Any other person who sustains personal injury
arising out of the use or operation of the in-
sured motor vehicle in the State of New York
while not occupying another motor vehicle; or

(d) Any New York State resident who sustains
personal injury arising out of the use or opera-
tion of the insured motor vehicle outside of New
York State while not occupying another motor
vehicle.

Exclusions

This coverage does not apply to personal injury sus-
tained by:

(a) The named insured while occupying, or while a
pedestrian through being struck by, any motor
vehicle owned by the named insured with re-
spect to which the coverage required by the
New York Comprehensive Motor Vehicle Insur-
ance Reparations Act is not in effect;

(b) Any relative while occupying, or while a pedes-
trian through being struck by, any motor vehi-
cle owned by the relative with respect to which
the coverage required by the New York Com-
prehensive Motor Vehicle Insurance Repara-
tions Act is not in effect;
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(¢) The named insured or relative while occupying,

(d)

(e)
)

or while a pedestrian through being struck by,
a motor vehicle in New York State, other than
the insured motor vehicle, with respect to
which the coverage required by the New York
Comprehensive Motor Vehicle Insurance
Reparations Act is in effect; however, this ex-
clusion does not apply to personal injury sus-
tained in New York State by the named insured
or relative while occupying a bus or school bus,
as defined in sections 104 and 142 of the New
York Vehicle and Traffic Law, unless that per-
son is the operator, an owner, or an employee
of the owner or operator, of such bus or school
bus;

Any person in New York State while occupying
the insured motor vehicle which is a bus or
school bus, as defined in sections 104 and
142 of the New York Vehicle and Traffic Law,
but only if such person is a named insured or
relative under any other policy providing the
coverage required by the New York Compre-
hensive Motor Vehicle Insurance Reparations
Act; however, this exclusion does not apply to
the operator, an owner, or an employee of the
owner or operator, of such bus or school bus;

Any person while occupying a motarcycle;
Any person who intentionally causes his or her

* own personal injury;

(9)

(h)

Any person as a resuit of operating a motor
vehicle while in an intoxicated condition or
while his ability to operate such vehicle is im-
paired by the use of a drug (within the meaning
of section 1192 of the New York Vehicle and
Traffic Law); or

Any person while:

(i) Committing an act which would constitute a
felony, or seeking to avoid lawful apprehen-
sion or arrest by a law enforcement officer;

(i) Operating a motor vehicle in a race or
speed test;

(ili) Operating or occupying a motor vehicle

known to that person to be stolen; or

(iv) Repairing, servicing or otherwise maintain-

(i)

© ISO Properties, Inc., 2002

ing a motor vehicle if such conduct is within
the course of a business of repairing, ser-
vicing or otherwise maintaining a motor ve-
hicle and the injury occurs on the business
premises.

The named insured or relative while not occu-
pying a motor vehicle or a motorcycle when
struck by a motorcycle in New York State with
respect to which the coverage required by the
New York Comprehensive Motor Vehicle Insur-
ance Reparations Act is in effect;
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(i) Any New York State resident, other than the
named insured or relative injured through the
use or operation of the insured motor vehicle
outside of New York State if such resident is
the owner or a relative of the owner of a motor
vehicle insured under another policy providing
the coverage required by the New York Com-
prehensive Motor Vehicle Insurance Repara-
tions Act;

(k) Any New York State resident, other than the
named insured or relative injured through the
use or operation of the insured motor vehicle
outside of New York State, if such resident is
the owner of a motor vehicle for which the cov-
erage required by the New York Comprehen-
sive Motor Vehicle Insurance Reparations Act
is not in effect.

Other Definitions
When used in reference to this coverage:

(a) The "insured motor vehicle" means a motor
vehicle owned by the named insured and to
which the bodily injury liability insurance of this
policy applies and for which a specific premium
is charged,;

(b) "Motorcycle" means a vehicle as defined in
section 123 of the New York Vehicle and Traffic
Law and which is required to carry financial se-
curity pursuant to article 6, 8 or 48-A of the
Vehicle and Traffic Law; :

(c) "Motor vehicle" means a motor vehicle, as
defined in section 311 of the New York Vehicle
and Traffic Law, and also includes fire and po-
lice vehicles, but shall not include any motor
vehicle not required to carry financial security
pursuant to article 6, 8 or 48-A of the Vehicle
and Traffic Law, or a motorcycle as defined
above;
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(d) "Named insured" means the person or organi-
zation named in the declarations;

(e) "Occupying" means in or upon or entering into
or atighting from;

(f) "Personal injury" means bodily injury, sickness
or disease;

(g) "Relative" means a spouse, child, or other
person related to the named insured by blood,
marriage, or adoption (including a ward or fos-
ter child), who regularly resides in the insured's
household, including any such person who
regularly resides in the household, but is tem-
porarily living elsewhere; and

{h) "Use or operation" of a motor vehicle or a mo-
torcycle includes the loading or unloading of
such vehicle.

Conditions

Action Against Company. No action shall lie against
the Company unless, as a condition precedent
thereto, there shall have been full compliance with the
terms of this coverage.

Notice. In the event of an accident, written notice
setting forth details sufficient to identify the eligible
injured person, along with reasonably obtainable
information regarding the time, place and circum-
stances of the accident, shall be given by, or on be-
half of, each eligible injured person, to the Company,
or any of the Company's authorized agents, as soon
as reasonably practicable, but in no event more than
30 days after the date of the accident, unless the
eligible injured person submits written proof providing
clear and reasonable justification for the failure to
comply with such time limitation . If an eligible injured
person or that person's legal representative institutes
a proceeding to recover damages for personal injury
under section 5104(b) of the New York Insurance
Law, a copy of the summons and complaint or other
process served in connection with such action shall
be forwarded as soon as practicable to the Company
or any of the Company's authorized agents by such
eligible injured person or that person's legal represen-
tative.
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Proof of Claim; Medical, Work Loss, and Other
Necessary Expenses. In the case of a claim for
health service expenses, the eligible injured person or
that person's assignee or representative shall submit
written proof of claim to the Company, including full
particulars of the nature and extent of the injuries and
treatment received and contemplated, as soon as
reasonably practicable but, in no event later than 45
days after the date services are rendered. The eligible
injured person or that person's representative shall
submit written proof of claim for work loss benefits and
for other necessary expenses to the Company as
soon as reasonably practicable but, in no event, later
than 90 days after the work loss is incurred or the
other necessary services are rendered. The foregoing
time limitations for the submission of proof of claim
shall apply unless the eligible injured person or that
person's representative submits written proof provid-
_ing clear and reasonable justification for the failure to
comply with such time limitation. Upon request by the
Company, the eligible injured person or that person's
assignee or representative shall:

(a) Execute a written proof of claim under oath;

(b) As may reasonably be required submit to ex-
aminations under oath by any person named
by the Company and subscribe the same;

{c) Provide authorization that will enable the Com-
pany to obtain medical records; and

(d) Provide any other pertinent information that
may assist the Company in determining the
amount due and payable.

The eligible injured person shall submit to medical
examination by physicians selected by, or acceptable
to, the Company, when, and as often as, the Com-
pany may reasonably require.

Arbitration. In the event any person making a claim
for first-party benefits and the Company do not agree
regarding any matter relating to the claim, such per-
son shall have the option of submitting such dis-
agreement to arbitration pursuant to procedures
promulgated or approved by the Superintendent of
insurance.
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Reimbursement and Trust Agreement. To the
extent that the Company pays first-party benefits, the
Company is entitled to the proceeds of any settlement
or judgment resulting from the exercise of any right of
recovery for damages for personal injury under sec-
tion 5104(b) of the New York Insurance Law. The
Company shall have a lien upon any such settlement
or judgment to the extent that the Company has paid
first-party benefits. An eligible injured person shali:

(a) Hold in trust, for the Company, all rights of
recovery which that person shall have for per-
sonal injury under section 5104(b) of the New
York Insurance Law;,

(b) Do whatever is proper to secure, and shall do
nothing to prejudice, such rights; and

(c) Execute, and deliver to the Company, instru-
ments and papers as may be appropriate to
secure the rights and obligations of such per-
sonh and the Company established by this pro-
vision.

An eligible injured person shall not compromise an
action to recover damages brought under section
5104(b) of the New York Insurance Law, except:

(a) With the written consent of the Company;
(b) With approval of the court; or

(c¢) Where the amount of the settlement exceeds
$50,000.

Other Coverage. Where more than one source of
first-party benefits required by article 51 of the New
York Insurance Law and article 6 or 8 of the New York
Vehicle and Traffic Law is available and applicable to
an eligible injured person in any one accident, this
Company is liable to an eligible injured person only for
an amount equal to the maximum amount that the
eligible injured person is entitled to recover under this
coverage, divided by the number of available and
applicable sources of required first-party benefits. An
eligible injured person shall not recover duplicate
benefits for the same elements of loss under this
coverage or any other mandatory first-party motor
vehicle or no-fault motor vehicle insurance coverage
issued in compliance with the laws of another state.
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If the eligible injured person is entitled to benefits
under any such mandatory first-party motor vehicle or
no-fault motor vehicle insurance for the same ele-
ments of loss under this coverage, this Company
shall be liable only for an amount equal to the propor-
tion that the total amount available under this cover-
age bears to the sum of the amount available under
this coverage and the amount available under such
other mandatory insurance for the common elements
of loss. However, where another state's mandatory
first-party or nec-fault motor vehicle insurance law
provides unlimited coverage available to an eligible
injured person for an element of loss under this cov-
erage, the obligation of this Company is to share
equally for that element of loss with such other man-
datory insurance until the $50,000, or $75,000 if
Optional Basic Economic Loss (OBEL) coverage is
purchased, limit of this coverage is exhausted by the
payment of that element of loss and any cother ele-
ments of loss.
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Section il
Excess Coverage

If motor vehicle medical payments coverage or any
disability coverages or uninsured motorists coverage
are afforded under this policy, such coverages shall
be excess insurance over any Mandatory PIP, OBEL
or Additional PIP benefits paid or payable or which
would be paid or payable but for the application of a
deductible under this or any other motor vehicle No-
Fault insurance policy.

Section lll
Constitutionality

If it is conclusively determined by a court of compe-
tent jurisdiction that the New York Comprehensive
Motor Vehicle Insurance Reparations Act, or any
amendment thereto, is invalid or unenforceable in
whole or in part, then, subject to the approval of the
Superintendent of Insurance, the Company may
amend this policy and may also recompute the pre-
mium for the existing or amended policy.

These amendments and recomputations will be. effec-

tive retroactively to the date that such act or any
amendment is deemed to be invalid or unenforceable
in whole or in part.
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COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 310711 98

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NEW YORK SUPPLEMENTARY
UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED
MOTORISTS ENDORSEMENT

We, the company, agree with you, as the named insured, in return for payment of the premium for this coverage,
to provide Supplementary Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists (SUM) coverage, subject to the following terms and

conditions:

INSURING AGREEMENTS
1. Definitions

For purposes of this SUM endorsement, the
following terms have the following meanings.

a. Insured
The unqualified term "insured" means:

(1) You, as the named insured and, while
residents of the same household, your
spouse and the relatives of either you or
your spouse;

(2) Any other person while occupying:

{a) A motor vehicle insured for SUM
under this policy; or

(b) Any other motor vehicle while being
operated by you or your spouse; and

(3) Any person, with respect to damages
such person is entitled to recover, be-
cause of bodily injury to which this cov-
erage applies sustained by an insured
under Paragraph (1) or (2) above.

b. Bodily Injury
The term "bodily injury" means bodily harm,

including sickness, disease or death result-
ing therefrom.

c. Uninsured Motor Vehicle

The term "uninsured motor vehicle" means
a motor vehicle that, through its ownership,
maintenance or use, results in bodily injury
to an insured, and for which;

(1) No bodily injury liability insurance policy
or bond applies to such vehicle (includ-
ing a vehicle that was stolen, operated
without the owner's permission, -or un-
registered) at the time of the accident; or

(2) Neither owner nor driver can be identi-

fied (including a hit-and-run vehicle),
and which causes bodily injury to an in-
sured by physical contact with the in-
sured or with a motor vehicle occupied
by the insured at the time of the acci-
dent, provided that:

(a) The insured or someone on the
insured's behalf shall have reported
the accident within 24 hours or as
soon as reasonably possible to a po-
lice, peace or judicial officer or to the
Commissioner of Motor Vehicles and
shall have filed with the Company a
statement under oath that the in-
sured or the insured's legal repre-
sentative has a cause or causes of
action arising out of such accident
for damages against a person or per-
sons whose identity is unascertain- -
able, and setting forth the facts in
support thereof; and

(b) At the request of the Company, the
insured or the insured's legal repre-
sentative makes available for inspec-
tion the automobile the insured was
occupying at the time of the acci-
dent; or

(3) There is a bodily injury liability insurance

coverage or bond applicable to such
motor vehicle at the time of the accident,
but:

(a) The amount of such insurance cov-
erage or bond is less than the third-
party bodily injury liability fimit of this
policy; or

(b) The amount of such insurance cov-
erage or bond has been reduced, by
payments to other persons injured in
the accident, to an amount less than
the third-party bodily injury liability
limit of this policy; or
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(¢) The insurer writing such insurance
coverage or bond denies coverage,
or such insurer is or becomes insol-
vent.

The term "uninsured motor vehicle" does
not include a motor vehicle that is:

(1) Insured under the liability coverage of
this policy; or

(2) Owned by you, as the named insured,
or your spouse residing in your house-
hold; or

(3) Self-insured within the meaning of the
financial responsibility law of the state in
which the motor vehicle is registered, or
any similar state or federal law, to the
extent that the required amount of such
coverage is equal to, or greater than, the
third-party bodily injury liability limits of
this policy; or

(4) Owned by the United States of America,
Canada, a state, a political subdivision
of any such government, or an agency
of any of the foregoing; or

(5) A land motor vehicle or trailer, while
located for use as a residence or prem-
ises and not as a vehicle, or while oper-
ated on rails or crawler-treads; or

(6) A farm type vehicle or equipment de-
signed for use principally off public
roads, except while actually upon public
roads.

d. Occupying

The term "occupying" means in, upon, en-
tering into, or exiting from a motor vehicle.

e. State

The term "state" includes the District of Co-
lumbia, a territory or possession of the
United States, and a province of Canada.

2. Damages For Bodily Injury Caused By

Uninsured Motor Vehicles

We will pay all sums that the insured or the in-
sured's legal representative shall be legally en-
titled to recover as damages from the owner or
operator of an uninsured motor vehicle be-
cause of bodily injury sustained by the insured,
caused by an accident arising out of such un-
insured motor wvehicle's ownership, mainte-
nance or use, subject to the Exclusions, Condi-
tions, Limits and other provisions of this SUM
endorsement. :

Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1998

3. SUM Coverage Period And Territory

This SUM coverage applies only to accidents
that occur:

a. During the policy period shown in the Dec-
larations; and

b. In the United States, its territories or pos-
sessions, or Canada.

EXCLUSIONS
This SUM coverage does not apply:
1. To bodily injury to an insured, including care or

loss of services recoverable by an insured, if
such insured, such insured's legal representa-
tives, or any person entitled to payment under
this coverage, without our written consent, set-
tles any lawsuit against any person or organi-
zation that may be legally liable for such injury,
care or loss of services, but this provision shall
be subject to Condition 10.

. To bodily injury to an insured incurred while

occupying a motor vehicle owned by that in-
sured, if such motor vehicle is not insured for
SUM coverage by the poalicy under which a
claim is made, or is not a newly acquired or re-
placement motor vehicle covered under the
terms of this policy.

. For non-economic loss, resulting from bodily

injury to an insured and arising from an, acci-
dent in New York State, unless the insured has
sustained serious injury as defined in Section
5102(d) of the New York Insurance Law.

CONDITIONS
1. Policy Provisions

None of the Insuring Agreements, Exclusions
or Conditions of the policy shall apply to this
SUM coverage except: "Duties After an Acci-
dent or Loss"; "Fraud"; and 'Termination" if
applicable.

. Notice And Proof Of Claim

As soon as practicable, the insured or other
person making claim shall give us written no-
tice of claim under this SUM coverage.

As soon as practicable after our written re-
quest, the insured or other person making
claim shall give us written proof of claim, under
oath if required, including full particulars of the
nature and extent of the injuries, treatment,
and other details we need to determine the
SUM amount payable.

CA 3107 11 98
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The insured and every other person making
claim hereunder shall, as may reasonably be
required, submit to examinations under oath by
any person we name and subscribe the same.
Proof of claim shall be made upon forms we
furnish unless we fail to furnish such forms
within 15 days after receiving notice of claim.

. Medical Reports

The insured shall submit to physical examina-
tions by physicians we select when and as of-
ten as we may reasonably require. The in-
sured, or in the event of the insured's incapac-
ity, such insured's legal representative (or in
the event of such insured's death, the insured's
legal representative or the person or persons
entitled to sue therefor), shall upon each re-
quest from us authorize us to obtain relevant
medical reports and copies of relevant records.

. Notice Of Legal Action

If the insured or such insured's legal represen-
tative brings any lawsuit against any person or
organization legally responsible for the use of a
motor vehicle involved in the accident, a copy
of the summons-and complaint or other proc-
ess served in connection with the lawsuit shall
be forwarded immediately to us by the insured
or the insured's legal representative.

. SUM Limit

The SUM limit payable under this SUM en-
dorsement shall be:

a. The SUM Iiimit stated in the Declarations; or

b. If the bodily injury resuits in death, we will
provide a SUM limit of the higher of the
SUM limit stated in the Declarations, or
$50,000 for such bodily injury resulting in
death sustained by one person as the result
of any one accident and, subject to this per
person limit, $100,000 for such bodily injury
resulting in death sustained by two or more
persons as the result of any one accident.

. Maximum SUM Payments

Regardless of the number of insureds, our
maximum payment under this SUM endorse-
ment shall be the difference between:

a. The SUM limit; and

b. The motor vehicle bodily injury liability in-
surance or bond payments received by the
insured or the insured's legal representa-
tive, from or on behalf of all persons that
may be legally liable for the bodily injury
sustained by the insured.

The SUM limit shown on the Declarations is
the amount of coverage for all damages due to
bodily injury in any one accident.

7.

10.

Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1998

Non-Stacking

Regardless of the number of vehicles involved,
persons covered, claims made, vehicies or
premiums shown in this policy, or premium
paid, the limits, whether for uninsured motor-
ists coverage or supplementary unin-
sured/underinsured motorists coverage, shall
never be added together or combined for two
or more vehicles to determine the extent of in-
surance coverage available to an insured in-
jured in the same accident.

Priority Of Coverage
If an insured is entitled to uninsured motorists
coverage or supplementary unin-

suredfunderinsured motorists coverage under
more than one policy, the maximum amount
such insured may recover shall not exceed the
highest limit of such coverage for any one vehi-
cle under any one policy, and the following or-
der of priority shall apply:

a. A policy covering a motor vehicle occupied
by the injured person at the time of the ac-
cident;

b. A policy covering a motor vehicle not in-
volved in the accident under which the in-
jured person is a named insured; and

¢. A policy covering a motor vehicle not in-
volved in the accident under which the in-
jured person is an insured other than a
named insured.

Coverage available under a lower priority policy
applies only to the extent that it exceeds the
coverage of a higher priority policy.

Exhaustion Required

Except as provided in Condition 10, we will pay
under this SUM coverage only after the limits of
liability have been used up under all motor ve-
hicle bodily injury liability insurance policies or
bonds applicable at the time of the accident in
regard to any one person who may be legally
liable for the bodily injury sustained by the in-
sured. _

Release Or Advance

In accidents involving the insured and one or
more negligent parties, if such insured settles
with any such party for the available limit of the
motor vehicle bodily injury liability coverage of
such party, release may be executed with such
party after thirty calendar days actual written
notice to us, unless within this time period we
agree to advance such settlement amounts to
the insured in return for the cooperation of the
insured in our lawsuit on behalf of the insured.
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We shall have a right to the proceeds of any
such lawsuit equal to the amount advanced to
the insured and any additional amounts paid
under this SUM coverage. Any excess above
those amounts shall be paid to the insured.

An insured shall not otherwise settle with any
negligent party, without our written consent,
such that our rights would be impaired.

Non-Duplication

This SUM coverage shail not duplicate any of
the following:

a. Benefits payable under workers' compensa-
tion or other similar laws;

b. Non-occupational disability benefits under
" article nine of the Workers' Compensation
Law or other similar law;

¢. Any amounts recovered or recoverable
pursuant to article fifty-one of the New York
Insurance Law or any similar motor vehicle
insurance payable without regard to fault;

d. Any valid or collectible motor vehicle medi-

cal payments insurance; or

e. Any amounts recovered as bodily injury
damages from sources other than motor
vehicle bodily injury liability insurance poli-
cies or bonds.

Arbitration

If any insured making claim under this SUM
coverage and we do not agree that such in-
sured is legally entitled to recover damages
from the owner or operator of an uninsured mo-
tor vehicle because of bodily injury sustained
by the insured, or do not agree as to the
amount of payment that may be owing under
this SUM coverage, then, at the option and
upon written demand of such insured, the mat-
ter or matters upon which such insured and we
do not agree shall be settled by arbitration,
administered by the American Arbitration As-
sociation, pursuant to procedures prescribed or
approved by the Superintendent of Insurance
for this purpose.

If, however, the maximum amount of SUM
coverage provided by this endorsement equals
the amount of coverage required to be pro-
vided by section 3420(f)(1) of the New York In-
surance Law and Article 6 or 8 of the New York
Vehicle and Traffic Law, then such disagree-
ment shall be settled by such arbitration pro-
cedures upon written demand of either the in-
sured or us.

13.

14.

15.

16.
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Judgment upon the award rendered by the ar-
bitrator may be entered in any court having ju-
risdiction thereof, and any such insured and we
each agree to be bound by any award made by
the arbitrator as to this SUM coverage. For
purposes of this Condition, the term "insured"
includes any person authorized to act on behalf
of the insured.

Subrogation

If we make a payment under this SUM cover-
age, we have the right to recover the amount of
this payment from any person legally responsi-
ble for the badily injury or loss of the person to
whom, or for whose benefit, such payment was
made to the extent of the payment. The in-
sured or any person acting on behalf of the in-
sured must do whatever is necessary to trans-
fer this right of recovery to us. Except as per-
mitted by Condition 10, such person shall do
nothing to prejudice this right.

Payment Of Loss By Company

We shall pay any amount due under this SUM
coverage to the insured or, at our option, to a
person authorized by law to receive such pay-
ment or to a person legally entitled to recover
the damages which the payment represents.

Action Against Company

No lawsuit shall lie against us unless the in-
sured or the insured's legal representative has
first fully complied with all the terms of this
SUM coverage.

Survivor Rights

If you or your spouse, if a resident of the same
household, dies, this SUM coverage shall
cover.

a. The survivor as named insured;

b. The decedent's legal representative as
named insured, but only while acting within
the scope of such representative's duties as
such; and

¢. Any relative who was an insured at the time
of such death.

CA 31071198
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COMMERCIAL AUTO

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NEW YORK OPTIONAL BASIC
ECONOMIC LOSS COVERAGE

The company agrees with the named insured, subject to all of the provisions, exclusions and conditions of the
New York Mandatory Personal injury Protection (PIP} Endorsement or the New York Mandatory Personal Injury
Protection Endorsement — Motorcycles, not expressly modified in this endorsement, as follows:

The definition of Basic Economic Loss contained in
the New York Mandatory Personal Injury Protection
Endorsement or the New York Mandatory Personal
Injury Protection Endorsement — Motorcycles is re-
placed by the following:

Basic Economic Loss

Basic economic loss shall consist of medical expense,
work loss, other expense and, when death occurs, a
death benefit as herein provided. Except for such
death benefit, basic economic loss shall not include
any loss sustained on account of death. Basic eco-
nomic loss of each eligible injured person on account
of any single accident shall not exceed $75,000, the
last $25,000 of which represents optional basic eco-
nomic loss (OBEL} coverage, payable after the first
$50,000 of basic economic loss has been exhausted,
that the eligible injured person or that person's legal
representative may specify will be applied to one of
the following four options:

(1) Basic economic loss;
(2) Loss of earnings from work;

(3) Psychiatric, physical or occupational ther-
apy and rehabilitation,

(4) A combination of options (2) and (3).

Any death benefit hereunder shall be in addition
thereto.

Exclusion (c) set forth in the New York Mandatory
Personal Injury Protection Endorsement is replaced
by the following:

(¢) The named insured, or any relative while occupy-
ing or while a pedestrian through being struck by,
a motor vehicle in New York State, other than the
insured motor vehicle, with respect to which the
coverage required by the New York Comprehen-
sive Motor Vehicle Reparations Act is in effect;
however, this exclusion does not apply to:

{1} The Optional Basic Economic Loss cover-
age provided under this endorsement,
unless OBEL coverage is provided by the
policy covering the other motor vehicle; or

CA 22 60 04 92

(2) To persocnal injury sustained in New York
State by the named insured or relative while
occupying a bus or school bus, as defined
in sections 104 and 142 of the New York
Vehicle and Traffic Law, unless that person
is the operator, an owner, or an employee of
the owner or operator, of such bus or
school bus.

ELECTION

Election of the OBEL option shall be made by the
eligible injured person or that person's legal represen-
tative after such person has incurred expense aggre-
gating $30,000 in basic economic loss and after
receiving the required notices from the company that
an OBEL election may be made. Failure of the eligible
injured person or that person's legal representative to
respond to the second notice within 15 calendar days
after its mailing shall be considered an election by the
eligible injured person to apply OBEL coverage to all
elements of basic economic loss. Once made by the
eligible injured person or that person's legal represen-
tative, an OBEL election cannot be changed. How-
ever, if claims payable under OBEL coverage have
not yet been received by the company, an eligible
injured person who has failed to respond to the sec-
ond notice in a timely manner may make an election.

NOTICE

If OBEL coverage is payable under this policy, but
Mandatory PIP is being paid under a policy covering
another motor vehicle, then the named insured or
relative shall notify the company no later than 90
days after Mandatory PIP benefits under that other
policy have been exhausted. The company shall then
send its OBEL election notice.
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COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 893412893

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

SOCIAL SERVICE AGENCIES — VOLUNTEERS
AS INSUREDS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM
TRUCKERS COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless modi-
fied by the endorsement.

The following is added to the LIABILITY COVERAGE WHO IS AN INSURED provision:

Anyone volunteering services to you is an "insured" while using a covered "auto" you don't own, hire or borrow to
transport your clients or other persons in activities necessary to your business. Anyone else who furnishes that
"auto" is also an "insured".
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COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 04 20 01 03

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NEW YORK SUPPLEMENTAL SPOUSAL
BODILY INJURY LIABILITY COVERAGE

If your covered “auto” is licensed or principally garaged in, or "garage operations" are conducted in, New York,
this endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
GARAGE COVERAGE FORM

MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM
TRUCKERS COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless modi-
fied by the endorsement.

1. The Spousal Liability Exclusion does not
apply to "bodily injury".
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POLICY NUMBER: COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 99330299

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
EMPLOYEES AS INSUREDS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM
TRUCKERS COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless modi-
fied by the endorsement.

The following is added to the Section Il — Liability Coverage, Paragraph A.1. Who Is An Insured Provision:

Any "employee" of yours is an "insured" while using a covered "auto" you don't own, hire or borrow in your busi-
ness or your personal affairs.
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COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 99 03 07 97

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
AUTO MEDICAL PAYMENTS COVERAGE

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
GARAGE COVERAGE FORM

MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM
TRUCKERS COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless modi-
fied by the endorsement.

A.

CA 99 03 07 97

Coverage

We will pay reasonable expenses incurred for
necessary medical and funeral services to or for an
"insured" who sustains "bodily injury" caused by
"accident”. We will pay only those expenses in-
curred, for services rendered within three years
from the date of the "accident".

. Who Is An Insured

1. You while "occupying" or, while a pedestrian,
when struck by any "auto".

2. If you are an individual, any "family member"
while "occupying” or, while a pedestrian, when
struck by any "auto".

3. Anyone else "occupying" a covered "auto” or a
temporary substitute for a covered "auto”. The
covered "auto" must be out of service because
of its breakdown, repair, servicing, loss or de-
struction.

. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to any of the follow-

ing:

1. "Bodily injury" sustained by an "insured" while
"occupying" a vehicle located for use as a
premises.

2. "Bodily injury" sustained by you or any “family
member" while "occupying” or struck by any
vehicle (other than a covered "auto") owned by
you or furnished or available for your regular
use.

3. "Bodily injury" sustained by any “family mem-
ber" while "occupying” or struck by any vehicle
(other than a covered "auto™) owned by or fur-
hished or available for the regular use of any
"family member".

Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1996

4. "Bodily injury" to your "employee" arising out of
and in the course of employment by you. How-
ever, we will cover "podily injury” to your do-
mestic "employees"” if not entitled to workers'
compensation benefits. For the purposes of
this endorsement, a domestic "employee" is a
person engaged in household or domestic
work performed principally in connection with a
residence premises.

5. "Bodily injury" to an "insured" while working in
a business of selling, servicing, repairing or
parking "autos" unless that business is yours.

6. "Bodily injury" caused by declared or unde-
clared war or insurrection or any of their conse-
guences.

7. "Bodily injury" to anyone using a vehicle with-
out a reasonable belief that the person is enti-
tled to do so.

8. "Bodily Injury” sustained by an "insured" while
"occupying” any covered "auto" while used in
any professional racing or demolition contest or
stunting activity, or while practicing for such
contest or activity. This insurance also does not
apply to any "bodily injury" sustained by an "in-
sured" while the "auto" is being prepared for
such a contest or activity.

. Limit Of insurance

Regardless of the number of covered "autos", "in-
sureds", premiums paid, claims made or vehicles
involved in the "accident", the most we will pay for
“bodily injury" for each "insured" injured in any one
"accident" is the Limit Of Insurance for Auto Medi-
cal Payments Coverage shown in the Declara-
tions.

No one will be entitled to receive duplicate pay-
ments for the same elements of "loss" under this
coverage and any Liability Coverage Form, Unin-
sured Motorists Coverage Endorsement or Under-
insured Motorists Coverage Endorsement at-
tached to this Coverage Part.
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E. Changes In Conditions

The Conditions are changed for Auto Medical
Payments Coverage as foilows:

1. The Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against
Others To Us Condition does not apply.

2. The reference in Cther Insurance in the Busi-
ness Auto and Garage Coverage Forms and
Other Insurance — Primary And Excess Insur-
ance Provisions in the Truckers and Motor Car-
rier Coverage Forms to "other collectible insur-
ance" applies only to other collectible auto
medical payments insurance.

F. Additional Definitions
As used in this endorsement:

1. "Family member' means a person related to
you by blood, marriage or adoption who is a
resident of your household, including a ward or
foster child.

2. "Occupying" means in, upon, getting in, on,
out or off.
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POLICY NUMBER

CUSTOMIZED VEHICLE ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

The following is added to Paragraph C- LIMIT OF INSURANCE of SECTION III-
PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE.

2. For schedule, customized covered “autos” used as chiefs, captains, police, administrative and
other similar vehicles, we will pay the additional repair or replacement coasts necessary to
customize the damaged “auto” with permanently installed equipment of like kind and
quality, without deduction for depreciation. We will also include the cost of installation onto
a replacement “auto” if the coverage “auto” is not repairable. This customization will
include, but is not limited to the following:

a. custom painting and gold leaf lettering

b. light bars and sirens

¢. permanently installed radios and others communications equipment
d. permanently installed computer equipment

Coverage under this endorsement does not apply to any coverage “auto” designated on the schedule
as being insured on an agreed-value basis.

We will also pay for property owned by “you” that is permanently installed in an “auto” not owned
by “you”.

All other terns and conditiens of this policy remain unchanged.

NIF1003 1298



PUBLIC ENTITY AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
WHO IS AN INSURED, subsection b, is amended to include:
(6) Your volunteers if the covered “auto” is owned by the volunteer or a member of his or her

houschold, but solely while acting within the scope of their duties and at your direction.

Subsection c. is hereby added to the policy.

A governmental agency or subdivision, department, municipal body or not-for profit corporation
which is owned and contracted by you, for any covered “auto”.

COVERAGE EXTENSIONS Supplementary Payments item (2) is amended by substltutmg
“$1,000” for “250”, and item (4) is amended by substituting “$250” for “$100”".

PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE item 4, Coverage Extension, is amended by substituting
6‘$25 2 for 5‘$ 1 57’.

PREMIUM AUDIT paragraph a, is amended as follows:

The premium for this coverage Form is based on the exposures you told us you would have
when this policy began. Unless otherwise indicated, the premium for this Coverage Part is
non-adjustable and not subject to audit. However, we reserve the right to inspect your records.

DEFINITIONS Add definitions E., “Garage Operations” shall include repair, service or
maintenance

Of “auto” on your premises provided that such repair, service or maintenance is conducted as part
of and is limited solely to a educational course of study.

NIF 1005 0107



COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 00 01 03 06

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage.
Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights,
duties and what is and is not covered.

Throughout this policy the words "you" and "your" re-
fer to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations.
The words "we", "us" and "our" refer to the Company
providing this insurance.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation
marks have special meaning. Refer to Section V —
Definitions. ‘

SECTION | - COVERED AUTOS

Item Two of the Declarations shows the "autos" that
are covered "autos" for each of your coverages. The
following numerical symbols describe the “autos" that
may be covered "autos". The symbols entered next to
a coverage on the Declarations designate the only
"autos" that are covered "autos".

A. Description Of Covered Auto Designation
Symbols

Symbol Description Of Covered Auto Designation Symbols

1 Any "Auto"

2 Owned "Autos"  Only those "autos" you own (and for Liability Coverage any "trailers" you don't own
Only while attached to power units you own). This includes those "autos" you acquire

ownership of after the policy begins.

3 Owned Private  Only the private passenger "autos" you own. This includes those private passen-
Passenger ger "autos" you acquire ownership of after the policy begins.

"Autos" Only

4 Owned "Autos"  Only those "autos" you own that are not of the private passenger type (and for Li-
Other Than Pri-  ability Coverage any "trailers"” you don't own while attached to power units you
vate Passenger own). This includes those "autos" not of the private passenger type you acquire
"Autos" Only ownership of after the policy begins.

5 Owned "Autos"  Only those "autos” you own that are required to have No-Fault benefits in the state
Subject To No-  where they are licensed or principally garaged. This includes those "autos" you
Fault acquire ownership of after the policy begins provided they are required to have No-

Fault benefits in the state where they are licensed or principally garaged.

6 Owned "Autos"  Only those "autos" you own that because of the law in the state where they are
Subject To A licensed or principally garaged are required to have and cannot reject Uninsured
Compulsory Un- Motorists Coverage. This includes those "autos" you acquire ownership of after the
insured Motor-  policy begins provided they are subject to the same state uninsured motorists re-
ists Law quirement. :

7 Specifically De-  Only those "autos” described in Item Three of the Declarations for which a pre-
scribed "Autos”  mium charge is shown (and for Liability Coverage any "trailers" you don't own while

attached to any power unit described in ltem Three).

8 Hired "Autos” . Only those "autos" you lease, hire, rent or borrow. This does not include any "auto"
Only you lease, hire, rent, or borrow from any of your "employees"”, partners (if you are a

partnership), members (if you are a limited liability company) or members of their
households.

9 Nonowned Only those "autos” you do not own, lease, hire, rent or borrow that are used in con-
"Autos" Only nection with your business. This includes "autos" owned by your "employees",

partners (if you are a partnership), members (if you are a limited liability company),
or members of their households but only while used in your business or your per-
sonal affairs.

CA 00 01 03 06
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19 Mobile Equip-

Financial Re-
sponsibility Or
Other Motor Ve-
hicle Insurance
Law Only

Only those "autos" that are land vehicles and that would qualify under the defini-
ment Subject To tion of "mobile equipment” under this policy if they were not subject to a compul-
Compulsory Or  sory or financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle insurance law where they
are licensed or principally garaged.

Page 2 of 12

B. Owned Autos You Acquire After The Policy

Begins :

1. If Symbols 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 or 19 are entered
next to a coverage in ltem Two of the Declara-
tions, then you have coverage for "autos” that
you acquire of the type described for the re-
mainder of the policy period.

2. But, if Symbol 7 is entered next to a coverage
in Item Two of the Declarations, an "auto" you
acquire will be a covered "autc" for that cover-
age only if:

a. We already cover all "autos" that you own
for that coverage or it replaces an "auto"
you previously owned that had that cover-
age; and '

b. You tell us within 30 days after you acquire
it that you want us to cover it for that cover-

_ age.
. Certain Trailers, Mobile Equipment And
Temporary Substitute Autos

If Liability Coverage is provided by this Coverage
Form, the following types of vehicles are also cov-
ered "autos" for Liability Coverage:

1. "Trailers" with a load capacity of 2,000 pounds
or less designed primarily for travei on public
roads.

2. "Mobile equipment" while being carried or
towed by a covered "auto",

3. Any "auto"” you do not own while used with the
permission of its owner as a temporary substi-
tute for a covered "auto"” you own that is out of
service because of its:

‘a. Breakdown;
Repair,;
Servicing,
"Loss"; or
Destruction.

® 200F
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SECTION Il - LIABILITY COVERAGE
A. Coverage

We will pay all sums an "insured" legally must pay
as damages because of "bodily injury" or "property
damage" to which this insurance applies, caused
by an "accident" and resulting from the ownership,
maintenance or use of a covered "auta".

We will also pay all sums an "insured" legally must
pay as a "covered pollution cost or expense" to
which this insurance applies, caused by an "acci-
dent" and resulting from the ownership, mainte-
nance or use of covered "autos"”. However, we will
only pay for the "covered pollution cost or ex-
pense" if there is either "bodily injury" or “"property
damage" to which this insurance applies that is
caused by the same "accident".

We have the right and duty to defend any “in-
sured" against a "suit" asking for such damages or
a "covered pollution cost or expense". However,
we have no duty to defend any "insured" against a
"suit" seeking damages for "bodily injury" or "prop-
erty damage” or a "covered pollution cost or ex-
pense" to which this insurance does not apply. We
may investigate and settle any claim or “suit" as
we consider appropriate. Our duty to defend or
settle ends when the Liability Coverage Limit of
insurance has been exhausted by payment of
judgments or settlements.

1. Who Is An Insured
The foliowing are "insureds':
a. You for any covered "auto".

b. Anyone else while using with your permis-
sion a covered "auto" you own, hire or bor-
row except:

(1) The owner or anyone else from whom
you hire or borrow a covered "auto”. This
exception does not apply if the covered
"auto" is a "trailer”" connected to a cov-
ered "auto" you own.
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(2) Your "employee" if the covered "auto" is
owned by that "employee" or a member
of his or her household.

(3) Someone using a covered "auto” while
he or she is working in a business of
selling, servicing, repairing, parking or
storing "autos" unless that business is
yours.

(4) Anyone other than your "employees',
partners (if you are a partnership),
members (if you are a limited liability
company), or a lessee or borrower or
any of their "employees", while moving
property to or from a covered "auto".

(5) A partner (if you are a partnership), or a
member (if you are a limited liability
company) for a covered "auto” owned by
him or her or a member of his or her
household.

c. Anyone liable for the conduct of an "in-
sured" described above but only to the ex-
tent of that liability.

2. Coverage Extensions

a. Supplementary Payments
We will pay for the "insured":
(1) All expenses we incur.

(2) Up to $2,000 for cost of bail bonds (in-
cluding bonds for related traffic law viola-
tions) required because of an "accident"

‘we cover. We do not have to furnish
these bonds.

(3) The cost of bonds to release attach-
ments in any "suit" against the "insured"
we defend, but only for bond amounts
within our Limit of Insurance.

(4) All reasonable expenses incurred by the
"insured” at our request, including ac-
tual loss of earnings up to $250 a day
because of time off from work.

(6) All costs taxed against the "insured" in
any "suit" against the “insured" we de-
fend.

(6) All interest on the full amount of any
judgment that accrues after entry of the
judgment in any "suit" against the "in-
sured" we defend, but our duty to pay
interest ends when we have paid, of-
fered to pay or deposited in court the
part of the judgment that is within our
Limit of Insurance.

These payments will not reduce the Limit of
Insurance.

b. Out-Of-State Coverage Extensions

While a covered "auto" is away from the
state where it is licensed we will:

(1) Increase the Limit of Insurance for Li-
ability Coverage to meet the limits speci-
fied by a compulsory or financial re-
sponsibility law of the jurisdiction where
the covered "auto" is being used. This
extension does not apply to the limit or
limits specified by any law governing
motor carriers of passengers or prop-
erty.

(2) Provide the minimum amounts and
types of other coverages, such as no-
fault, required of out-of-state vehicles by
the jurisdiction where the covered "auto"
is being used.

We will not pay anyone more than once for
the same elements of loss because of
these extensions.

B. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to any of the follow-

ing:

1. Expected Or Intended Injury
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" expected
or intended from the standpoint of the "in-
sured".

2. Contractual

Liability assumed under any contract or agree-
ment.

But this exclusion does not apply to liability for
damages:

a. Assumed in a contract or agreement that is
an "insured contract" provided the "bodily
injury" or "property damage" occurs subse-
guent to the execution of the contract or
agreement; or

b. That the "insured" would have in the ab-
sence of the contract or agreement.

3. Workers' Compensation

Any obligation for which the "insured" or the
"insured's" insurer may be held liable under
any workers' compensation, disability benefits
or unemployment compensation law or any
similar law.

4. Employee Indemnification And Employer's
Liability
"Bodily injury" to:
a. An "employee" of the "insured" arising out
of and in the course of:

(1) Employment by the "insured"; or
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(2) Performing the duties related to the con-
duct of the "insured's" business; or

b. The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister
of that "employee" as a consequence of
Paragraph a. above.

This exclusion applies:

(1) Whether the "insured" may be liable as
an employer or in any other capacity,
and

(2) To any obligation to share damages with
or repay someone else who must pay
damages because of the injury.

But this exclusion does not apply to "bodily in-
jury" to domestic "employees” not entitled to
workers' compensation benefits or to liability
assumed by the “insured" under an "insured
contract". For the purposes of the Coverage
Form, a domestic "employee" is a person en-
gaged in household or domestic work per-
formed principally in connection with a resi-
dence premises.

. Fellow Employee

"Bodily injury" to any fellow "employee"” of the
"insured" arising out of and in the course of the
fellow "employee's" employment or while per-
forming duties related to the conduct of your
business.

. Care, Custody Or Control

"Property damage” to or “covered pollution cost
or expense" involving property owned or trans-
ported by the "insured" or in the "insured's"
care, custody or control. But this exclusion
does not apply to liability assumed under a
sidetrack agreement.

. Handling Of Property

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" resulting

from the handling of property:

a. Before it is moved from the place where it is
accepted by the "insured" for movement
into or onto the covered "auto"; or

b. After it is moved from the covered "auto” to
the place where it is finally delivered by the
"insured".

. Movement Of Property By Mechanical
Device

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" resulting
from the movement of property by a mechani-
cal device (other than a hand truck) unless the
device is attached to the covered "auto™.

10.

1.
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Operations

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out
of the operation of:

a. Any equipment listed in Paragraphs 6.b.

and 6.c. of the definition of "mobile equip-
ment"; or

b. Machinery or equipment that is on, at-
tached to, or part of, a land vehicle that
would qualify under the definition of "mobile
equipment” if it were not subject to a com-
pulsory or financial responsibility law or
other motor vehicle insurance law where it
is licensed or principally garaged.

Completed Operations

"Bedily injury” or "property damage" arising out
of your work after that work has been com-
pleted or abandoned.

In this exclusion, your work means:

a. Work or operations performed by you or on
your behalf; and

b. Materials, parts or equipment furnished in
connection with such work or operations.

Your work includes warranties or representa-
tions made at any time with respect to the fit-
ness, quality, durability or performance of any
of the items included in Paragraph a. or b.
above.

Your work will be deemed completed at the
earliest of the following times:

(1) When all of the work called for in your
contract has been completed.

(2) When all of the work to be done at the
site has been completed if your contract
calls for work at more than one site.

(3) When that part of the work done at a job
site has been put to its intended use by
any person or organization other than
another contractor or subcontractor
working on the same project.

Work that may need service, maintenance, cor-
rection, repair or replacement, but which is oth-
erwise complete, will be treated as completed.

Pollution

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out
of the actual, alleged or threatened discharge,
dispersal, seepage, migration, release or es-
cape of "pollutants™

a. That are, or that are contained in any prop-
erty that is:

(1) Being transported or towed by, handled,
or handled for movement into, onto or
from, the covered "auto",
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(2) Otherwise in the course of transit by or
on behalf of the "insured"; or

(3) Being stored, disposed of, treated or
processed in or upon the covered
"auto";

b. Before the "pollutants” or any property in
which the "pollutants" are- contained are
moved from the place where they are ac-
cepted by the "insured" for movement into
or onto the covered "auto"; or

c. After the "poliutants" or any property in
which the "pollutants" are contained are
moved from the covered "auto" to the place
where they are finally delivered, disposed of
or abandoned by the "insured".

Paragraph a. above does not apply to fuels, lu-
bricants, fluids, exhaust gases or other similar
"pollutants” that are needed for or result from
the normal electrical, hydraulic or mechanical
functioning of the covered "auto” or its parts, if:

(1) The "poliutants" escape, seep, migrate,
or are discharged, dispersed or released
directly from an “auto" part designed by
its manufacturer to hold, store, receive
or dispose of such "pollutants"; and

(2) The "bodily injury”, "property damage" or
"covered pollution cost or expense” does
not arise out of the operation of any
equipment listed in Paragraphs 6.b. and
6.c. of the definition of “mobile equip-
ment".

Paragraphs b. and ¢. above of this exclusion
do not apply to "accidents" that occur away
from premises owned by or rented to an "in-
sured" with respect to "pollutants" not in or
upon a covered "auto" if:

{1) The "pollutants” or any property in which
the "pollutants" are contained are upset,
overturned or damaged as a result of
the maintenance or use of a covered
"auto"; and

(2) The discharge, dispersal, seepage, mi-
gration, release or escape of the "pollut-
ants" is caused directly by such upset,
overturn or damage.

War

“Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising di-
rectly or indirectly out of:

a. War, including undeciared or civil war;

b. Warlike action by a military force, including
action in hindering or defending against an
actual or expected attack, by any govern-
ment, sovereign or other authority using
military personnel or other agents; or
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¢. Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped
power, or action taken by governmental au-
thority in hindering or defending against any
of these.

13. Racing

Covered "autos" while used in any professional
or organized racing or demolition contest or
stunting activity, or while practicing for such
contest or activity. This insurance also does not
apply while that covered “"auto" is being pre-
pared for such a contest or activity.

C. Limit Of Insurance

Regardless of the number of covered “autos”, "in-
sureds", premiums paid, claims made or vehicles
involved in the “accident", the most we will pay for
the total of all damages and "covered pollution
cost or expense" combined, resulting from any
one "accident" is the Limit of Insurance for Liability
Coverage shown in the Declarations.

All "bodily injury", "property damage" and "covered
pollution cost or expense" resulting from continu-
ous or repeated exposure to substantially the
same conditions will be considered as resulting
from one "accident".

No one will be entitled to receive duplicate pay-
ments for the same elements of "loss" under this
Coverage Form and any Medical Payments Cov-
erage Endorsement, Uninsured Motorists Cover-
age Endorsement or Underinsured Motorists Cov-
erage Endorsement attached to this Coverage
Part.

SECTION ill - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE
A. Coverage

1. We will pay for "loss" to a covered "auto" or its
equipment under:

a. Comprehensive Coverage
From any cause except:

(1) The covered "auto's" collision with an-
other object; or

(2) The covered "auto's" overturn.
b. Specified Causes Of Loss Coverage
Caused by:
(1) Fire, lightning or explosion;
{2) Theft;
(3) Windstorm, hail or earthquake;
(4) Flood;
(5) Mischief or vandalism; or

(6) The sinking, burning, collision or derail-
ment of any conveyance transporting
the covered "auto".
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¢. Collision Coverage
Caused by:

" (1) The covered "auto's" collision with an-
other object; or

(2) The covered "auto's" overturn.

2. Towing

We will pay up to the limit shown in the Decla-
rations for towing and labor costs incurred each
time a covered "auto" of the private passenger
type is disabled. However, the labor must be
performed at the place of disablement.

. Glass Breakage — Hitting A Bird Or Animal
- Falling Objects Or Missiles

If you carry Comprehensive Coverage for the
damaged covered "auto"”, we will pay for the fol-
lowing under Comprehensive Coverage:

a. Glass breakage;

b. "Loss" caused by hitting a bird or animal;
and

¢. "Loss" caused by falling objects or missiles.

However, you have the option of having glass
breakage caused by a covered "auto's" colli-
sion or overturn considered a "loss" under Col-
lision Coverage.

4, Coverage Extensions

a. Transportation Expenses

We will pay up to $20 per day to a maxi-
mum of $600 for temporary transportation
expense incurred by you because of the to-
tal theft of a covered "auto" of the private
passenger type. We will pay only for those
covered "autos" for which you carry either
Comprehensive or Specified Causes of
Loss Coverage. We will pay for temporary
transportation expenses incurred during the
period beginning 48 hours after the theft
and ending, regardless of the policy's expi-
ration, when the covered "auto" is returned
to use or we pay for its "loss".

b. Loss Of Use Expenses

For Hired Auto Physical Damage, we will
pay expenses for which an "insured" be-
comes legally responsible to pay for loss of
use of a vehicle rented or hired without a
driver, under a written rental contract or
agreement. We will pay for loss of use ex-
penses if caused by:

(1) Cther than collision only if the Declara-
tions indicate that Comprehensive Cov-
erage is provided for any covered "auto",
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(2) Specified Causes Of Loss only if the
Declarations indicate that Specified
Causes Of Loss Coverage is provided
for any covered "auto"; or

(3) Collision only if the Declarations indicate
that Collision Coverage is provided for
any covered "auto".

However, the most we will pay for any ex-
penses for loss of use is $20 per day, to a
maximum of $600.

B. Exclusions

1. We will not pay for "loss" caused by or resulting
. from any of the following. Such "loss" is ex-

cluded regardless of any other cause or event
that contributes concurrently or in any se-
guence to the "loss".

a. Nuclear Hazard

(1) The explosion of any weapon employing
atomic fission or fusion; or

(2) Nuclear reaction or radiation, or radioac-
tive contamination, however caused.

b. War Or Military Action
(1) War, including undeclared or civil war,;

(2) Warlike action by a military force, includ-
ing action in hindering or defending
against an actual or expected attack, by
any government, sovereign or other au-
thority using military personnel or other
agents; or

(3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution,
usurped power or action taken by gov-
ernmental authority in hindering or de-
fending against any of these.

. We will not pay for "loss" to any covered "auto"

while used in any professional or organized
racing or demolition contest or stunting activity,
or while practicing for such contest or activity.
We will also not pay for "loss" to any covered
"auto" while that covered "auto" is being pre-
pared for such a contest or activity.

. We will not pay for "loss" caused by or resulting

from any of the following unless caused by
other "loss" that is covered by this insurance:

a. Wear and tear, freezing, mechanical or
electrical breakdown.

b. Blowouts, punctures or other road damage
to tires.

. We will not pay for "loss" to any of the follow-

ing:

a. Tapes, records, discs or other similar audio,
visual or data electronic devices designed
for use with audio, visual or data electronic
equipment.
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b. Any device designed or used to detect
speed measuring equipment such as radar
or laser detectors and any jamming appara-
tus intended to eilude or disrupt speed
measurement equipment.

¢. Any electronic equipment, without regard to
whether this equipment is permanently in-
stalled, that receives or transmits audio,
visual or data signals and that is not de-
signed solely for the reproduction of sound.

d. Any accessories used with the electronic
equipment described in Paragraph ec.
above.

Exclusions 4.c. and 4.d. do not apply to:

a. Equipment designed solely for the repro-
duction of sound and accessories used with
such equipment, provided such equipment
is permanently installed in the covered
"auto" at the time of the "loss" or such
equipment is removable from a housing
unit which is permanently installed in the
covered "auto" at the time of the "loss", and
such equipment is designed to be solely
operated by use of the power from the
"auto's" electrical system, in or upon the
covered "auto"; or

b. Any other electronic equipment that is:

{1) Necessary for the normal operation of
the covered "auto" or the monitoring of
the covered "auto's" operating system;
or :

(2) An integral part of the same unit hous-
ing any sound reproducing equipment
described in Paragraph a. above and
permanently installed in the opening of
the dash or console of the covered
"auto” normally used by the manufac-
turer for installation of a radio.

5. We will not pay for "loss" to a covered "auto"

due to "diminution in value".

C. Limit Of Insurance
1. The most we will pay for "lcss" in any one “ac-

cident" is the lesser of:

a. The actual cash value of the damaged or
stolen property as of the time of the "loss”;
or

b. The cost of repairing or replacing the dam-
aged or stolen property with other property
of like kind and quality.

2. An adjustment for depreciation and physical

condition will be made in determining actual
cash value in the event of a total "loss".

3. If a repair or replacement results in better than
like kind or quality, we will not pay for the
amount of the betterment.

D. Deductible

For each covered "auto", our obligation to pay for,
repair, return or replace damaged or stolen prop-
erty will be reduced by the applicable deductible
shown in the Declarations. Any Comprehensive
Coverage deductible shown in the Declarations
does not apply to "loss" caused by fire or lightning.

SECTION IV — BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS

The following conditions apply in addition to the
Common Policy Conditions:

A. Loss Conditions
1. Appraisal For Physical Damage Loss

If you and we disagree on the amount of "loss",
either may demand an appraisal of the "loss".
In this event, each party will select a competent
appraiser. The two appraisers will select a
competent and impartial umpire. The apprais-
ers will state separately the actual cash value
and amount of "loss". If they fail to agree, they
will submit their differences to the umpire. A
decision agreed to by any two will be binding.
Each party will:

a. Pay its chosen appraiser; and

b. Bear the other expenses of the appraisal
and umpire equally.

If we submit to an appraisal, we will still retain
our right to deny the claim.

2. Duties In The Event Of Accident, Claim,
Suit Or Loss

We have no duty to provide coverage under
this policy unless there has been full compli-
ance with the following duties:

a. In the event of "accident", claim, "suit" or
"loss", you must give us or our authorized
representative prompt notice of the "“acci-
dent" or "loss". Include:

(1) How, when and where the "accident" or
"loss" occurred,;

(2) The “insured's" name and address; and

(3) To the extent possible, the names and
addresses of any injured persons and
witnesses.

b. Additionally, you and any other involved
"insured" must:

(1) Assume no cbligation, make no pay-
ment or incur nNo expense without our
consent, except at the "insured's" own
cost.
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(2) Immediately send us copies of any re-
quest, demand, order, notice, summons
or legal paper received concerning the
claim or "suit".

(3) Cooperate with us in the investigation or
settlement of the claim or defense
against the "suit".

{4) Authorize us to obtain medical records
or other pertinent information.

(5) Submit to examination, at our expense,
by physicians of our choice, as often as
we reasonably require.

c. If there is "loss" to a covered "auto" or its
equipment you must also do the following:

(1) Promptly notify the police if the covered
"auto” or any of its equipment is stolen.

(2) Take all reasonable steps to protect the
covered "auto" from further damage.
Also keep a record of your expenses for
consideration in the settlement of the
claim.

(3) Permit us to inspect the covered "auto"
and records proving the "loss" before its
repair or disposition.

(4) Agree to examinations under cath at our
request and give us a signed statement
of your answers.

3. Legal Action Against Us

No one may bring a legal action against us un-
der this Coverage Form until:

a. There has been full compliance with all the
terms of this Coverage Form; and

b. Under Liability Coverage, we agree in writ-
ing that the "insured" has an obligation to
pay or until the amount of that obligation
has finally been determined by judgment af-

- ter trial. No one has the right under this pol-
icy to bring us into an action to determine
the "insured's" liability.

. Loss Payment — Physical Damage

Coverages

At our option we may:

a. Pay for, repair or replace damaged or stolen
property;

b. Return the stolen property, at our expense.

We will pay for any damage that results to
the "auto" from the theft; or

© ISO Properties, Inc., 2005

c. Take all or any part of the damaged or sto-
len property at an agreed or appraised
value.

If we pay for the "loss", our payment will in-
clude the applicable sales tax for the damaged
or stolen property.

. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against

Others To Us

If any person or organization to or for whom we
make payment under this Coverage Form has
rights to recover damages from another, those
rights are transferred to us. That person or or-
ganization must.do everything necessary to
secure our rights and must do nothing after
"accident" or "loss" to impair them.

B. General Conditions
1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the "insured” or the
"insured's" estate will not relieve us of any obli-
gations under this Coverage Form.

. Concealment, Misrepresentation Or Fraud

This Coverage Form is void in any case of
fraud by you at any time as it relates to this
Coverage Form. It is also void if you or any
other "insured", at any time, intentionally con-
ceal or misrepresent a material fact concern-

ing:

a. This Coverage Form;

b. The covered "auto";

c. Your interest in the covered "auto”; or
d. A claim under this Coverage Form.

. Liberalization

If we revise this Coverage Form to provide
more coverage without additional premium
charge, your palicy will automatically provide
the additional coverage as of the day the revi-
sion is effective in your state.

. No Benefit To Bailee — Physical Damage

Coverages '

We will not recognize any assignment or grant
any coverage for the benefit of any person or
organization holding, storing or transporting
property for a fee regardless of any other provi-
sion of this Coverage Form.
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5. Other Insurance

a. For any covered "auto" you own, this Cov-
erage Form provides primary insurance. For
any covered "auto" you don't own, the in-
surance provided by this Coverage Form is
excess over any other collectible insurance.
However, while a covered "auto” which is a
“trailer” is connected to another vehicle, the
Liability Coverage this Coverage Form pro-
vides for the "trailer is:

(1) Excess while it is connected to a motor
vehicle you do not own.

(2) Primary while it is connected to a cov-
ered "auto" you own.

b. For Hired Auto Physical Damage Coverage,
any covered "auto" you lease, hire, rent or
borrow is deemed to be a covered “auto"
you own. However, any “auto" that is
leased, hired, rented or borrowed with a
driver is not a covered "auto".

¢. Regardless of the provisions of Paragraph
a. above, this Coverage Form's Liability
Coverage is primary for any liability as-
sumed under an “insured contract".

d. When this Coverage Form and any other
Coverage Form or policy covers on the
same basis, either excess or primary, we
will pay only our share. Our share is the
proportion that the Limit of Insurance of our
Coverage Form bears to the total of the lim-
its of all the Coverage Forms and policies
covering on the same basis.

6. Premium Audit

a. The estimated premium for this Coverage
Form is based on the exposures you told us
you would have when this policy began. We
will compute the final premium due when
we determine your actual exposures. The
estimated total premium will be credited
against the final premium due and the first
Named Insured will be billed for the bal-
ance, if any. The due date for the final pre-

7. Policy Period, Coverage Territory

Under this Coverage Form, we cover "acci-
dents" and "losses" occurring:

a. During the policy period shown in the Dec-
larations; and

b. Within the coverage territory.
The coverage territory is:
a. The United States of America;

b. The territories and possessions of the
United States of America;

¢. Puerto Rico;
d. Canada; and
e. Anywhere in the world if:

(1) A covered "auto" of the private passen-
ger type is leased, hired, rented or bor-
rowed without a driver for a period of 30
days or less; and

(2) The ‘“insured's" responsibility to pay
damages is determined in a "suit" on
the merits, in the United States of Amer-
ica, the territories and possessions of
the United States of America, Puerto
Rico, or Canada or in a settlement we
agree to.

We also cover "loss" to, or "accidents" involv-
ing, a covered "auto" while being transported
between any of these places.

. Two Or More Coverage Forms Or Policies

Issued By Us

If this Coverage Form and any other Coverage
Form or policy issued to you by us or any com-
pany affiliated with us apply to the same "acci-
dent", the aggregate maximum Limit of Insur-
ance under all the Coverage Forms or policies
shall not exceed the highest applicable Limit of
Insurance under any one Coverage Form or
policy. This condition does not apply to any
Coverage Form or policy issued by us or an af-
filiated company specifically to apply as excess
insurance over this Coverage Form.

mium or retrospective premium is the date
shown as the due date on the bill. If the es-
timated total premium exceeds the final
premium due, the first Named Insured will
get a refund.

b. If this policy is issued for more than one
year, the premium for this Coverage Form
will be computed annually based on our
rates or premiums in effect at the beginning
of each year of the policy.

SECTION V — DEFINITIONS

A. "Accident" includes continuous or repeated expo-
sure to the same conditions resulting in "bodily in-
jury" or "property damage".

B. "Auto" means:

1. A iland motor vehicle, "trailer" or semitrailer de-
signed for travel on public roads; or
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2. Any other land vehicle that is subject to a com-
pulsory or financial responsibility law or other
motor vehicle insurance law where it is licensed
or principally garaged.

However, "auto" does not include "mobile equip-
ment".

. "Bodily injury" means bodily injury, sickness or
disease sustained by a person including death re-
sulting from any of these.

. "Covered pollution cost or expense" means any
cost or expense arising out of:

1. Any request, demand, order or statutory or
regulatory requirement that any “insured" or
others test for, monitor, clean up, remove, con-
tain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in any way
respond to, or assess the effects of "pollut-
ants"; or

2. Any claim or "suit" by or on behaif of a gov-
ernmental autherity for damages because of
testing for, monitoring, cleaning up, removing,
containing, treating, detoxifying or neutralizing,
or in any way responding to or assessing the
effects of "poliutants".

"Covered pollution cost or expense" does not in-
clude any cost or expense arising out of the ac-
tual, alleged or threatened discharge, dispersal,
seepage, migration, release or escape of "pollut-
ants":

a. That are, or that are contained in any prop-
erty that is:

(1) Being transported or towed by, handled,
or handled for movement into, onto or
from the covered "auto";

(2) Otherwise in the course of transit by or
on behalf of the "insured";

(3) Being stored, disposed of, treated or
processed in or upon the covered
"auto"

b. Before the "poliutants" or any property in
which the "pollutants" are contained are
moved from the place where they are ac-
cepted by the "insured" for movement into
or onto the covered "auto"; or

c. After the "pollutants" or any property in
which the "pollutants" are contained are
moved from the covered "auto" to the place
where they are finally delivered, disposed of
or abandoned by the "“insured".

© ISO Properties, Inc., 2005

Paragraph a. above does not apply to fuels, lu-
bricants, fluids, exhaust gases or other similar
"pollutants” that are needed for or result from
the normal electrical, hydraulic or mechanical
functioning of the covered "auto" or its parts, if:

(1) The "pollutants" escape, seep, migrate,
or are discharged, dispersed or released
directly from an "auto" part designed by
its manufacturer to hold, store, receive
or dispose of such "pollutants”; and

(2) The "bodily injury", "property damage" or
"covered pollution cost or expense” does
not arise out of the operation of any
equipment listed in Paragraph 6.b. or
6.c. of the definition of "mobile equip-
ment".

Paragraphs b. and ¢. above do not apply to
"accidents" that occur away from premises
owned by or rented to an "insured" with respect
to "pollutants" not in or upon a covered "auto"
if:

(1) The "pollutants" or any property in which
the “pollutants” are contained are upset,
overturned or damaged as a result of
the maintenance or use of a covered
"auto”; and

(2) The discharge, dispersal, seepage, mi-
gration, release or escape of the "pollut-
ants" is caused directly by such upset,
overturn or damage.

. '"Diminution in value" means the actual or per-

ceived loss in market value or resale value which
results from a direct and accidental "loss".

. "Employee" includes a "leased worker'. "Em-

ployee" does not include a “temporary worker".

. "Insured" means any person or organization quali-

fying as an insured in the Who Is An Insured pro-
vision of the applicable coverage. Except with re-
spect to the Limit of Insurance, the coverage af-
forded applies separately to each insured who is
seeking coverage or against whom a claim or
"suit" is brought.

. "Insured contract" means:

1. A lease of premises;
2. A sidetrack agreement;

3. Any easement or license agreement, except in
connection with construction or demolition op-
erations on or within 50 feet of a railroad;

CA 00 01 03 06
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4. An obligation, as required by ordinance, to in-
demnify a municipality, except in connection
with work for a municipality;

5. That part of any other contract or agreement
pertaining to your business (including an in-
demnification of a municipality in connection
with work performed for a municipality) under
which you assume the tort liability of another to
pay for "bedily injury” or "property damage' to a
third party or organization. Tort liability means a
liability that would be imposed by law in the
absence of any contract or agreement;

6. That part of any contract or agreement entered
into, as part of your business, pertaining to the
rental or lease, by you or any of your "employ-
ees", of any "autc". However, such contract or
agreement shall not be considered an "insured
contract" to the extent that it obligates you or
any of your "employees" to pay for "property
damage" to any "auto" rented or leased by you
or any of your "employees".

An “insured contract" does not include that part of
any contract or agreement:

a. That indemnifies a railroad for "bodily injury"
or “property damage" arising out of con-
struction or demolition operations, within 50
feet of any railroad property and affecting
any railroad bridge or trestle, tracks, road-
beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing; or

b. That pertains to the loan, lease or rental of
an "auto" to you or any of your "employees',
if the "autc" is loaned, leased or rented with
a driver; or

c. That holds a person or organization en-
gaged in the business of transporting prop-
erty by "auto" for hire harmless for your use
of a covered "auto" over a route or territory
that person or organization is authorized to
serve by public authority.

. "Leased worker" means a person leased to you by
a labor leasing firm under an agreement between
you and the labor leasing firm, to perform duties
related to the conduct of your business. "Leased
worker" does not include a "temporary worker".

. "Loss" means direct and accidental loss or dam-

age.
. "Mobile equipment" means any of the following

types of land vehicles, including any attached ma-
chinery or equipment:

1. Bulldozers, farm machinery, forklifts and other
vehicles designed for use principally off public
roads;

2. Vehicles maintained for use solely on or next to
premises you own or rent;

© ISO Properties, Inc., 2005

3. Vehicles that travel on crawler treads;

4. Vehicles, whether self-propelled or not, main-
tained primarily to provide mobility to perma-
nently mounted:

a. Power cranes, shovels, loaders, diggers or
drills; or

b. Road construction or resurfacing equipment
such as graders, scrapers or rollers.

5. Vehicles not described in Paragraph 1., 2., 3.,
or 4. above that are not self-propelled and are
-maintained primarily to provide mobility to per-
manently attached equipment of the following
types.

a. Air compressors, pumps and generators,
including spraying, welding, building clean-
ing, geophysical exploration, lighting and
well servicing equipment; or

b. Cherry pickers and similar devices used to
raise or lower workers.

6. Vehicles not described in Paragraph 1., 2., 3.
or 4. above maintained primarily for purposes
other than the transportation of persons or
cargo. However, self-propelled vehicles with the
following types of permanently attached
equipment are not "mobile equipment"” but will
be considered "autos™:

a. Equipment designed primarily for:
(1) Snow removal,

(2) Road maintenance, but not construction
or resurfacing; or

(3) Street cleaning;

b. Cherry pickers and similar devices mounted
on automobile or truck chassis and used to
raise or lower workers; and

c. Air compressors, pumps and generators,
including spraying, welding, building clean-
ing, geophysical exploration, lighting or well
servicing equipment.

However, "mobile equipment" does not include
land vehicles that are subject to a compulsory or
financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle
insurance law where it is licensed or principally ga-
raged. Land vehicles subject to a compulsory or
financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle
insurance law are considered "autos".

. "Pollutants" means any solid, liquid, gaseous or

thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke,
vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals and
waste. Waste includes materials to be recycled,
reconditioned or reclaimed.

. "Property damage" means damage to or loss of

use of tangible property.
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N. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which:
1. Damages because of "bodily injury" or “prop-
erty damage"; or
2. Acovered pollution cost or expense",
to which this insurance applies, are alleged.
"Suit" includes:

a. An arbitration proceeding in which such
damages or "covered pollution costs or ex-
penses" are claimed and to which the "in-
sured" must submit or does submit with our
consent; or

b. Any other alternative dispute resolution pro-
ceeding in which such damages or '"cov-
ered pollution costs or expenses" are
claimed and to which the insured submits
with our consent.

. '"Temporary worker' means a person who is fur-

hished to you to substitute for a permanent "em-
ployee" on leave or to meet seasonal or short-term
workload conditions.

. "Trailer" includes semitrailer.

Page 12 of 12 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2005 CA 00 01 03 06

O



IL0017 11 98

IL0017 11 98

COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS

A. Cancellation

1. The first Named Insured shown in the Declara-
tions may cancel this pelicy by mailing or deliv-
ering to us advance written notice of cancella-
tion.

2. We may cancel this policy by mailing or deliver-
ing to the first Named Insured written notice of
cancellation at least:

a. 10 days before the effective date of cancel-
lation if we cancel for nonpayment of pre-
mium; or

b. 30 days before the effective date of cancel-
lation if we cancel for any other reason.

3. We will mail or deliver our notice to the first
Named Insured's last mailing address known
to us.

4. Notice of cancellation will state the effective
date of canceliation. The policy period will end
on that date.

5. If this policy is cancelled, we will send the first
Named Insured any premium refund due. If we
cancel, the refund will be pro rata. If the first
Named Insured cancels, the refund may be
less than pro rata. The cancellation will be ef-
fective even if we have not made or offered a
refund.

6. If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be suffi-
cient proof of notice.

. Changes

This policy contains all the agreements between
you and us concerning the insurance afforded.
The first Named Insured shown in the Declarations
is authorized to make changes in the terms of this
policy with our consent. This policy's terms can be
amended or waived only by endorsement issued
by us and made a part of this policy.

. Examination Of Your Books And Records

We may examine and audit your bobks and re-
cords as they relate to this policy at any time dur-
ing the policy period and up to three years after-
ward.

. Inspections And Surveys
1. We have the right to:
a. Make inspections and surveys at any time;

Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1998

All Coverage Parts included in this policy are subject to the following conditions.

b. Give you reports on the conditions we find;

and
c. Recommend changes.

2. We are not obligated to make any inspections,
surveys, reports or recommendations and any
such actions we do undertake relate only to in-
surability and the premiums to be charged. We
do not make safety inspections. We do not un-
dertake to perform the duty of any person or
organization to provide for the health or safety
of workers or the public. And we do not warrant
that conditions:

a. Are safe or healthful; or

b. Comply with laws, regulations, codes or
standards.

3. Paragraphs 1. and 2. of this condition apply
not only to us, but also to any rating, advisory,
rate service or similar organization which
makes insurance inspections, surveys, reports
or recommendations.

4. Paragraph 2. of this condition does not apply to
any inspections, surveys, reports or recom-
mendations we may make relative to certifica-
tion, under state or municipal statutes, ordi-
nances or regulations, of boilers, pressure ves-
sels or elevators.

. Premiums

The first Named Insured shown in the Declara-
tions:

1. Is responsible for the payment of all premiums;
and

2. Will be the payee for any return premiums we
pay.

. Transfer Of Your Rights And Duties Under This

Policy

Your rights and duties under this policy may not
be transferred without our written consent except
in the case of death of an individual named in-
sured.

If you die, your rights and duties will be transferred
to your legal representative but only while acting
within the scope of duties as your legal represen-
tative. Until your legal representative is appointed,
anyone having proper temporary custody of your
property will have your rights and duties but only
with respect to that property.

Page 1 of 1
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY EXCLUSION
ENDORSEMENT

(Broad Form)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

FARM COVERAGE PART

LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY

1. The insurance does not apply:

A. Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily injury"
or "property damage':

()

(2

IL 00 21 07 02

With respect to which an “insured" under
the policy is also an insured under a nu-
clear energy liability policy issued by Nu-
clear Energy Liability Insurance Associa-
tion, Mutual Atomic Energy Liability
Underwriters, Nuclear Insurance Associa-
tion of Canada or any of their successors,
or would be an insured under any such pol-
icy but for its termination upon exhaustion
of its limit of liability; or

Resulting from the "hazardous properties"
of "nuclear material" and with respect to
which (a) any person or organization is re-
quired to maintain financial protection pur-
suant to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or
any law amendatory thereof, or (b) the "in-
sured" is, or had this policy not been issued
would be, entitled to indemnity from the
United States of America, or any agency
thereof, under any agreement entered into
by the United States of America, or any
agency thereof, with any person or organi-
zation.

B. Under any Medical Payments coverage, to
expenses incurred with respect to "bodily in-
jury" resulting from the "hazardous properties"
of "nuclear material' and arising out of the op-
eration of a "nuclear facility" by any person or
organization.

Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily injury"

or "property damage" resulting from "hazard-
ous properties"” of "nuclear material”, if:

(1)

2

&)

© I1SO Properties, Inc., 2001

The "nuclear material" (a) is at any "nuclear
facility" owned by, or operated by or on be-
haif of, an "insured" or (b) has been dis-
charged or dispersed therefrom;

The "nuclear material" is contained in
"spent fuel' or "waste" at any time pos-
sessed, handled, used, processed, stored,
transported or disposed of, by or on behalf
of an "insured"; or

The "bodily injury’" or "property damage"
arises out of the furnishing by an "insured"
of services, materials, parts or equipment in
connection with the planning, construction,
maintenance, operation or use of any "nu-
clear facility", but if such facility is located
within the United States of America, its terri-
tories or possessions or Canada, this ex-
clusion (3) applies only to "property dam-
age" to such "nuclear facility" and any
property thereat.
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2. As used in this endorsement:

"Hazardous properties" includes radioactive, toxic
or explosive properties.

"Nuclear material' means "source material", "Spe-
cial nuclear material" or "by-product material".

"Source material", "special nuclear material”, and
"by-product material" have the meanings given
them in the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 or in any
law amendatory thereof.

"Spent fuel" means any fuel element or fuel com-
ponent, solid or liquid, which has been used or
exposed to radiation in a "nuclear reactor".

"Waste" means any waste material (a) containing
"by-product material" other than the tailings or
wastes produced by the extraction or concentra-
tion of uranium or thorium from any ore processed
primarily for its “source material* content, and (b)
resulting from the operation by any person or or-
ganization of any "nuclear facility" included under
the first two paragraphs of the definition of "nuclear
facility".

"Nuclear facility" means:

(a) Any "nuclear reactor";

(b) Any equipment or device designed or used
for (1) separating the isotopes of uranium or
. plutonium, (2) processing or utilizing "spent
fuel", or (3) handling, processing or packag-

ing "waste";

© SO Properties, Inc., 2001

(c) Any equipment or device used for the proc-
essing, fabricating or alloying of "special
nuclear material" if at any time the total
amount of such material in the custody of
the "insured" at the premises where such
equipment or device is located consists of
or contaings more than 25 grams of pluto-
nium or uranium 233 or any combination
thereof, or more than 250 grams of uranium
235;

(d) Any structure, basin, excavation, premises
or place prepared or used for the storage or
disposal of “waste";

and includes the site on which any of the forego-
ing is located, all operations conducted on such
site and all premises used for such operations.

"Nuclear reactor" means any apparatus designed
or used to sustain nuclear fission in a self-
supporting chain reaction or to contain a critical
mass of fissionable material.

"Property damage" includes all forms of radioac-
tive contamination of property.

IL 00 21 07 02
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NEW YORK CHANGES- LEGAL ACTIONS AGAINST US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM
LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM.
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

PUBLIC ENTITY SELF INSURED RETENTION POLICY

The LEGAL ACTION AGAINST US Conditions (Section I'V) is replace by the following;

LEGAL ACTIONS AGAINST US

No person or organization has a right under this Coverage Part:
a. To join us as a party or otherwise tying us into a “suit” asking for damages from an insured; or
b. To sue on this Coverage Part unless all of its terms have been fully complied with.

A person or organization may use us to recover on an agreed settlement or on a final judgment against an
insured; but we will not be liable for damages that are not payable under the terms of this Coverage Part or
that are in excess of the applicable limit of insurance. An agreed settlement means a settlement and release
of liability signed by us, the insured and the claimant or the claimant’s legal representative.

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged.

NIF 1142 NY 1099



Praetorian Insurance Company

A Stock Company

Commercial Lines Policy

Home Office:
c/fo CT Corporation System

116 Pine Street, Suite 320
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17101

PICI JACKET (12-09)

Administrative Office:

88 Pine Street
Wall Street Plaza
New York, New York 10005

Servicing Office:

500 Park Boulevard, Suite 1350

Itasca, lllinois 60143
(800) 773-9980

Page 1 of 2



This policy consists of: Declarations
Common Policy Conditions
One or more coverage parts.
A coverage part consists of:
— One or mare coverage forms
— Applicable forms and endorsements

Praetorian Insurance Company

In Witness Whereof, we have caused this policy to be executed and attested, and, if required by state law, this
policy shall not be valid unless countersigned by our authorized representative.

Stephen Fitzpatrick Peter T. Maloney
President Secretary

Mt SHotics. Vs 7
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For: New York State Bridge Authority Salerno Brokerage Corp

P.O. Box 1010 117 Oak Drive

Highland, NY 12528 Syosset, NY 11791

(845)691-7245 Ext.310 (516)364-4044
Veh# Cust# Year! Make/ Model Vin Garaged ; Class | Cost New Liab PIP Med UM UN Comp Coll !S!ated Amt
00001| 188 11995 GMC 1GJFG35K4SF543832 !,Catskill NY 7398 20,424 X X X X X:1000 1,000
00002] 159 | 1991 GMC ' 1GDL7E1J2MJ509615 | Beacon NY 31499 60,494 © X X X X X - 1,000 1,000
00003] 192 ; 1996| international i THTSCAAE8TH273960 | Beacon NY 33479 61,949 X X X X X, 1000 :1,000 :
00004, 197 . 1997| international " 1HTSCAAR3VHA39949 "Beacon NY 33479 63,499 X X X X X {1,000 !1,000'
00005 204 !, 1998| International 1HTSCAAR9WH509472 | Beacon NY 33479 63,895 X X X X X . 1000 {1,000 :
00006/ 219 | 1999 intenational 1RT8CAAR4XH669924 ' Beacon NY . 33479 62,260 X X X X X ‘ 1,000 1,000
OOOO?j 235 2000/ International 1HTSCAARIYH258908  Beacon NY 33479 68,890 X X X X X. 1,000 '1,000 i
00008 258 |2001| Dodge 2B4HB15X21K532081 . Beacon NY 7398 16,9805 X X X X X 1,000 ;1,000
00009; 286 2003 Chevrolet . 1GCHK24U03E289801 Beacon NY 01499 21,489 X X X X X :1,000 1,000
00010| 285 '2003| Chevrolet 1GCHK24U13E288916 : Highland NY ‘01499 21489 ° X X X X X 11,000 :1,000.
00011, 289 ' 2003| Chevrolet 1GCHK24U23E295034 : Beacon NY 01499 21,489 X X X X X1i11,000 1,000 l
00012, 291 ; 2003/ Chevrolet 1GBJK34UX3E354441 i Beacon NY 103479 27,552 X X X X X !1,000 . 1,000
00013! 292 {2004i International THTWAAARS4J079761 ' Beacon NY 103479 87,983 X X X X X i 200 250
00014/ 287 :2003! Chevrolet 1GCHK24U03E290883 { Kingston NY 01499 21,489 X X X X X:1000 1,000"
00015/ 288 | 2003! Chevrolet 1GCHK23U53F214586 i Highland NY - 01499 25,415 X X X X X 11,000 1,000
00016] 294 |2005| Chevrolet | 1GCHK24U45E233136 Beacon NY 7398 19,056 X X X X X 200 250 |
00017: 296 2005| Chevrolet . TGCHK24U05E233859 i Highland NY 7398 19,056 X X X X X, 200 250 |
00018/ 180 1994! Ford . 1FDYK82E7EVA27261 : Catskill NY 31479 32,680 X X X X X 1,000 1,000
00019; 218 : 1999| Intemational | 1HTSCAAR2XH669923 | Catskill NY 133479 60,060 X X X X X.1000 {1,000 :
00020| 266 : 2002 Chevrolet " 1GCHK24U52E252654 | Catskill NY 101499 21,839 X X X X X!1,000 ‘1,000
00021/ 282 ;2003 international 1HTWAAAR23J069350 ' Catskill NY 133479 62461 X X X X X | 1,000 1,000
00022/ 283 : 2003] International 1FTWAAAR63J069349 - Beacon NY 1 33479 62,461 . X X X X X :!1,000 1,000
00023 284 '2003; Ford 1FDXF46S23EA49250 Highland NY 133499 58,910 X X X X X 1000 '1,000-
00024] 290 2003! Chevrolet - 1GCHK24U63E297319 01499 21489 1 X X X X X 1000 . 1,000
00025; 173 * 1993| Ford  1FDYK82E3PVA14116 | Kingston NY . 33479 52,584 X X X X X. 1,000 :1,000
00026 185 ' 1994/ Chevrolet . 1GBL7H1J4RJ103271 . Kingston NY 33479 60,956 . X X X X X 1,000 {1,000 |
00027! 217 | 1999| International | 1HTSCAAROXH669922 ' Fort Montgomery NY ' 33479 62260 : X X X X X | 1,000 ‘1,000 :
00028] 233 | 1999| Chevrolet { 1GCK24R3XF092435 ! Kingston NY 01499 22498 X X X X X 1,000 {1,000
00029 234 ‘ 2000 international " 1HTSCAAROYH258909 ! Kingston NY 133479 68,890 X X X X X:1,000 {1,000 ;
00030 241 ! 2000! Chevrolet - 1GBJK34ROYE500468 ; Kingston NY . 03479 28809 X X X X X, 1,000 ‘1,000:
00031/ 256 | 2001! Dodge . 2B4HB15K41K532079 I Kingston NY 101499 16805 X X X X X {1,000 1,000
00032] . 261 | 2002, International . INT8CAAB12H516989 Kingston NY . 33479 68831 1 X X X X X 1,000 1,000
00033 263 |2002| Chevrolet  1GCHK24U022252626 Kingston NY 01499 21839 X X X X X 1,000 ‘1,000
00034 268 {2002[ Chevrolet . 1GCHK24UX22252679 . Kingston NY 01499 2183 X X X X X 1,000 1,000
00035 181 ; 1994:‘ Chevrolet ' 1GBLTH1J6HJ104812 ' Highland NY 31499 25,420 X X X X X 1,000 ;1,000
00036/ 203 l 1998| Intemational . 1HTSCAAR7TWH509471 Highland NY 1 33479 63895 X X X X X6 1,000 '1,000 ]
00037‘ 216 | 1999] International 1HTSCAARIXH669921 ! Highland NY 1 33479 61,960 ;. X X X X X' 1,000 f 1,000 !
00038 248 : 2001| Chevrolet : 2G1WH55K319250987 ! Highland NY 7398 2335 ¢ X X X X X 1,000 1,000
000391‘ 246 ' 2000| Chevrolet : 1GBJK34R1YF500626 Highland NY 03479 25874 1 X X X X X 1,000 :1,000:

H : i ; | L H ! ;




For: New York State Bridge Authority

Salerno Brokerage Corp

P.O. Box 1010 117 Oak Drive
Highland, NY 12528 Syosset, NY 11791
(845)691-7245 Ext.310 (516)364-4044
7 - - T
Veh# Cust# Year: Make/ Model Vin Garaged : Class . Cost New Liab PIP Med UM UN Comp Coll 'Stated Amt
1 L L
00040i 244 | 2001! International i 1HTSCAARX1H343570 Highland NY 133479 | 70279 ¢ X X X X X 1,000 1,000
00041| 257 1 2001 Dodge 2B4HB15X01K532080 ! Highland NY 7398 1 16005 X X X X X 1,000 1,000
00042/ 259 | 2001! Dodge ; 2B4GT44L31R342211 I Highland NY 17398 22982 X X X X X 1,000 :1,000
00043![ 271 1 2002; Chevrolet : 1GNDT13W22K202898 I Highland NY 7398 21,083 X X X X X 1,000 1,000
00044 295 .2005; Chevrolet : 1GCHK24U35E235282 i Highland NY 7398 19,056 X X X X X 200 © 250
00045 297 |2005! Ford " 1FMYU96H95KD29974 I Highland NY 1 7398 25,607 X X X X X 200 250
00046, 298 2005 Jeep 1J4HR48N15C596753 : Highland NY 17398 21,030 ; X X X X X 1,000 : 1,000
00047‘] 279 ' 2002| Chevrolet . 1GCDL19X32B152084 Highland NY 7398 19457 X X X X X 1,000 1,000
00048; 281 | 2002! Chevrolet 1 1GCDL19X52B151454 . Highland NY 7398 19457 ¢ X X X X X 1,000 . 1,000
00049! 252 ' 2001! Chevrolet/Pick-Up - 1GCHK24U01E282084 i Highland NY 01499 22168 . X X X X X 1,000 :1,000
00050] 293 2005’; Honda * JHMES96615S8001717 i Highland NY 7398 23000 X X X X X' 200 - 250
00051 245 “ 2001/ International . THTSCAAR11H343571 ' Beacon NY 133479 70279 0 X X X X X 1,000 1,000
00052 255 |2001| Chevrolet 1GCHK24U31K283116 Fort Montgomery NY ' 01499 22168 ¢ X X X X X '1,000 1,000
00053} 274 2002| Chevrolet | 1GBJK34U92E219787 . Fort Montgomery NY © 03479 27,161 1 X X X X X ' 1,000 ‘1,000
00054 260 : 2002i International | 1THTSCAAK82H516990 ! Fort Montgomery NY , 33479 68,885 X X X X X i 1,000 1,000
00055/ 275 | 2002/ Chevrolet/Blazer 1 1GNDT13W62K208929 Fort Montgomery NY ' 7398 21,083 X X X X X 1,000 '1,000
00056; 300 | 2006 International/4300 . 1THTMMAARX6H287529 . Catskill NY 33479 1156273 . X X X X X 200 250
00057, 302 |2006| Chevrolet/Pickup ' 1GCHK24UX6E233191 ‘ Catskill NY 01499 19127 X X X X X 200 250
00058/ 303 | 2006| Chevrolet/Pickup 1GCHK24U46E231727 Kingston NY 01499 19,127 X X X X X . 200 250
00059| 304 :2006| Chevrolet/Pickup 1GCHK24U06E231501 | Beacon NY 101499 19,127 X X X X X 200 | 250
00060 305 ‘ 2006/ Chevrolet/Pickup - 1GCHK23U86F228230 | Beacon NY 01499 23,147 X X X X X, 200 250 |
00061/ 306 : 2006/ Chevrolet/Cargo Van " 1GCFH5T861235339 | Highland NY 101499 21,433 X X X X X: 200 : 250
00062! 307 ‘2007 International/7400 1HTWDAZR17J462029 ) 31499 102,882 ° X X X X X' 200 250
00063/ 311 , 2008, Ford/F250 1FTNF21508EC11515 + Highland NY 101499 18,500 © X X X X X 200 250
00064 312 | 2008 Ford/F250 1FTNF21528EC11516 Fort Montgomery NY : 01499 18500 ' X X X X X 200 250
00065/ 310 | 2008 Ford/F250 "1FTNF21598EC11514 Kingston NY 01499 18,500 X X X X X, 200 i 250
00066; 308 ' 2008, Ford/F250 : 1FTNF21558EC11512 Beacon NY 01499 18500 1 X X X X X 200 ; 250
00067 309 2008 Ford/F250 : 1FTNF21578EC11513 Highland NY 101499 | 18,500 X X X X X| 200 250
00068: 313 ‘ 2008| Ford/F250 1FTSW21558EC56646 " Catskill NY ‘01499 | 22,700 X X X X X, 200 250 |
00069] 314 ' 2008| Chevroletimpala : 2G1WB58K481212707 Highland NY 7398 15,770 X X X X X. 200 - 250
00070/ 315 .2008! Ford/F250 | 1FTNF21528ED78894 | Catskill NY 01499 19,079 X X X X X 200 : 250
00071: 316 2008, Ford/F250 { 1FTNF21588ED78896 i Catskill NY : 01499 19,079 X X X X X' 200 i 250
000721' 317  2008! Ford/F250 + 1FTNF21588ED78897 ! Beacon NY 01499 19,079 X X X X X: 200 250 !
00073; 318 '2008 Ford/F250 1FTNF21548ED78895 . Fort Montgomery NY ! 01499 19,079 X X X X X:. 200 250
00074 322 {2009 International/5600 1HTXHAHT89J058606 Beacon NY 140499 600,000 X X X X X 15000 5,000
00075‘; 319 12008/ Ford/F450 : 1FDXF4708EE16527 Catskill NY 21479 38,227 X X X X X 200 250
00076 320 | 2008 Ford/F450 " 1FDXF477BEE16525 Highland NY 121479 38,227 X X X X X 200 250
00077! 321 2008 Ford/F450 1FDXF479BEE 16526 Fort Montgomery NY | 21479 38,227 X X X X X 200 1 250 |
323 - 1FMCUS59359KA51286 Highland NY 7398 25,104 X X X X X° 200 ' 250

00078

:2009! Ford/Escape




For: New York State Bridge Authority Salerno Brokerage Corp

P.O. Box 1010 117 Oak Drive

Highland, NY 12528 Syosset, NY 11791

(845)691-7245 Ext.310 (516)364-4044
Vehit Cust# Year! Make/ Model : Vin Garaged i Class . CostNew Liab PIP Med UM UN Comp Coll |Stated Amt
00079} 324 | 2009! Ford/Escape 1FMCU59379KA61287 Highland NY 7398 | 25404 1 X X X X X 200 1250 "’
00080: 325 ' 2009| Ford/Escape . 1FMCU59399KA61288 i Highland NY 17398 25104 ¢ X X X X X 200 @ 250
00081 326 |2009| Ford/F550 ' 1FDADF56R78EE09998 | Fort Montgomery NY ~ 21499 90,000 ¢ X X X X X: 200 250 ¢
00082 - 299 | 2005 Chevrolet/Impala | 2G1WF52E959288959 i Highland NY 01499 15,012+ X X X X X 200 , 250
00083] 330 |2010! Dodge/Caravan 2D4RN4DE8BAR487741 i Highland NY 7398 19,000 X X X X X 200 @ 250°
00084! 331 . 2011; Chevrolet/Impala ' 2G1WF5EK8B1167240 Highland NY 7398 17000 X X X X X 200 i 250!
00085: 333 '2011! Ford/Escape 1FMCU9DG8BKAB7804 " Highland NY 17398 20,000 X X X X X 200 ' 250




COMMON POLICY - DECLARATIONS

Renewal of Policy ﬂ /
e lrle

(’ H631-000068-02 ) Praetorian Insurance Company
500 Park Boulevard, Suite 1350
Policy No. Itasca, IHinois 60143

H631-000068-03 D

Named Insured and Mailing Address Agent

(No., Street, Town or City, County, State, Zip Codc)

NY State Bridge Authority NIF Governmental Services, Inc.
Mid Hudson Bridge Plaza 103 Spring Valley Road
Highland, NY 12528 Montvale, NJ 07645

12:01 A.M. Standard Time at your mailing

Policy Period: From 08/01/10 to 08/01/11 address shown above. (Unless changed by
( ) ( ) the Section Declarations.)

Business Description: Special District

IN RETURN FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PREMIUM, AND SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS OF THIS POLICY, WE AGREE WITH YOU
TO PROVIDE THE INSURANCE AS STATED IN THIS POLICY. '
THIS POLICY CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING COVERAGE PARTS FOR WHICH A PREMIUM IS INDICATED. THIS PREMIUM MAY
BE SUBJECT TO ADJUSTMENT.
PREMIUM
Commercial Property Coverage Form $ NOT APPLICABLE
Commercial Crime Coverage Form $ NOT APPLICABLE
Commercial Inland Marine Coverage Form $ NOT APPLICABLE
Commercial General Liability Coverage Form $ NOT APPLICABLE
Commercial Auto Coverage Form : $ NOT APPLICABLE
Law Enforcement Liability Coverage Form $9,070
Employee Benefit Liability Coverage Form $ NOT APPLICABLE
Equipment Breakdown Coverage Form $ NOT APPLICABLE
TOTAL $9.070
Premium shown is payable $ 9,070 ‘at inception; $ 1 Anniversary; §$ 2" Anniversary; $
Form(s) and Endorsement (s) made a part of this policy at time of issuance* :PIC Jacket(12/09), NIF 1105, 1L 0021(07/02), 11. 06017(11/98)
NIF 1142NY.
*Omits applicable Forms and Endorsements if shown in specific Coverage Part/Coverage Form Declarations. )
Cauntersigned: -
By: ¥k
Issue Date: 08/04/10

Authorized Representative

THESE DECLARATIONS TOGETHER WITH THE COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS, COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS,
COVERAGE PART COVERAGE FORM(S) AND FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS, IF ANY, [SSUED TO FORM A PART
THEREOF, COMPLETE THE ABOVE NUMBERED POLICY.

NIF 1091 0299



Declaration

GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE /
LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM
- DECLARATIONS

Effective Date 08/01/10 ' Policy No. H631-000068-03

Schedule of Coverages

Limit of Insurance

X  General Liability:
Each Occurrence Limit $  wNa
Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $ wA
Products-Completed Operations, Aggregate Limit $ wa
Fire Damage Limit 5 wa
Medical Expense Limit § wa

X  Law Enforcement Liability:
Each Occurrence Limit $ 1,000,000
Medical Expense Limit $

General Aggregate Limit:

(Law Enforcement and General Liability including $

_products and completed operations)

[ ] Stop Loss Aggregate:

Insurance is provided only for the coverage indicated by an x and for which a specific limit is shown.

General Liability:
Primary [] Deductible $ N/A per [] claimor [] occurrence
Excess [] Self-insured retention $ per occurrence
Law Enforcement Liability:
X Primary X Deductible £ 5000 per [] claimor X occurrence
Excess [] Self-insured retention $ per occurrence

Forms and Endorsements: NIF 1043, NIF 1013L, NIF 1156, CG2170(11/02)
CG0062(12/02).

Premium § included |:] Deposit X Non-Adjustable

NIF 1105 03/99



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 00 62 12 02

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
WAR LIABILITY EXCLUSION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. Exclusion i. under Paragraph 2., Exclusions of B. The following exclusion is added to Paragraph 2.,

Section | — Coverage A — Bodily Injury And Exclusions of Section | — Coverage B — Per-
Property Damage Liability is replaced by the fol- sohal And Advertising Injury Liability:
lowing: 2, Exclusions
2. Exclusions This insurance does not apply to:
This insurance does not apply to: WAR
i. War

] "Personal and advertising injury", however
"Bodily injury" or "property damage", how- caused, arising, directly or indirectly, out of:

ever caused, arising, directly or indirectly, a. War, including undeclared or civil war; or

out of:
. . . ) b. Warlike action by a military force, includin
(1) War, including undeclared or civil war, action in hindering or defending against ar%
or actual or expected attack, by any govern-
(2) Warlike action by a military force, inciud- ment, sovereign or other authority using
ing action in hindering or defending military personnel or other agents; or

against an actual or expected attack, by
any government, sovereign or other au-
thority using military personnel or other
agents; or

(3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, c
usurped power, or action taken by gov-
ernmental authority in hindering or de-
fending against any of these.

¢. Insurrection, rebellion; revolution, usurped
power, or action taken by governmental au-
thority in hindering or defending against any
of these.

. Exclusion h. under Paragraph 2., Exclusions of
Section | — Coverage C — Medical Payments
does not apply. Medical payments due to war are
now subject to Exclusion g. of Paragraph 2.,
Exclusions of Section | — Coverage C —
Medical Payments since "badily injury” arising
out of war is now excluded under Coverage A.

'CG 00621202 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2002 Page 1 of 1



POLICY NUMBER: COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 2170 11 02

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY

With respect to any one or more "certified acts of
terrorism", we will not pay any amounts for which we
are not responsible under the terms of the federal
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 (including sub-
sequent acts of Congress pursuant to the Act) due to
the application of any clause which results in a cap on
our liability for payments for terrorism losses.

"Certified act of terrorism" means an act that is certi-
fied by the Secretary of the Treasury, in concurrence
with the Secretary of State and the Attorney General
of the United States, to be an act of terrorism pursu-
ant to the federal Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of
2002. The federal Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of
2002 sets forth the following criteria for a “certified act

of terrorism'":

1. The act resulted in aggregate losses in ex-
cess of $5 million; and

2. The act is a violent act or an act that is dan-

gerous to human life, property or infrastructure
and is committed by an individual or individuals
acting on behalf of any foreign person or foreign
interest, as part of an effort to coerce the civilian
population of the United States or to influence the
policy or affect the conduct of the United States
Government by coercion.

CG 217011 02 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2002 Page 1 of 1
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ASBESTOS LIABILITY ABSOLUTE EXCLUSION
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM
The following additional exclusion applies to the Law Enforcement Liability Coverage Form.

This insurance does not apply to "loss" from “claims” caused by, resulting from or arising out
of:

1. asbestos, asbestos fibers or asbestos products or to any obligation of the insured to
indemnify another and/or contribute with another because of damages arising out of, or
as a result of such “loss™;

2. any supervision, instructions, recommendations, notices, warnings or advice given or
which should have been given in connection with the manufacturing, selling and/or
distributing of asbestos, asbestos fibers or asbestos products or products containing
asbestos;

3. removal of asbestos or products containing asbestos including:

a. cost of asbestos removal and replacement with other fire retardant materials

b. property damage in the course of removing asbestos, asbestos fibers or asbestos products.

In addition, we shall not be obligated to investigate, to pay any claim or judgment or to defend any
such “claim”.

NIF 1013L



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EXCLUSION - LEAD OR LEAD BASED PAINT

This insurance does not apply to “bodily injury”, “personal injury” or “property damage” caused by,
contributed to, resulting from or arising out of:

1. lead paint, or lead based paint, or to any obligation of the insured to indemnify another and/or
contribute with another because of damages arising out of, or as a result of such “bodily injury”,
“personal injury” or “property damage”.

2. removal of lead paint, or lead based paint, including;
a. cost of lead paint, or lead based paint, removal or encapsulation.
b. “property damage” in the course of removing lead paint or lead based paint.

In addition, we shall not be obligated to investigate, to pay any claim or judgment or to defend any suit for
“pbodily injury”, “personal injury” or “property damage" caused by, contributed to, resulting from or arising
out of lead paint or lead based paint.

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged.

NIF 1156 0500



LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Policy:

Throughout this policy, the words “you,” “your” and "Named Insured' refer to the entity identified as the
“Named Insured” in the Declarations. The words "Insured” or "Insureds” refer to any person or entity qualifying
as an “Insured” under SECTION II - WHO IS AN INSURED. The words “we,” “us,” “our” and "Company”
refer to the Company stated in the Declarations as providing this insurance.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks have special meanings. Refer to SECTION V-
DEFINITIONS and other provisions of this policy for such meanings.

SECTIONI- COVERAGES

COVERAGE A. BODILY INJURY, PROPERTY DAMAGE AND PERSONAL INJURY

1. Insuring Agreement

We will pay those sums that the insured is legally obligated to pay as damages because of "bodily injury,”
“property damage,” or “personal injury” to which this insurance applies. We will have the right and duty to
defend any "suit" seeking those damages. We may at our discretion investigate any “occurrence” and settle any

claim or “suit” that may result. But:

a. The amount we will pay for damages is limited as described in SECTION III - LIMITS OF
INSURANCE; and

b. Our right and duty to defend end when we have used up the applicablelimit of insurance in the payment
of judgments or settlements under Coverage A or medical expenses under Coverage B. No other obligation
or liability to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered unless explicitly provided for under
SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS - COVERAGE A.

c¢. This insurance applies to "bodily injury,” “personal injury," "property damage” and only if:

(1) The ”bodily injury,” “property damage™ or “personal injury” is caused by an "occurrence” that takes
place in the “coverage temritory”; and

(2) The "bodily injury,”, "property damage” or “personal injury” occurs during the policy period.

d. Damages because of “bodily injury” include damages claimed by any person or organization for care,
loss of services or death resulting at any fime from the "bodily injury.”

2. Exclusions
This insurance does not apply to:
a. Expected or Intended Injilry

"Bodily injury” or “property damage” expected or intended from the standpoint of the insured. This
exclusion does not “apply to “bodily injury” resulting from the use of reasonable force to protect persons or

property.
b. Contractual Liability

"Bodily injury,” “property damage,” or “personal injury” for which the insured is obligated to pay
NIF 1043 0399 Page 1 of 12



damages by reason of the assumption of liability in a contract agreement. This exclusion does not apply to
liability for damages:

(1) Assumed in any joint powers or mutual law enforcement agreements, or
(2) That the insured would have in the absence of the contract or agreement.
c. Workers Compensation

Any obligation of the insured under a workers compensation, disability benefits or unemployment
compensation law or any similar law.

d. Employers Liability
“Bodily injury*“‘or “personal injury” to:
(1) An employee of the insured arising out of and in the course of employment by the insured; or

@) Any volunteer, including but not limited to firemen or policemen, arising out of, and in the course of
their duties for you;

3) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of that employee as a consequencé of (1) or (2) above.
This exclusion applies
(1) Whether the insured may be liable as an employer or in any other capacity; and

(2) To any obligation to share damages with or repay someone else who must pay damages because of the
"bodily injury”.

As respects volunteers, this exclusion does not apply to liability assumed by the insured under an “insured contract”
¢. Violation of Statute

(1) "Bodily injury,” “property damage” or “personal injury” arising out of the willful violation of a penal
statute or ordinance committed by or with the knowledge or consent of any insured.

2) "Bodily injury," "property damage," or "personal injury” arising out of any act(s) of fraud committed
by or at the direction of the insured.

3) "Bodily injury,” "property damage," or "personal injury" by any insured who is acting outside the scope
of such employment.

f. Pollution

(1) "Bodily injury," "property damage," or “personal injury” arising out of the actual, alleged or threatened
discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, release or escape of pollutants.

(a) At or from any premises, site or location which is or was at any time owned or occupied by, or
rented or leased to, any insured,

(b) At or from any premises, éite or location which is or was at any time used by or for any insured or
others for the handling, storage, disposal, processing or treatment of waste;

(c) Which are or were at any time transported, handled, stored, treated, disposed of or processed as
waste by or for any insured or any person or organization for whom you may be legally responsible;

NIF 1043 0399 Page 2 of 12



or

(d) At or from any premises, site or location on which any insured or any contractors or subcontractors
working directly or indirectly on any insured's behalf are perfonming operations:

(M If the pollutants are brought on or to the premises site or location in connection with such
operations by such insured, contractor or subcontractor; or

(i) The operations are to test for, monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or
in any way respond to, or assess the effects of pollutants.

Subparagraph (dXi) does not apply to “bodily injury” or “property damage™ arising out of the escape of fuels, lubricants
or other operating fluids which are needed to perform the normal electrical, hydraulic or mechanical functions necessary
for the operation of “mobile equipment™ or its parts, if such fuels, lubricants or other operating fluids escape from

a vehicle designed to hold, store or receive them. This exception does not apply if the fuels, lubricants or other operating
fluids are intentionally discharged, dispersed or released, or if such fuels, lubricants or other operating fluids are brought
on or to the premises, site or location with the intent to be discharged, dispersed, or released as part of the operations
being performed by such insured, contractor or subcontractor.

Subparagraphs (a) and (d)(i) do not apply to "bodily injury”, “property damage" or “personal injury”
arising out of heat, smoke or fumes from a hostile fire.

As used in this exclusion, a hostile fire means one which becomes uncontrollable or breaks out from
where it was intended to be.

(2) Any loss, cost or expense arising out of any:

(a) Request, demand or order that any insured or others test for, monitor, clean up, remove, contain,
treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in any way respond to, or assess the effects of pollutants; or

(b) Claim or suit by or on behalf of a governmental authority for damages because of testing for,
monitoring, cleaning up, removing, containing, treating, detoxifying or neutralizing, or in any way

responding to, or assessing the effects of pollutants.

Pollutants means any solid, liquid, gaseous or thermal imitant or contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot,
fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals and weste. Waste includes materials to be recycled, reconditioned or reclaimed.

g. Aircraft, Auto or Watefcraft
"Bodily injury,” "property damage,” or "personal injury” arising out of the ownership, maintenance, use or
entrustment to others of any aircraft, “auto” or watercraft owned or operated by or rented or loaned to any
insured. Use includes operation and "loading or unloading.” :
This exclusion does not apply to:
(1) A watercraft while ashore or on premises you own or rent;
(2) A watercraft you do not own that is:
(a) Less than 26 feet long; and
(b) Not being used to carry persons or property for a charge;
h. Property Damage

"Property damage" to:
NIF 1043 0399 Page 3 of 12



(1) Property you own, rent or occupy;

(2) Remises you sell, give away or abandon, if the property damage" arises out of any part of those
premises;

(3) Property loaned to you,
(4) Personal property in the care, custody or control of the insured.

This exclusion does not apply to personél property held by the insured as a result of seizure, confiscation or
while being held as evidence.

(5) That particular part of real property on which you or any contractors or subcontractors working
directly or indirectly on your behalf are performing operations, if the property damage' arises out of
those operations.

i. Employment Practices

"Bodily injury," "property damage,” or “personal injury” arising out of any:
(1) Refusal to employ;
(2) Termination of employment;

(3) Coercion, demotion, evaluation, reassignment, discipline, defamation, harassment, humiliation,
discrimination or other employment-related practices, policies, acts or omissions; or

(4) Consequential "bodily injury” as a result of (1) through (3) above.
COVERAGE B. MEDICAL PAYMENTS
1. Insuring Agreement
a. We will pay medical expenses as described below for "bodily injury caused by an accident:
(1) On premises you own or rent;,
(2) On ways next to premises you own or rent; or
(3) Because of your operations;
provided that:
(1) The accident takes place in the “coverage temritory” and during the policy period;
(2) The expenses are incurred and reported to us within one year of the date of the accident; and

(@) The injured person submits to examination, at our expense, by physicians of our choice as often
as we reasonably require.

b. We will make these payments regardless of fault. These payments will not exceed the applicable limit
of insurance. We will pay reasonable expenses for: '

(1) First aid at the time of an accident;

NIF 1043 0399

Page 4 of 12



(2) Necessary medical, surgical, x-ray and dental services, including prosthetic devices; and
. (3) Necessary ambulance, hospital, professional musing and funeral services.

2. Exclusions
We will not pay expenses for "bodily injury”:
a. To any insured.
b. To a person hired to do work for or on behalf of any insured or a tenant of any insured.
¢ To a person injured on that part of premises you own or rent that the person normally occupies.

d. To a person, whether or not an employee of any insured, if benefits for the "bodily injury” are
payable or must be provided under a workers' compensation or disability benefits law or a similar

law.
e. To a person injured while taking part in athletics.

f. To any inmate, patient or prisoner who is being treated, cared for, detained or imprisoned in any
of the facilities owned and operated by you.

SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS - COVERAGE A
We will pay with respect to any claim or "suit” we defend:
1. All expenses we incur.

2. The cost of bonds to release attachments, but only for bond amounts within the applicable limit of
insurance. We do not have to furnish these bonds.

3. All reasonable expenses incurred by the insured at our request to assist us in the investigation or defense
of the claim or “suit”, including actual loss of eamings up to $250 a day because of time off from work.

4. All costs taxed against the insured in the “suit.”

5. Prejudgment interest awarded against the insured on that part of the judgment we pay. If we make an
offer to pay the applicable limit of insurance, we will not pay any prejudgment interest based on that
period of time after the offer. '

6. All interest on the full amount of any judgment that accrues after entry of the judgment and before we
have paid, offered to pay, or deposited in court the part of the judgment that is within the applicable

limit of insurance. :
These payments will not reduce the limits of insurance.

SECTION I - WHO IS AN INSURED

1. The term insured as used herein means the entity in the Declarations as the Named Insured and except as
excluded by endorsement to this policy:

a. The police department, sheriffs department, law enforcement department or any other law
enforcement agency of the named insured,

b. An elected or appointed official or a member of any board or commission, but solely while acting

NIF 1043 0399
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within the scope of their duties as such;

¢. Any insured full or part time law enforcement officer, volunteer or auxiliary but solely while acting
within the scope of such authorized duties and at your direction;

d. Anindividual acting in the capadty as a director, officer, trustee, employee or staff member of your
law enforcement department;

" e. A volunteer, but solely while acting within the scope of such duties and at your direction;

f. Your employee(s) while engaged in law enforcement or security duties for others, but only to the
extent such is authorized by you and then only while acting within the scope of such duties.

However, with the exception of the activities of any insured identified in b, c, or d above, performing as an emergency
medical technician, no employee will be considered an insured for any claims arising out of providing or failing to
provide professional health care services.
g. Any person or organization required to be an insured in any joint powers or mutual law enforcement agreement.
2. With respect to "mobile equipment” registered in your name under any motor vehicle registration law, any

person is an insured while driving such equipment along a public highway with your permission. Any

other person or organization responsible for the conduct of such person is also an insured, but only with

respect to liability arising out of the operation of the equipment, and only if no other insurance of any kind

is available to that person or organization for this liability. However, no person or organization is an

insured with respect to:

a. "Bodily injury” or "personal injury" to a volunteer, worker or co-employee of the person driving
the equipment; or

b. "Property damage" to property owned by, rented to, in the charge of or occupied by you or the employer of any
person who is an insured under this provision.

No person or organization is an insured with respect to the conduct of any current or past partnership or
joint venture that is not shown as a Named Insured in the Declarations.

SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE

1. The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations and the rules below fix the most we will pay
regardless of the number of:

a. Insureds;
b. Claims or “suits" brought; or
¢. Persons or organizations making claims or bringing “suits.”
2. The General Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for the sum of
a, Damages under Coverage A; and
b. Medical expenses under Coverage B.
3. Subject to 2. above, the Each Occuirence Limit is the most we will pay for the sum of:

a. Damages under Coverage A; and
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b. Medical expenses under Coverage B
Because of “ bodily injury” and “property damage” arising out of any one “occurrence.”

4. Subject to 3. above, the Medical Expense Limit is the most we will pay under Coverage B for all
medical expenses because of “bodily injury” sustained by any one “occurrence.”

The limits of this coverage part apply separately to each consecutive annual period and to
any remaining period of less than 12 months, starting with the beginning of the policy period shown in

the Declarations, unless the policy period is extended after issuance for an additional period of less
than 12 months. In that case, the additional period will be deemed part of the preceding period for

purposes of determining the Limits of Insurance.
SECTION IV - LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY CONDITIONS

1. Duties In The Event Of Occurrence, Claim Or Suit

a. You must see to it that we are notified as soon as practicable of an “occurrence” or an offense which may
result in a claim. To the extent possible, notice should include:

(1) How, when and where the “occurrence” or offense took place;
(2) The names and addresses of any injured persons and witnesses; and
(3) The nature and location of any injury or damage arising out of the “occuirence” or offense.

b. If a claimis made or “suit” is brought against any insured, you must:

(1) Immediately record the specifics of the claim or “suit” and the date received, and

(2) Notify us as soon as practicable.

You must see to it that we receive written notice of the claim or "suit” as soon as practicable.

¢. You and any other involved insured must:

(1) Immediately send us copies of any demands, notices, surnmonses or legal papers received in
connection with the claim or "suit";

(2) Authorize us to obtain records and other information;

(3) Cooperate with us in the investigation, setttement or ~ defense of the claim or "suit”; and

(4) Assist us, upon our request, in the enforcement of any right against any person or organization
which may be liable to the insured because of injury or damage to which this insurance may also

apply.

d. No insureds will, except at their own cost, voluntarily make a payment, assumme any obligation, or incur
any expense, other than for first aid, without our consent.

2. Legal Action Against Us
No person or organization has aright under this Coverage Part:

a. To join us as a party or otherwise bring us into a “suit” asking for damages from an insured; or

NIF 1043 0399
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b. To sue us under this Coverage Part unless all of its terms have been fully complied with.

A person or organization may sue us to recover on an agreed settlement or on a final judgment against an
insured obtained after an actual trial; but we will not be liable for damages that are not payable under the terms
of this Coverage Part or that are in excess of the applicable limit of insurance. An agreed settlement means a
settlement and release of liability signed by us, the insured and the claimant or the claimant's legal
representative.

3. Other insurance

If other valid and collectible insurance is available to the insured for a loss we cover under this Coverage Part,
our obligations are limited as follows:

a. Primary Insurance
This insurance is primary except when b. below applies. If this insurance is primary, our obligations
are not affected unless any of the other insurance is also primary. Then, we will share with all that
other insurance by the method described in c. below.

b. Excess Insurance

This insurance is excess over any of the other insurance, whether primary, excess, contingent or on any
other basis:

(1) That is Fire insurance for premises rented to you; or

(2) If the loss arises out of the maintenance or use of aircraft, "autos” or watercraft to the extent not
subject to Exclusion h. of Coverage A (Section I).

‘When this insurance is excess we will have no duty under Coverage A to defend any claim or “suit" that
any other insurer has a duty to defend. If no other insurer defends, we will undertake to do so but we
will be entitled to the insured's rights against all those other insurers.

‘When this insurance is excess over other insurance, we will pay only our share of the amount of the loss,
if any, that exceeds the sum of:

(1) The total amount that all such other insurance would pay for the loss in the absence of this insurance;
and

(2) The total of all deductible and self-insured amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, with any other insurance that is not described in this Excess
Insurance provision and was not bought specifically to apply in excess of the Limits of Insurance shown
in the Declarations of this Coverage Part.

¢. Method of Sharing

If all of the other insurance permits contribution by equal shares, we will follow this method also. Under
this approach each insurer contributes equal amounts until it has paid its applicable limit of insurance or
none of the loss remains, whichever comes first.

If any of the other insurance does not permit contribution by equal shares, we will contribute by limits.
Under this method, each insurer’s share is based on the ratio of its applicable limit of insurance to the total
applicable limits of insurance of all insurers.

4. Bankruptcy Or Insolvency
NIF 1043 0399
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The bankruptey or insolvency of the insured shall not relieve the Company of any of its obligations
hereunder.

5. Premium Audit

a. We will compute all premiums for this Coverage Part in accordance with our rules and rates.

b. @) If the premium shown in this Coverage Part is indicated as advance premium it is a deposit premium
only. At the close of each audit period we will compute the earned premium for that period. Audit
premiwms are due and payable on notice to the first Named Insured. If the sum of the advance and
audit premiums paid for the policy term is greater than the premium, we will return the excess to the
first Named Insured.

) If the premium shown in this Coverage Part is indicated as nonadjustable, no audit will be necessary.
We reserve the right however to inspect the insured's records.

¢. The first Named Insured must keep records of the information we need for premium computation, and
send us copies at such times as we may request.

6. Representations
By accepting this policy, you agree:
a. The statements in the Declarations are accurate and complete;
b. Those statements are based upon representations you made to us; and
c. We have issued this policy in reliance upon your representations.
When this insurance is excess of a self insured retention, you agree:
d. That you qualify as a self insurer in your state of domicile;
e. That you meet and accept all financial and statutory requirements of the state; and

f. That this policy does not apply to any assessments, fees or fines imposed on you because of any statutory
requirement of your self insured retention.

7. Separation Of Insureds

Except with respect to the Limits of Insurance, and any rights or duties specifically assigned in this Coverage
Part to the first Named Insured, this insurance applies:

a. As if each Named Insured were the only Named Insured; and

b. Separately to each insured against whom claim is made or "suit' is brought.
8. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us
If the insured has rights to recover all or part of any payment we have made under this Coverage Part, those
tights are transferred to us. The insured must do nothing after loss to impair them. At our request, the insured

will bring "suit' or transfer those rights to us and help us enforce them.

9. When We Do Not Renew
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If we decide not to renew this Coverage Part, we will mail or deliver to the first Named Insured shown in the
Declarations written notice of the non-renewal not less than 30 days before the expiration date. If notice is
mailed, proof of mailing will be sufficient proof of notice

10. Waiver Of Governmental Immunity

We reserve the right, both in the adjustment of claims and in the defense of “suits™ against the insured, to either
waive or apply any governmental immunity that may be available to the insured. Waiver of immunity as a
defense will not subject us to liability for any portion of a claim or judgment in excess of the applicable Limit
Of Insurance.

11. Settlement

The Company shall not settle any suit without the insured'’s consent. If, however, the insured refuses to consent
to any settlement received by the Company and shall elect to contest the claim or continue any legal
proceedings in connection with such claim, the Company's liability for the claim shall not exceed the amount
for which the claim could have been so settled plus claims expenses incurred up to the date of such refusal.
SECTION V - DEFINITIONS

1. “Auto” means a land motor vehicle, trailer or semitrailer designed for travel on public roads, including any
attached machinery or equipment, but "auto" does not include "mobile equipment.”

2. “Bodily injury” means bodily injury, disease, disability, shock, mental anguish, mental injury and
humiliation, including resulting death.

3. “Coverage territory” means:
a. The United States of America (including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico and Canada;

b. International waters or airspace, provided the injury or damage does not occur in the course of travel or
transportation to or from any place not included in a. above.

4. "Leading or unloading" means the handling of property:

a. Afteritis moved from the place where it is accepted for movement into or onto an aircraft, watercraft or
‘auto’;

b. While it is in or-on an aircraft, watercraft or "auto"; or
c. While it is being moved from an aircraft, watercraft or “auto” to the place where it is finally delivered;

but "loading or unloading" does not include the movement of property by means of a mechanical device,
other than a hand truck, that is not attached to the aircraft, watercraft or “auto.”

5. "Mobile equipment” means any of the following types of land vehicles, including any attached machinery
or equipment:

a. Bulldozers, farm machinery, forklifts and other vehicles designed for use principally off public roads;
b. Vehicles maintained for use solely on or next to premises you own or rent;
c. Vehicles that travel on crawler treads;

d. Vehicles, whether self-propelied or not, maintained primarily to provide mobility to permanently
mounted:
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(1) Power cranes, shovels, loaders, diggers or drills; or
(2) Road construction or resurfacing equipment such as graders, scrapers or rollers.

e. Vehicles not described in a,, b., ¢. or d. above that are not self-propelled and are maintained
primarily to provide mobility to permanently attached equipment of the following types:

(1) Air compressors, pumps and generators, including spraying, welding, building cleaning,
geophysical exploration, lighting and well servicing equipment; or

(2) Cherry pickers and similar devices used to raise or lower workers.

f. Vehicles not described in a., b., ¢. or d. above maintained primarily for purposes other than the
transportation of persons or cargo.

However, self-propelled vehicles with the following types of permanently attached equipment are not
“mobile equipment” but will be considered "autos":

(1) Equipment designed primarily for:
(a) Snow removal,
(b) Road maintenance but not construction or resurfacing; or

(c) Street cleaning.

(2) Cherry pickers and similar devices mounted on automobile or truck chassis and used to raise or
lower workers; and

3) Air compressors, purnps and generators, including spraying, welding, building cleaning,
geophysical exploration, lighting and well servicing equipment.

6. "Damages" means monetary sums including compensatory and/or punitive when allowed by law. Any cost,
fees or other expenses from injunctive or defamatory relief, however, are not included.

7. “Occurrence' means:

a. An accident, including continuous or repeated exposure to substantially the same general harmful
conditions, that results in 'bodily injury' or ‘property damage'; or

b. An offense that results in 'personal injury.’

8. “Personal injury” means injury, other than ‘bodily injury,' arising out of one or more of the following
offenses:

a. Assanlt and battery.
b. False arrest, detention or imprisonment;

¢. Malicious prosecution;

d. The wrongful eviction from, wrongful entry into, or invasion of the right of private occupancy of a room,
dwelling or premises that a person occupies by or on behalf of its owner, landlord or lessor;
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¢. Oral or written publication of material that slanders or libels a person or disparages a person's or
organization's goods, products or services; or

f. Oral or written publication of material that violates a person's right of privacy;
g. False or improper service of process;
h. Discrimination;

i. Violation of civil rights, including but not necessarily limited to violations of the Federal Civil Rights
Act and similar laws; or

j- Violation of property rights;
9. "Property damage" means:

a. Physical injury to tangible property, including all resulting loss of use of that property. All such loss of
use shall be deemed to occur at the time of the physical injury that caused it; or

b. Loss of use of tangible property that is not physically injured. All such loss shall be deemed to occur at
the time of the "occurrence” that caused it.

10. “Suit” means a civil proceeding in which damages because of "bodily injury,” "property damage,”
“personal injury”or “advertising injury” to which this insurance applies are alleged."Suit” includes:

a. An arbitration proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to which you must submit or do
submit with our consent; or

b. Any other alterative dispute resolution proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to which
you submit with our consent. '
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COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS

All Coverage Parts included in this policy are subject to the following conditions.

Cancellation

1. The first Named Insured shown in the Declara-
tions may cancel this policy by mailing or deliv-
ering to us advance written notice of cancella-
tion.

2. We may cancel this policy by mailing or deliver-
ing to the first Named Insured written notice of
cancellation at least:

a. 10 days before the effective date of cancel-
lation if we cancel for nonpayment of pre-
mium; or

b. 30 days before the effective date of cancel-
lation if we cancel for any other reason.

3. We will mail or deliver our notice to the first
Named Insured's last mailing address known
to us.

4. Notice of cancellation will state the effective
date of cancellation. The policy period will end
on that date.

5. If this policy is cancelled, we will send the first
Named Insured any premium refund due. If we
cancel, the refund will be pro rata. If the first
Named Insured cancels, the refund may be
less than pro rata. The cancellation will be ef-
fective even if we have not made or offered a
refund.

6. If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be suffi-
cient proof of notice.

. Changes

This policy contains all the agreements between
you and us concerning the insurance afforded.
The first Named Insured shown in the Declarations
is authorized to make changes in the terms of this
policy with-our consent. This policy's terms can be
amended or waived only by endorsement issued
by us and made a part of this policy.

. Examination Of Your Books And Records

We may examine and audit your books and re-
cords as they relate to this policy at any time dur-
ing the policy period and up to three years after-
ward.

. Inspections And Surveys

1. We have the right to:
a. Make inspections and surveys at any time;

Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1998

b. Give you reports on the conditions we find;
and

c¢. Recommend changes.

2. We are not obligated to make any inspections,
surveys, reports or recommendations and any
such actions we do undertake relate only to in-
surability and the premiums to be charged. We
do not make safety inspections. We do not un-
dertake to perform the duty of any person or
organization to provide for the health or safety
of workers or the public. And we do not warrant
that conditions:

a. Are safe or healthful; or

b. Comply with laws, regulations, codes or
standards.

3. Paragraphs 1. and 2. of this condition apply
not only to us, but also to any rating, advisory,
rate service or similar organization which
makes insurance inspections, surveys, reports
or recommendations.

4. Paragraph 2. of this condition does not apply to
any inspections, surveys, reports or recom-
mendations we may make relative fo certifica-
tion, under state or municipal statutes, ordi-
nances or regulations, of boilers, pressure ves-
sels or elevators.

. Premiums

The first Named Insured shown in the Declara-
tions:

1. Is responsible for the payment of all premiums;
and

2. Will be the payee for any return premiums we
pay.

. Transfer Of Your Rights And Duties Under This

Policy

Your rights and duties under this policy may not
be transferred without our written consent except
in the case of death of an individual named in-
sured.

If you die, your rights and duties will be transferred
to your legal representative but only while acting
within the scope of duties as your legal represen-
tative. Until your legal representative is appointed,
anyone having proper temporary custody of your
property will have your rights and duties but only
with respect to that property.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY EXCLUSION
ENDORSEMENT

(Broad Form)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

FARM COVERAGE PART

LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY

1. The insurance does not apply:

A. Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily injury"
or "property damage':

)

(2

IL 00 21 07 02

With respect to which an “insured" under
the policy is also an insured under a nu-
clear energy liability policy issued by Nu-
clear Energy Liability insurance Associa-
tion, Mutual Atomic Energy Liability
Underwriters, Nuclear Insurance Associa-
tion of Canada or any of their successors,
or would be an insured under any such pol-
icy but for its termination upon exhaustion
of its limit of liability; or

Resulting from the "hazardous properties"
of "nuclear material" and with respect to
which (a) any person or organization is re-
quired to maintain financial protection pur-
suant to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or
any law amendatory thereof, or (b) the "in-
sured" is, or had this policy not been issued
would be, entitled to indemnity from the
United States of America, or any agency
thereof, under any agreement entered into
by the United States of America, or any
agency thereof, with any person or organi-
zation.

B. Under any Medical Payments coverage, to
expenses incurred with respect to "bodily in-
jury" resuiting from the "hazardous properties”
of "nuclear material' and arising out of the op-
eration of a "nuclear facility" by any person or
organization.

Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily injury"

or “"property damage" resulting from “hazard-
ous properties" of "nuclear material”, if:

(1

(2)

(3)

© ISO Properties, Inc., 2001

The "nuclear material" (a) is at any "nuclear
facility" owned by, or operated by or on be-
half of, an "insured" or (b) has been dis-
charged or dispersed therefrom;

The '"nuclear material' is contained in
“spent fuel" or "waste" at any time pos-
sessed, handled, used, processed, stored,
transported or disposed of, by or on behalf
of an "insured"; or

The "bodily injury" or "property damage"
arises out of the furnishing by an "insured"
of services, materials, parts or equipment in
connection with the planning, construction,
maintenance, operation or use of any "nu-
clear facility", but if such facility is located
within the United States of America, its terri-
tories or possessions or Canada, this ex-
clusion (3) applies only to "property dam-
age" to such "nuclear facility" and any
property thereat.
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2. As used in this endorsement:

"Hazardous properties" includes radioactive, toxic
or explosive properties.

"Nuclear material' means "source material", "Spe-
cial nuclear material" or "by-product material".

"Source material", "special nuclear material*, and
"by-product material" have the meanings given
them in the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 or in any
law amendatory thereof.

"Spent fuel' means any fuel element or fuel com-
ponent, solid or liquid, which has been used or
exposed to radiation in a "nuclear reactor”.

"Waste" means any waste material -(a) containing
"by-product material" other than the tailings or
wastes produced by the extraction or concentra-
tion of uranium or thorium from any ore processed
primarily for its "source material" content, and (b)
resulting from the operation by any person or or-
ganization of any "nuclear facility" included under
the first two paragraphs of the definition of "nuclear
facility".

"Nuclear facility" means:

(a) Any "nuclear reactor”;

(b) Any equipment or device designed or used
for (1) separating the isotopes of uranium or
plutonium, (2) processing or utilizing "spent
fuel", or (3) handling, processing or packag-
ing "waste";

© IS0 Properties, Inc., 2001

(c) Any equipment or device used for the proc-
essing, fabricating or alloying of "special
nuclear material" if at any time the total
amount of such material in the custody of
the "insured" at the premises where such
equipment or device is located consists of
or contains more than 25 grams of pluto-
nium or uranium 233 or any combination
thereof, or more than 250 grams of uranium
235;

(d) Any structure, basin, excavation, premises
or place prepared or used for the storage or
disposal of "waste",

and includes the site on which any of the forego-
ing is located, all operations conducted on such
site and all premises used for such operations.

"Nuclear reactor" means any apparatus designed
or used to sustain nuclear fission ih a self-
supporting chain reaction or to contain a critical
mass of fissionable material.

"Property damage" includes all forms of radioac-
tive contamination of property.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NEW YORK CHANGES- LEGAL ACTIONS AGAINST US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM
LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM.
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

PUBLIC ENTITY SELF INSURED RETENTION POLICY

The LEGAL ACTION AGAINST US Conditions (Section I'V) is replace by the following:

LEGAL ACTIONS AGAINST US

No person or organization has a right under this Coverage Part:

a. To join us as a party or otherwise tying us into a “suit” asking for damages from an insured; or

b. To sue on this Coverage Part unless all of its terms have been fully complied with.

A person or organization may use us to recover on an agreed settlement or on a final judgment against an
insured; but we will not be liable for damages that are not payable under the terms of this Coverage Part or
that are in excess of the applicable limit of insurance. An agreed settlement means a settlement and release
of liability signed by us, the insured and the claimant or the claimant’s legal representative.

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged.
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Praetorian Insurance Company

A Stock Company

Commercial Lines Policy

Home Office:

¢/o CT Corporation System
116 Pine Street, Suite 320

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17101

PICI JACKET (12-09)

Administrative Office:

88 Pine Street
Wall Street Plaza
New York, New York 10005

Servicing Office:

500 Park Boulevard, Suite 1350

Itasca, lllinocis 60143
(800) 773-9980
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This policy consists of: Declarations
Common Policy Conditions
One or more coverage parts.
A coverage part consists of:
— One or more coverage forms
— Applicable forms and endorsements

Praetorian Insurance Company

In Witness Whereof, we have caused this policy to be executed and attested, and, if required by state law, this
policy shall not be valid unless countersigned by our authorized representative.

Stephen Fitzpatrick Peter T. Maloney
President Secretary
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
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Supplementary Information

December 31, 2010 and 2009
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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TOSKI, SCHAEFER & CO., P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

555 INTERNATIONAL DR. 14 CORPORATE WOODS BLVD.
WILLIAMSVILLE, NY 14229 ALBANY, NY 12211
(716) 634-0700 (518) 935-1069

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Governing Board
New York State Bridge Authority:

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the New York State Bridge
Authority (the Authority) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s management,
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the New York State Bridge Authority as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 8 and the Bridge System Assessments
on pages 26 and 27 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
This information is the responsibility of the Authority’s management. We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the

- presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it,

EMAIL: toski@toskischaefer.com
WEBSITE: www.taskischaefer.com



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 4,
2011 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grants and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in

assessing the results of our audit.
el .
ke, Doapr & (o P

Williamsville, New York
March 4, 2011



NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2010

Management’s discussion and analysis serves to introduce the other elements of the financial
section of this annual report. Included are the basic financial statements, notes to the financial
statements and other supplementary financial information. The objective of this analysis is to
enhance the understandability and usefulness of the external financial reports. As in previous years
the Authority is providing a comparative analysis of certain financial information.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Toll revenue in 2010 totaled $37.7 million, $0.6 million above the previous year. Interest income
decreased from prior year by $0.03 million as interest rates continued at historically low levels. A
Federal grant of $0.3 million in other income was obtained for a project to install cameras on
Authority facilities.

Total operating expenses of $39 million increased by $7.1 million. This 22.3% increase was the
result of increased rehabilitation, reconstruction, and bridge repairs of $5.1 million, employee
benefits of $1.4 million, and electronic toll costs of $0.3 million. :

Net assets at year-end were $97.6 million, which was $30.1 million above the prior year. This
increase is due to the transfer of the Walkway Over The Hudson to the Authority in December
2010.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Authority’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles as prescribed by the Government Accounting Standards Board. These statements are
designed to afford an overview of the Authority’s finances and consist of the balance sheets,
statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net assets, and the statements of cash flows.

The notes to the financial statements include additional information necessary to provide a further
understanding of the basic financial statements. :

Other supplemental financial information serves to give the reader additional knowledge with
regard to the condition of the bridge system and capital improvement expenditures.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS

Balance Sheets

The balance sheets present information on the Authority’s assets and liabilities, reporting net assets
at year-end. Increases or decreases in net assets may indicate whether or not an entity’s financial

position is improving. A condensed summary of the Authority’s balance sheets is shown on the
following pages.



NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

December 31

2010 2009
(In 000's) (In 000's)

Assets
Current assets $ 42,373 47,099
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets 122,409 89,780
Other noncurrent assets 207 248
Total assets $ 164,989 137,127
Liabilities
Current liabilities 10,800 8,072
Noncurrent liabilities:
General revenue bonds 41,715 47,615
Other noncurrent liabilities 14,888 13,005
Total liabilities $ 67,403 69,592
Net assets
Invested in capital assets 122,409 89,779
Restricted 30,475 35428
Unrestricted (55,298) (57,672)
Total net assets $ 97,586 67,535

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

The statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net assets show the effect of income and
expenses on the Authority’s net assets for the year. These statements are prepared on an accrual
basis, meaning revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned and expenses are
recognized in the period in which they occur. The Authority’s statements for 2010 and 2009 are
summarized as follows:



NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

December 31

2010 2009
(In 000's) (In 000's)

Operating revenue:

Toll revenues $ 37,669 37,084
Other income 511 88
Total operating revenue 38,180 37,172
Operating expenses:
Salaries 10,718 10,788
Employee benefits 7,471 6,100
Commercial insurance : 1,402 1,219
Rehabilitation, reconstruction and bridge repairs 12,950 7,846
Electronic toll costs 3,165 2,881
Other 3,337 3,079
Total operating expenses 39,043 31,913
Operating gain (loss) (863) 5,259
Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Interest income 414 442
Interest and other 30,500 (2,526)
Total nonoperating revenue
(expenses) : 30,914 (2,084)
Increase in net assets 30,051 3,175
Net assets at beginning of year 67,535 64,360
Net assets at end of year $ 97,586 67,535




NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, Continued

The cost of operations increased $7.1 million for the year as rehabilitation, reconstruction, and
bridge repairs increased by $5.1 million primarily due to the painting of a portion of the Newburgh-
Beacon Bridge. Employee benefits increased $1.4 million. This was due primarily to 20 employees
utilizing the 2010 retirement incentive resulting in a onetime charge for $1.0 million. A
requirement of the Authority to utilize 2010 retirement incentive program is that it will produce a
net savings in the first two years. The Authority projects the program will provide net savings in
the first two years and continue to provide additional savings in subsequent years, Increased annual
contributions to the retirement system also contributed to higher employee benefit costs. Electronic
toll costs increased by $0.3 million, driven by both increased volume and costs per transaction.

Non-operating revenue is from interest income on investments and the capital addition of the
Walkway Over The Hudson. Interest income was slightly lower than 2009 as interest rates on
government obligations in which the Authority invests continued at historically low levels. The
capital addition is from the Authority accepting ownership on December 21, 2010 of the Walkway
Over The Hudson (WOH), a 122 year-old railroad bridge converted into a linear state park. This is
a pedestrian only structure which will produce no toll revenues. The New York State Office of
Parks, Recreation, and Historic Preservation will be responsible for WOH operations and the
maintenance of the deck, and the Authority will be responsible for the maintenance of the structure.

Interest paid on the Authority’s outstanding bonds, which totaled $2.2 million this year, accounted
for substantially all of the non-operating expenses.

Statements of Cash Flows

The statements of cash flows present information on the major sources and uses of cash during the
year, showing net cash provided or used in operating, capital financing and investing activities.

Net cash of $3.2 million provided by operating activities was down $3.9 million reflecting $4.8
million in higher payments to suppliers and contractors and offset by $0.6 million in increased toll
revenue.

Principal and interest payments on Authority bonds held steady at $8.1 million as capital financing
results were similar to those in 2009. Cash flows from investing activities resulted in net cash of
$5.0 million, which includes interest earned on investments and net cash resulting from the
purchase and sale of investments.



NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

AUTHORITY BUDGET

The Authority’s 2010 budget projected collections of $37.3 million was $0.4 million below the
actual. An improvement in traffic from the deep recession levels forecasted drove these collection
increases. Passenger traffic increased from 2009 by 743,000 vehicles generating $0.4 million in-

“additional revenue. Commercial traffic increased from 2009 by 37,000 vehicles generating a $0.1
million increase due to higher usage by five axle trucks. The Authority budgeted Federal grants of
$2.3 million which was $2.0 million above actual. The progress of the construction for The Port
Authority of New York and New Jersey, the entity administering the Federal grant, project fell
behind the original projection. The remaining grant funds are expected upon completion of the
related projects. Additionally, interest rates on Authority investments continued at historically low
levels, interest income of $414,000 was $14,000 above forecast.

2010 operating expenses of $39.0 million came in higher than the Authority’s operating and capital
improvement plan budget by $0.4 million due to the 2010 retirement incentive of $1.0 million. The
day-to-day operating budget, which was forecasted at $24.9 million, came in at $26.1 million. This
included the 2010 retirement incentive program of $1.0 million that was not budgeted and higher
electronic toll costs of $0.6 million associated with higher EZ-Pass traffic volumes.

The Authority’s five year capital plan budgeted $13.8 million in 2010 whereas actual costs totaled
$13.0 million. The difference resulted from a combination of factors. Approximately $1.0 million
of work was deferred to 2011 or later and the original capital plan excluded costs for the Federal
grant project that were funded from the grant. The Federal grant funding $0.3 million is reflected in
other income.

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

As of December 31, 2010, the Authority’s investment in capital assets was $122.4 million. Capital
assets include bridges, roads, buildings, and equipment. In order to fund the commitment to its
program of rehabilitation and improvement of the bridge facilities, in March 2002, the Authority
issued $50 million General Revenue Bonds having a final maturity on January 1, 2017. All
Authority revenue is pledged to repay these bonds and the outstanding Series 1997 issue. As of
December 31, 2010, $47.6 million of debt remained outstanding and funds were in reserve to retire
$5.9 million bonds on January 1, 2011.

In 2010, Standard & Poor’s affirmed the Authority’s AA- rating and stable outlook on its
outstanding bonds. Moody’s Investors Service in 2009 affirmed the Authority’s Aa2 bond rating,
making it one of only two public toll agencies in the country to achieve such a rating.



NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

MODIFIED APPROACH FOR INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

The Authority has adopted the modified approach in reporting its infrastructure assets. An
alternative to depreciating its bridge facilities, this approach requires the Authority to maintain its
infrastructure at a certain measurable standard and report the associated cost as preservation
(rehabilitation, reconstruction and bridge repair) expenses.

The condition of the Authority’s bridge faculties is determined through annual inspections
performed in accordance with New York State Department of Transportation (NYSDOT)
requirements and Federal Highway Administration guidelines. The yearly inspections by the
- Authority’s consulting engineers, Modjeski & Masters, Inc., measures the ability of each facility to
function structurally utilizing a NYSDOT condition rating ranging between 1 and 7. The
Authority’s policy is to keep the overall condition rating of each bridge at a 5, meaning the facility
shows minor deterioration but is functioning as originally designed.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This report is compiled for the use of the Authority’s bondholders, the investment community and
members of the public interested in the Authority’s affairs. Questions with regard to this financial
report or requests for additional information may be addressed to the Treasurer, New York State
Bridge Authority, P.O. Box 1010, Highland, NY 12528.



NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2010 and 2009

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Bond issuance costs

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Bond issuance costs
Capital assets, net
Bridge system

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities;

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages, payroll taxes and fringe benefits
Contracts payable

Accrued interest on bonds

Bond premium

General revenue bonds, current portion

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued fringe benefits
Bond premium
General revenue bonds

Total noncurrent liabilities

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Insurance
Maintenance reserve
Unrestricted (deficiency)
Total net assets

Commitments and contingencies (note 13)

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2010 2009
$ 8,837,391 9,167,088
31,057,268 35,640,841
1,730,188 1,698,807
707,272 551,007
41,347 41,347
42,373,466 47,099,090
206,733 248,080
38,050,583 5,421,161
84,358,269 84,358,269
122,615,585 90,027,510
$ 164,989,051 137,126,600
1,576,974 1,341,654
1,470,271 410,116
632,771 228,963
1,144,023 1,275,398
76,011 76,011
5,900,000 5,640,000
10,800,050 8,972,142
14,508,045 12,548,260
380,057 456,069
41,715,000 47,615,000
56,603,102 60,619,329
122,408,852 89,779,430
8,165,101 8,427,395
8,607,056 9,136,055
13,702,925 17,863,954
(55,298,035)  (57,671,705)
97,585,899 67,535,129
$ 164,989,051 137,126,600




NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
Operating revenue:
Toll revenue $ 37,668,652 37,084,176
Other income 511,128 88,142
Total operating revenue 38,179,780 37,172,318
Operating expenses:
Salaries 10,718,175 10,788,378
Employee benefits 7,471,135 6,099,987
Utilities 677,298 606,150
Insurance 1,401,805 1,218,825
Professional services 530,199 332,183
Supplies and materials 221,922 207,470
. Equipment expense 193,109 63,478
Maintenance and repairs 548,099 697,608
Rehabilitation, reconstruction and bridge repairs 12,949,595 7,845,821
Electronic toll costs 3,164,671 2,880,639'
Depreciation 612,990 602,044
Other 553,635 570,729
Total operating expenses 39,042,633 31,913,312
Operating income (loss) (862,853) 5,259,006
Nonoperating revenue (expenses): :
Interest income 413,798 441,882
Capital addition for Walkway Over The Hudson pedestrian
bridge 32,758,706 -
Amortization of bond issuance costs (41,347) (41,347)
Interest and other expenses (2,217,534)  (2,484,284)
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 30,913,623  (2,083,749)
Increase in net assets 30,050,770 3,175,257
Net assets at beginning of year 67,535,129 64,359,872
Net assets at end of year $ 97,585,899 67,535,129

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Toll revenue
Payments to suppliers
Payments to contractors
Payments for wages and employee benefits
Other receipts

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets, net
Principal paid on bonds payable
Interest paid on bonds payable

Net cash used in capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments, net
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net decrease in cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and equivalents at end of year
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued wages, payroll taxes and fringe benefits

Contracts payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Supplemental schedule of cash flow information - capital
addition - Walkway Over The Hudson pedestrian bridge

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2010 2009
$ 37,637,271 37,010,130
(6,470,475)  (6,051,481)
(13,286,995)  (8,865,452)
(15,169,370) (15,012,810)
511,128 88,142
3221,559 7,168,529
(483,706)  (1,564,801)
(5,640,000)  (5,390,000)
(2,424,921)  (2,684,835)
(8,548,627)  (9,639,636)
4,583,573 1,700,137
413,798 441,882
4,997,371 2,142,019
(329,697) (329,088)
9,167,088 9,496,176

$ 8,837,391 9,167,088
(862,853) 5,259,006
612,990 602,044
(31,381) (74,046)
(156,265) 28,712
235,320 - (264,196)
3,019,940 1,875,555
403,808 (258,546)

$ 3221559 7,168,529
$ 32,758,706 -




NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

(1) Organization

The New York State Bridge Authority (Authority) is a Public Benefit Corporation created in
1932 and existing pursuant to Title 2, of Article 3 of the Public Authorities Law, Chapter
43-A of the Consolidated Laws of the State of New York (the Act). The Act provides that
the Authority shall continue its corporate existence and operate and maintain its bridge
facilities so long as it shall have bonds or other obligations outstanding and until its
existence shall be terminated by law. The Authority, which currently operates and maintains
the Rip Van Winkle, Kingston-Rhinecliff, Mid-Hudson, Newburgh-Beacon, and Bear
Mountain bridges crossing over the Hudson River, consists of a seven member Board
appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate. Since the Authority
has no component units or potential component units, the accompanying financial
statements include only the accounts of the Authority. The Authority’s financial statements
are included in the New York State Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. '

(2) Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. The Authority’s reports are based on all applicable Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as applicable Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

The operations of the Authority are reported under the business-type activities model and, as
such, are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Within this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities
associated with operations are included on the balance sheets with revenues recorded
when earned and expenses recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. The business-
type activities model requires the Authority to include a balance sheet, a statement of
revenue, expenses and changes in net assets and a statement of cash flows. The
statements require the classification of net assets into three components - invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. These classifications are
defined as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets - This component of net assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced (as applicable) by the outstanding balances of any
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

12



NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(a) Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting, Continued
Restricted Net Assets - This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on
net asset use through external restrictions imposed by creditors (such as through debt
covenants), contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Assets - This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not
meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets”.

For internal accounting and reporting, the accounts of the Authority are maintained in
conformity with fund accounting. Fund accounting facilitates the observance of
statutory limitations and restrictions on the use of resources.

The following funds were established by the Authority in compliance with Article V,
Section 5.02 of the General Revenue Bond Resolution (“Series 1997 Resolution™)
adopted December 19, 1996. These funds are grouped by fund type in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles for governmental entities. All monies are to be
transferred to such funds in accordance with terms outlined below, and held in
depository by the designated Trustee, with the exception of the operating fund.

(1) General Fund

(a) Revenue Fund
Established to receive daily toll and make payments to the designated funds in
accordance with the terms outlined below.

(b) Operating Fund
Established to make payments from amounts received from the revenue fund, as
may be required for the reasonable and necessary operating expenditures of
the Authority. Amounts to be maintained in the operating fund are limited to
the amounts not more than sufficient to provide for reasonable and necessary
operating expenditures for the remainder of the current month and ensuing

two months.

(c) General Fund
Established to hold monies not required by other Authority designated funds, for
any other lawful corporate purpose of the Authority.

(2) Debt Service Funds

(a) Debt Service Fund
Established to make principal and interest payments to the Trustee or paying
agent required by the Series 1997 Resolution, from amounts received from
the revenue fund.

13



NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(a) Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting, Continued
(2) Debt Service Funds, Continued

(b) Debt Service Reserve Fund
Established to receive payments from the revenue fund to the extent necessary to
make the amount in such fund, as of the date of the calculation, equal to the
maximum amount of principal and interest due to be paid on bonds then
outstanding in the then current or any future fiscal year to which the calculation
relates, excluding interest to be paid from monies held in the debt service fund.

(c) Subordinated Indebtedness Fund
Established to issue evidences of indebtedness payable out of, and which may be
secured by a pledge of, such amounts in the subordinated indebtedness fund or
general fund as may from time to time be available for the purpose of payment

thereof.

(d) Rebate Fund
Established to hold monies for rebates of certain investment earnings.

(3) Capital Projects Fund

(a) Construction Fund
Established to hold monies paid 1nto it from the sale of bonds to pay for costs of
“The Project” or any “Additional Projects” as defined in the Series 1997
Resolution. Any remaining money upon completion or abandonment of such
projects shall be transferred to other funds in accordance with the terms of the
Series 1997 Resolution,

(b) Maintenance Reserve Fund
Established to make payments from amounts recelved from the revenue fund, for the
cost of construction of additions, improvements or betterments to, or
reconstruction of Authority bridge facilities, renewals or replacements of
Authority facilities and for the purchase of major or extraordinary vehicles and
equipment necessary to operate and/or maintain the Authority bridge facilities.

(c) Insurance Fund
Established to receive payments from the revenue fund to the extent that, together
with multi-risk insurance, it shall provide for the adequate protection against the
physical loss or damage of a bridge facility. Additionally, the Authority may pay
into a separate account in this fund, amounts sufficient to provide coverage, in
addition to, or instead of, such commercial insurance policies required by the
Series 1997 Resolution.

14



NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

2) Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(b) Cash Deposits and Investments

The Authority is limited under its investment guidelines to the investment of funds in
obligations of the United States of America (United States Government Securities), the
State of New York or certificates of deposit. All cash and funds invested in certificates
of deposit in any fiduciary bank or trust company must be secured at all timeés by United
States Government Securities or obligations of the State of New York, with a market
value, combined with any FDIC coverage, at least equal to the amount of such deposits.
Monies held by the trustee may also be secured by obligations guaranteed by the United
States of America. Investments, consisting principally of U.S. Treasury obligations and
certificates of deposit with a remaining maturity of one year or less at the time of
purchase, are stated at cost plus accrued interest.

(¢) Capital Assets

Capital assets include buildings and furniture and equipment. Capital assets purchased or
acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at historical cost or
estimated historical cost. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that
signiﬁcantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for
repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is provnded
on the straight line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 30 years
Furniture and equipment 3 - 10 years

(d) Bridge System

The bridge system consists of five bridges (6 spans) spanning the Hudson River together
with the related toll plazas and approaches. The bridge system is reported at historical
cost. The Authority uses the modified approach to account for the bridge system. Under
the modified approach expenditures for additions and improvements to eligible
infrastructure assets, which increase capacity or efficiency of the assets rather than
preserve their lives, are capitalized. All other expenditures, including preservation costs,
are expensed in the period incurred and the bridge system is not depreciated. The
Authority performs condition assessments on the bridge system, makes annual estimates
of the outlay necessary to maintain and preserve the assets at predetermined condition
levels and documents that the assets are being maintained at the predetermined condition
level.

(e) Real Property
Real property utilized by the Authority is held in the name of the State of New York. The

Authority has, however, the right to possess and, with the approval of the Commissioner
of Transportation, to sell, lease, exchange, or otherwise dispose of any property or rights
therein, not necessary for its corporate purpose.

15



NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(f) _Compensated Absences
In conformity with pronouncements of the Government Accounting Standards Board, the
Authority accrues vacation and other benefits as earned by its employees.

(g) Subsequent Events
The Authonty has evaluated events after December 31, 2010, and through March 4, 2011,
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and determined
that any events or transactions occurring during this period that would require
recognition or disclosure are properly addressed in these financial statements.

(h) Operating Revenue
Operating revenues consist principally of toll revenue.

(i) Nonoperating Revenue
Nonoperating revenues consist principally of interest income.

(1)_Operations

Provisions of the Series 1997 Resolution require that revenue in excess of expenses for
operation and maintenance of the bridge system be used first for the payment of interest
and principal on outstanding bonds, then for debt service reserve, subordinated
indebtedness (if any), insurance, maintenance reserve, construction and finally general
fund requirements. It also requires that expenses for operation and maintenance of the
bridge system shall not include any provisions for depreciation of the bridge facilities or
equipment, or any principal payment on bonds outstanding or any other debt obllgatlon
of the Authority.

The Authority’s right to operate and collect tolls for the use of the Newburgh-Beacon Bridge
is governed in part by an agreement dated December 15, 1988, between the Authority,
the State of New York and the United States Department of Transportation. Consistent
with the terms of Section 120(c)(2) of Public Law 100-17 and Section 402 of Title II of
Public Law 101-45, the Agreement permits the use of revenues collected at that bridge
only for construction and reconstruction, debt service, proper operation and maintenance
of the bridges, approach roads and support. facilities subject to the jurisdiction of the
Authority.

(3) Cash and Equivalents

The carrying amount of the Authority’s deposits with financial institutions at December 31,
2010 amounted to $8,837,391 and the bank balance was $9,876,570. The bank balance is
collateralized as follows:

Amount issued by FDIC $ 500,000
Collateral held by a third party in the Authority’s name 4,029,484
Collateral held by trustee 7,094,609

$ 11,624,093
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(4)_Investments

The cost and market value of investments (United States Government Securities) held by the
Authority as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 are summarized as follows:

2010 2009
Restricted Cost Market Cost Market
Debt Service Fund -
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 8,114,728 8,125,324 8,413,478 8,457,156
Insurance Fund -
U.S. Treasury Notes 8,607,056 8,848,515 9,135,495 9,286,094
Maintenance Reserve Fund -
U.S. Treasury Notes " 4,589,228 4,598,133 6,149,191 6,125,392
U.S. Treasury Bills 9,746,256 9,746,015 11.942.677 11942677
Total maintenance 14335484 14,344,148 18,091,868 18,068,069
Total $31,057.268 31317987 35,640,841 35811319

All Authority investment securities are classified as securities acquired by a financial institution
for a governmental entity held by the financial institution's trust department in the entity's
‘name. At December 31, 2010, the Authority's investments and maturities were as follows:

Less than
Investment Type Fair Value one year 1 to 5 years
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 9,746,015 9,746,015 -
U.S. Treasury Bills 21,571.972 10,730,868 10,841,104
$31,31798 20,476,883 10,841,104
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(5) Funds Held For Restricted Purposes

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, funds held for restricted purposes by fund category consisted

of the following:
2010
United States
Cashand Governmental  Related
Equivalents  Securities Liabilities - Total
Debt Service Funds;
Debt service fund $ 7,058,820 - (7,044,023) 14,797
Debt service reserve fund 35,576 8,114,728 - 8.150,304
Fund total 7.094.396 8,114,728  (7,044,023) 8,165,101
Capital Projects Funds:
Insurance fund - 8,607,056 - 8,607,056
Maintenance reserve fund 212 14,335,484 (632,771) 13,702,925
Fund total 212 22.942 540 (632, 771) 22,309,981
Combined total $ 7094608 31,057,268 7.676,794) 30,475,082
2009
~ United States
Cashand Governmental Related
Equivalents Securities Liabilities Total
Debt Service Funds:
Debt service fund $ 6,928,820 - (6,915,398) 13,422
Debt service reserve fund 495 8,413,478 - 8.413.973
Fund total 6,929.315 8.413.478 (6,915398) 8,427.395
Capital Projects Funds:
Insurance fund 560 9,135,495 - 9,136,055
Maintenance reserve fund 1,050 18,091,868 (228.964) 17.863.954
Fund total 1,610 27227.363 (228,964) 27,000,009

Combined total ~ § 6930925 35,640,841 (7144.362) 335,427,404

Cash in the debt service fund at December 31, 2010 and 2009 was on deposit with the paying
agent to meet bond and interest payments due on January 1, 2010 and January 1, 2009,
respectively.
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) Capital Assets

Capital assets at December 31, 2010 and 2009 consist of the following:

2010
Balance Balance
December 31, Contributed December 31,
2009 capital assets  Additions Disposals 2010
Walkway Over The Hudson -
pedestrian bridge $ - 32,758,706 - - 32,758,706
Buildings 8,128,929 - - - 8,128,929
Furniture and equipment 5,524,066 80,000 483,706 (6,500) _ 6,081,272
13,652,995 32,838,706 483,706 (6,500) 46,968,907
Less accumulated depreciation (8,231,834) (80,000) (612,990) 6,500 (8,918,324)
$ 5,421,161 32,758,706 (129,284) - 38,050,583
2009
Balance Balance
December 31, December 31,
2008 Additions Disposals 2009
Buildings $ 6,704,266 1,424,663 - 8,128,929
Furniture and equipment 5,465,941 140,138 (82,013) 5,524,066
12,170,207 1,564,801 (82,013) 13,652,995
Less accumulated depreciation (7,711,803) (602,044) 82,013  (8,231,834)
$ 4,458,404 962,757 - 5,421,161

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to $612,990 and
$602,044, respectively.

In 2010, the pedestrian bridge known as the Walkway Over The Hudson was transferred to the
Authority at a historical cost of $32,758,706. Additionally, the Authority received fully
depreciated equipment of $80,000.
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(7) Bridge System

The bridge system consists of five bridges (six spans) spanning the Hudson River together with
the related toll plazas and approaches. The bridge system is recorded at cost and consisted
of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009:

Bridge Facility Opened 2010 2009
Rip Van Winkle Bridge 1935 $ 2,299,147 2,299,147
Kingston-Rhinecliff Bridge 1957 20,536,609 20,536,609
Mid-Hudson Bridge 1930 12,957,846 12,957,846
Newburgh-Beacon Bridge 1963 and 1980 44,223,796 44,223,796
. Bear Mountain Bridge 1924 4,340,871 4,340,871

$ 84,358,269 84,358,269

(8) Bond Indebtedness

On January 22, 1997, the Authority issued $49,015,000 of General Revenue Bonds (Series
1997) in the open market in order to provide funds for (a) the costs of providing for the
payment at or in advance of maturity (defeasement) of the Outstanding Series 1989 Bridge
System Revenue Bonds (Series 1989) and the Series 1992 Bridge System Revenue Bonds
(Series 1992) of the Authority, (b) to finance a portion of the costs of the 1997 Project,
which consists of certain reconstruction and rehabilitation projects for the Authority’s bridge
system, (c) to fund the debt service reserve fund to the level required by the Resolution and
(d) to pay the costs of issuance of the Series 1997 Bonds.

On March 7, 2002, the Authority issued $50,000,000 of General Revenue Bonds (Series 2002)
in the open market in order to provide funds to finance a portion of the costs of the 2002
Project, which consisted of certain reconstruction and rehabilitation projects for the
Authority’s bridge system. The proceeds were used to (a) fund the debt service reserve fund
to the level required by the Bond Resolution and (b) pay the costs of issuance of the Series

2002 Bonds.
Changes in indebtedness for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 are summarized as
follows:
2010
Balances at Balances at
December 31, 2009 Retirements December 31, 2010
Series 1997 $ 12,925,000 (4,100,000) 8,825,000
Series 2002 40,330,000 (1.540,000) 38.790.000
$ 53,255,000 (5.640,000) 47,615,000
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(8) Bond Indebtedness, Continued

2009
Balances at Balances at
December 31, 2008 Retirements December 31, 2009

Series 1997 . $ 16,830,000 (3,905,000) 12,925,000
Series 2002 41,815,000 (1.485.,000) 40,330,000
$ 58,645,000 (5.390.000) 53,255,000
The bonds have serial maturities as of December 31, 2010 as follows:

Principal Interest
2011 $ 5,900,000 2,010,989
2012 6,180,000 1,712,939
2013 6,475,000 1,455,845
2014 . 6,745,000 1,109,820
2015 _ 7,080,000 756,600
2016 - 2018 15,235,000 387,800
$ 47,615,000 7,433,993

The Series 1997 Bonds, which bear interest ranging from 5% to 6%, and the Series 2002 Bonds
which bear interest ranging from 3% to 5%, are general obligations of the Authority and are
payable from and secured by a pledge of all monies or revenues of the Authority, including
tolls and other revenues derived from the operations of the Authority’s bridge facilities.

The Series 1997 Bonds maturing on or after January 1, 2008 are subject to redemption prior to
maturity, at the option of the Authority, at prices ranging from 100% to 102% of the
principal amount plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

The Series 2002 Bonds maturing on or after January 1, 2013 are subject to redemption prior to
maturity, at the option of the Authority, as a whole or in part at any time after December 31,
2011, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

(9) Retirement Plan

(a) Plan Description

The New York State Employees’ Retirement System (System) provides retirement benefits
as well as death and disability benefits. Obligations of employers and employees to
contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the New York State Retirement
and Social Security Law (NYSRSSL). The System issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
report may be obtained in writing to the New York State and Local Retirement System,
110 State Street; Albany, New York 12244,
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(9) Retirement Plan, Continued

(b) Funding Policies
The System is noncontributory except for employees with less than 10 years of service who
contribute 3% of their salary. Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller
shall certify annually the rates, expressed as proportions of payroll of members, which
shall be used in computing the contributions required to be made by employers.

The rates billed by the Comptroller during the year ended December 31, 2010 ranged from
9.1% to 15.3% and during the year ended December 31, 2009 ranged from 7.0% to
9.3%. :

The Authority is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The required
contribution for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to
$1,182,092, $678,263 and $879,154, respectively.

The Authority’s contributions made to the System were equal to 100% of the contributions
required for each year.

{c) Early Retirement Incentive

Chapter 105 of the Laws 2010 established a two-part retirement incentive program for
certain public employees participating in the System. The Authority adopted the
program and allowed all employees the option to retire early. Twenty employees of the
Authority elected early retirement under this program, with a cost of $982,086.

(10) Postemployment Benefits

The Authority implemented the accounting and disclosure requirements of GASB Statement
No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions™ (OPEB) effective for its fiscal year beginning January 1, 2007. The
Authority previously recorded a liability for retiree health benefits for only those who had
retired, and not for active employees, as required by Statement No. 45.

Plan Description - The Authority provides continuation of medical coverage to employees that
retire at age 55 with five years of service if hired before April 1, 1975 or ten years of service
if hired after April 1, 1975. For employees with a date of retirement before April 1, 1983
and at least five years of service, the Authority contributes 100% of costs for employees and
75% for an employee’s spouse. For employees with a date of retirement after April 1, 1983
and at least ten years of service, the Authority contributes 90% for employees and 75% for
an employee’s spouse.
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(10) Postemployment Benefits. Continued

The Authority provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. Substantially all of
the Authority’s employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach the normal
retirement age, of the respective tier of the New York State Employees’ Retirement System,
while working for the Authority. The Authority, on an annual basis, accrues the cost which
represents the present value of these benefits to be paid over the estimated lives of the
retirees. The increase in the OPEB liability for the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009 amounted to $2,110,359 and $2,075,357, respectively. At December 31, 2010 and
2009, the OPEB liability included in noncurrent accrued fringe benefits was $13,922,160
and $11,811,801, respectively. The amount charged to expense was $3,023,015 and
$2,882,077 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

The number of participants as of January 1, 2009 was as follows:

Active employees 165
Retired employees 75
Spouses of retired employees 35

Total 275

Funding Policy - The Authority currently pays for post-retirement health care benefits on a pay-
as-you-go basis. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will

continue.
Benefit Obligations and Normal Cost : 010 2009
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL):
Retired employees $ 17,342,514 16,018,242
Active employees 25,894,669  25.311.036
Total $ 43,237,183 41,329,278
Underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 43237,183 41,329,278
Normal cost at beginning of year $ _1,061,891 1,035,991

Level Dollar Amortization
Calculation of ARC under projected Unit Credit Method:

Amortization of UAAL over 30 years with interest to end of year 1,909,759 1,779,328
Normal costs with interest to end of year 1,162,504 1,132.469

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 3,072,263 2.911,797
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(10) Postemployment Benefits, Continued

010 2009
Annual OPEB Cost Contribution
Contribution made by Authority $§ 912,656 806,720
Contribution as a percentage of required contribution 29.7% 27.7%
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
Annual required contribution _ ’ 3,072,263 2,911,797
. Interest on net OPEB obligation 472,472 389,458
Adjustment to annual required contribution (521,720) (419,178)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 3,023,015 2,882,077
Contribution made on a pay-as-you-go basis (912,656) (806,720)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 2,110,359 2,075,357
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year 11,811,801 9,736,444
Net OPEB obligation at end of year $ 13,922,160 11,811,801
Actuarial methods and assumptions:
Funding interest rate 4%
2009 medical trend rate 8%/10% 8%/10%
Ultimate trend rate 5%/5% 5%/5%
Year ultimate trend rate rendered 2013/2014 2013/2014
Annual payroll growth rate 2.5% 2.5%
Actuarial cost method Attained Age Attained Age
The remaining amortization period at year-end 26 years 27 years

11) Administrative Services Assessment

Through the Public Authorities Law Section 2975, the State of New York (the State) established
a cost recovery of central governmental services to various public authorities. This statute
directs the New York State Division of the Budget to determine the amount to be assessed to
each public authority. The State Treasurer imposes and collects- the assessments which are
deposited into the State’s general fund. The administrative services assessment for the
Authority for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to $234,119 and
$312,158, respectively.
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(12) Risk Management

The Authority purchases commercial insurance policies in varying amounts for general liability,
vehicle liability, damage to fixed assets, and public officials and employee liability
coverage. The Authority also pays unemployment claims to the State of New York as
incurred. There are no claims relating to the bridge facilities, however, the Authority has
funded a reserve of $8,607,056 at December 31, 2010 in the capital projects fund to meet its
deductible should a claim arise.

(13) Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments and contingencies at December 31, 2010 consist of the following:

(a) Bridge Construction
At December 31, 2010, the Authority had contractual commitments outstanding of
approximately $11,328,000 for bridge rehabilitation and repairs on several of its bridge
facilities.

(b)_Contingencies
The Authority is a defendant in lawsuits. While the outcome of these lawsuits or other
proceedings against the Authority cannot be predicted with certainty, the Authority does
not expect that these matters will have a material adverse effect on its financial position.
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Required Supplementary Information -

Bridge System Assessments

December 31, 2010
Number of Bridges
2010 2009 2008

Condition Rating* Number % Number % Number %
New - - - - - -
Minor Deterioration 9 100 9 100% 9 100%
Serious Deterioration - - - - - -
Totally Deteriorated - - - - - -

Total 9 100% 9 100% 9 100%

*The condition of the Authority’s bridge system is determined using annual inspection procedures.
The inspections are conducted in accordance with New York State Department of Transportation
(NYSDOT) requirements and Federal Highway Administration Guidelines. The NYSDOT bridge
condition rating, which is an assessment of the ability to function structurally, is determined during
biennial inspections using a numerical condition scale ranging from 1.0 (totally deteriorated) to 7.0
(new condition). The complete NYSDOT numerical rating scale is as follows:

1 - Totally deteriorated, or in failed condition.

2 - Used to shade between ratings 1 and 3.

3 - Serious deterioration, or not functioning as originally designed.
4 - Used to shade between 3 and 5.

5 - Minor deterioration, but functioning as originally designed.

6 - Used to shade between 5 and 7.

7 - New condition, no deterioration.

The number of bridges included in the annual inspection process includes the six spans crossing the
Hudson River and three overpasses.

It is the Authority’s policy to keep the overall condition number of each bridge at a condition rating

of at least 5.0. Presently, all bridges are inspected annually with three bridges receiving the more
thorough biennial inspections and three receiving maintenance inspections.
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NEW YORK STATE BRIDGE AUTHORITY
Required Supplemental Information -

Bridge System Assessments, Continued

Estimated-to-Actual Capital Improvement Expenditures in ($000°s):

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Estimated § 7910 11,703 16,360 15,480 15,265
Actual 12,950 7,846 7,910 14,022 8,860

Significant variations between the estimated, or budgeted, and actual costs of capital improvements
are noted in each year.

In 2006, higher than expected bid prices were responsible for the postponement of a $2.0 million
Mid-Hudson Bridge maintenance building replacement which also included a municipal water and
sewer installation. In addition, at Mid-Hudson a $2.75 million project for signage and security
cameras was delayed until 2007.

In 2007, the $2.0 million Mid-Hudson Bridge maintenance building replacement including
municipal water and sewer installation was separated into two projects. The water and sewer
installation was completed for $.8 million and the maintenance building replacement was scheduled
for 2008.

In 2008, $3.5 million budgeted for bridge painting at Rip Van Winkle was expended late in 2007.
At the Newburgh-Beacon Bridge, the scope of a deck overlay and joint modification project was
reduced by $1.2 million and $750,000 for replacement of variable message signs carried over into
2009. Also, four other projects came in $1.1 million under budget and $1.3 million of work was
deferred to 2009 or later.

In 2009, several projects totaling $2.3 million were deferred to 2010 or later. In addition,
equipment purchases were $0.7 under budget and $0.6 million of the Mid-Hudson Bridge main
cable inspection costs carried over to 2010.

In 2010, several projects totaling $1.0 million were deferred to 2011 or later. Estimated capital
improvements were initially projected as net of federal grants to fund projects. The Authority
reported federal funds receivable totaling $0.3 million for 2010 as other income while the cost was
reported as capital improvement expenditures.
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TOSKI, SCHAEFER & CO., P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

555 INTERNATIONAL DR. 14 CORPORATE WOODS BLVD.
WILLIAMSVILLE, NY 14221 ALBANY, NY 12211
€716) 634-0700 (518) 835-1069

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Governing Board
New York State Bridge Authority:

We have audited the financial statements of the New York State Bridge Authority (the Authority) as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated March 4,
2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Authority’s Governing Board,
management and appropriate officials of the State of New York, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Tk, W t CO?(—

Williamsville, New York
March 4, 2011
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TOSKI, SCHAEFER & CO., P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

535 INTERNATIONAL DR. 14 CORPORATE WOODS BLVD.
WILLIAMSVILLE. NY 14221 ALBANY, NY 12211
(716) 634-0700 (518) 935-1069

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INVESTMENT COMPLIANCE

To the Governing Board
New York State Bridge Authority:

We have examined the New York State Bridge Authority’s (the Authority) compliance with Section
201.3 of Title Two of the Official Compilation of Codes, Rules, and Regulations of the State of
New York during the year ended December 31, 2010. Management is responsible for the
Authority’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Authority’s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards applicable to attestation
engagements contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Authority’s
compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned
requirements during the year ended December 31, 2010.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we are required to report findings of
deficiencies in internal control, violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and abuse
that are material to the Authority’s compliance with Section 201.3 of Title Two of the Official
Compilation of Codes, Rules, and Regulations of the State of New York and any fraud and illegal
acts that are more than inconsequential that come to our attention during our examination. We are
also required to obtain the views of management on those matters. We performed our examination
to express an opinion on whether the Authority complied with the aforementioned requirements and
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the internal control over compliance with those
requirements or other matters; accordingly, we express no such opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Authority’s Governing Board,
management and the appropriate officials of the State of New York, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

Tou, W £ CQ?C
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FORM A-1
PROPOSER’S AFFIRMATION OF UNDERSTANDING OF SECTION
139 PROCEDURES

Offeror affirms that it understands and agrees to comply with the procedures of the Government Entity
relative to permissible Contacts as required by State Finance Law §139-j (3) and §139-j (6) (b).

By: . Date:

Name:

Title:

Contractor Name:

Contractor Address:

. FomAdl



FORM A-2
Offeror Certification of Compliance
with State Finance Law §139-k (§)

Offeror Certification:

1 certify that all information provided to the Authority with respect to State Finance Law §139-k is
complete, true and accurate.

By: Date:

Name:

Title:

Contractor Name:

Contractor Address:




| | FORM A-3 |
Offeror Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determinations

Name of Individual or Entity Seeking to Enter into the Procurement Contract:

Address:

Name of submitting this form:

Title of Person Submitting this form:

Contract Procurement Number:

Date:

1. Has any Governmental Entity made a finding of non-responsibility regarding the individual or entity
seeking to enter into the Procurement Contract in the previous four years? (Please circle):

No - Yes
If yes, please answer the next questions:

2. Was the basis for the finding of non*responsmllrty due to a violation of State Finance Law §139-j
(Please circle):

No Yes
3. Was the basis for the finding of non-responsibility due to the intentional provision of false or
mcomplete information to a Governmental Entity? (Please cwcle)

No - Yes

4, If you answered yes to any of the above questions, please provide deta:ls regarding the finding of non-
responsublllty below,

Governmental Entity:

Date of Finding of Ndn-responsibili_ty:

Basis of Finding of Non-Responsibility:

. FormA-3 -




(Add additional pages as necessary)

5. Has any Governmental Entity or other governmental agency terminated or withheld a Procurement
Contract with the above-named individual or entity due to the intentional provision of false or incomplete
information? (Please circle):

, No Yes
6. If yes, please provide details below.

Governmental Entity:

Date of Termination or Withholding of Contract:

Basis of Termination or Withholding:

(Add additional pages as necessary)

Offeror certifies that all information provided to the Govemmenta! Entity with respect to State Finance
Law §139-k is complete, true and accurate.

By: Date:
‘Signature

Name:

Title:

o FormA-3 oo




: FORMB
CONFLICT OF INTEREST AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF )

COUNTY OF ) SS.:

, being duly sworn, deposes and says: He is an officer

of , ' , which is about to render

services to the Authority as a contractor/consultant or in any other professional capacity (the
“Firm”) and agrees that the Firm has no interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or
indirect, that would conflict in any manner or decree with the performance of its services to be

rendered to the Authority.

That it is further agreed in the rendering of services to the Authority, no person having

any such interest shall knowingly be employed by the undersigned or the Firm,

Respondent’s Name:

Signature:
. Authorized Offtcial

Typed or Printed Name: _

Title:

Date:

Sworn to before me this

day of _ » 2010

NOTARY PUBLIC

FormB




- | FORMC
Non-Collusive Proposer Certification

BY SUBMISSION OF THIS RFP, PROPOSER AND EACH PERSON SIGNING ON BEHALF OF
PROPOSER CERTIFIES, AND IN THE CASE OF JOINT RFP, EACH PARTY THERETO
CERTIFIES AS TO ITS OWN ORGANIZATION, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, THAT TO
THE BEST OF HIS/HER KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF:

(1)  The prices in this RFP have been arrived at independently without collusion, consultation,
communication, or agreement, for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to such
prices with any other proposer or with any competitor;

2) Unless otherwise required by law, the prices which have been quoted in this RFP have not
been knowingly disclosed by the proposer and will not knowingly be disclosed by the proposer prior to
opening, directly or indirectly, to any other proposer or to any competitor; and

(3)  No attempt has been made or will be made by the proposer to induce any other person,
partnershlp or corporation to submlt or not to submit a RFP for the purpose of restnctmg competition.

- A RFP SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD NOR SHALL ANY AWARD BE MADE
WHERE [1}, [2], |3] ABOVE HAVE NOT BEEN COMPLIED WITH; PROVIDED HOWEVER,
THAT IF IN ANY CASE THE PROPOSER(S) CANNOT MAKE THE FOREGOING
CERTIFICATION, THE PROPOSER SHALL SO STATE AND SHALL FURNISH BELOW A
SIGNED STATEMENT WHICH SETS FORTH IN DETAIL THE REASONS THEREFORE:

[AFFI»X. ADDENDUM TO THIS PAGE IF SPACE IS REQUIRED FOR STATEMENT.]

Subscribed to under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of New York, this____ day of
, 2010 as the act and deed of said corporation of partnership.

IF PROPOSER(S) (ARE) A PARTNERSHIP COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING:
NAMES OF PARTNERS OR PRINCIPALS/ LEGAL RESIDENCE

Name : ‘ Legal Residgnf;e '
Name _ Legal Residence
Narﬁe N » . o Legal Residence
Name - ' ' Legal Residence

Form C




IF PROPOSER(S) (ARE) A CORPORATION, COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING:
NAMES/ LEGAL RESIDENCE

President Legal Residence

Secretary Legal Residence

Treasurer Legal Residence
Date: Chief Executive Officer:

Name of Proposer:

[Signature |

[fyped or Printed Name]

Date: - Chief Fi‘nan(.:ial Officer:

Name of Proposer:

[Signature]

[Typed or Printed Name]

Sworn to before me this

day of ,2010.

NOTARY PUBLIC

Form C




FORM D
BUSINESS INFORMATION

This form must be submitted along with all other forms included in this RFP package. All questions must
be answered and the data given must be clear and comprehensive. This statement must be notarized.

1. Name of entity:
2, Permanent main office address:
3. Telephone number: Fax number:
4, Contact person regarding RFP:
5. Names of all officers and/or principals in the firm and their titles:
‘Name of Officer and/or Principals Titles
6. If respondént“is a closely held corporétioo; ﬁst stockholder’o iriformotion below:
Name | Address . Office Held
7. Date organized (month, day, year): -
8. Ifa corporation, where incorporated (city, state):
9. Numbef of years entity in _business: ‘. Federal Tax LD. No.:

Form D-1




10.

11

12.

13.

14.

135.

16.

17.

18.

Financial References: Give bank reference and names in which accounts are held.

Bank Reference Bank Name ‘ Bank Address

Has the entity or any of its Principals, Owners, Officers, Partners, Directors or Stockholders of
the entity been the subject of a criminal investigation? Yes[ ] No[ ]

If the answer to the above question is “Yes”, state the court in which the investigation is
taking/took place, the approximate date the investigation commenced and, if applicable,
concluded as well as the subject matter of the investigation and the identity of the person(s) or
entity(ies) involved:

Has any indictment arisen out of the investigation? Yes| ] “Nol ]

If the answer to the above question is “Yes", state the person(s) or entity(ies) indicated and the -
status of any such indictment:

Has an entlty, (i.e.) corporation, partnershlp, etc., in whxch a Prmcnpal Owner, Ofﬁcer
Partner, Director, or Stockholder has an ownershlp interest ever been the subject of a criminal
mvest1gat10n‘7 Yes[ ] Nof[ ] ‘

If the answer to the above question is “Yes”, state the court in which the investigation is
taking/took place, the approximate date the investigation commenced and, if applicable,
concluded as well as the subject matter of the 1nvest1gat10n and the identity of the person(s) or
entity(ies) involved:

Has any indictment arisen out of the investigation? ~ Yes[ I No{ ]

If the answer to the above question is “Yes , state the person(s) or entlty(les) indicated and the
status of any such indictment:

FormD-3 ST




19, List names of any affiliated corporation of respondent, business affiliation with respondent and
specify relationship:

Name of affiliated corporation Business Affiliation Specify Relationship

20.  Identify all subcontractors proposed to be used to fulfill any part of the obligations anticipated
by this proposal:

Name of subcontractor Address Type of work to be
performed

21. Current licenses, permits and certifications are listed on Form I and gopies of same are
attached to Form 1. . ‘

22. The undersigned hereby aﬁthorizes and requests any person, firm or corporation to furnish any
information requested by the Authority and/or his designee on behalf of the Authority in
verification of the recitals comprising this Business Information Form.

(Name of Entity)

(Principal)

(Title)
State of New York )
- County of ' ) ss.
being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she is
of _ and that the answers to

the foregoing questlons and all statements therein contained are true and correct.

Subscribed _and sworn to before me this
day of - , 2010

'Notary Public

‘ FormD-3




. STATE OF NEW YORK
VENDOR RESPONSIBILITY QUESTIONNAIRE

1. Vendor is:
] PRIME CONTRACTOR {1 SUB-CONTRACTOR _
2. Vendor's Legal Business Name 3. Identification Numbers
a) FEIN #
b) DUNS #
4. Doing Business As (D/B/A)(if applicable) & County Filed . 5. Website Address (if applicable)
6. Address of Primary Place of Business/Executive Office 7. Phone No. 8. Fax No.
( ) - ( ) -
9. Address of Primary Place of Business/Executive Office 10. Phone No. 11. Fax No.
in New York State (If different from above)
( ) - ( ) -

12. Primary Place of Business in New York Stateis: [ | Qwned 7 Rented 13. Authorized Contact for this Questionnaire

If rented, please provide landlord's name, address, and phone number below: Name _
' ' ' Title'

Phone No.

Fax No.

E-mall Address

14. Vendor's Business Entity is (check appropriate box and provide réquested information):

a) [] Business Cbrpdration Date of Incorporation State of Incorporation*
by [] Sole Proprietor Date Established
¢) [] Generat Partrership Date Established

: . State of Incorporation*
d) [ Not-for-profit Corporation Date of Incorporation Charities Registration No.
e) [] umited Liability Company (LLC) Date Established
£ [ Umited Liability Partnership Date Established

R . Jurisdiction Filed
g) [ Other - Specify: Date Established (i applicable)

* If not |ncorporated in New York State, please provide 2 copy of authorizatlon to do business in New York or a current certificate of
good standing from your state of mcorporatlon .

| 15. Primary Busmess Activity (Please identify the prlmary business categornes, products or services provided by your business.

16. Name of Workers' Compensation Insurance Carrier:

17, List below ALL of the Vendor's Principal Owners and the three offi icers who direct the daily operations of the Vendor (attach additional
sheets if necessary):

a) Name . . Title b) Name Title

c) Name : Title d) Name - Title

. Pagelofs . co ... - NYSTAVersion TA-W3205-8{05/2007) - -



STATE OF NEW YORK
VENDOR RESPONSIBILITY QUESTIONNAIRE

FOR QUESTIONS 18 - 29, A DETAILED EXPLANATION IS REQUIRED FOR EACH QUESTION ANSWERED WITH A "YES",

AND MUST BE PROVIDED AS AN ATTACHMENT TO THE COMPLETED QUESTIONNAIRE. YOU MUST PROVIDE

ADEQUATE DETAILS OR DOCUMENTS TO AID THE NEW YORK STATE THRUWAY AUTHORITY/CANAL CORPORATION
(NYSTA/CC) IN MAKING A DETERMINATION OF VENDOR RESPONSIBILITY. PLEASE NUMBER EACH RESPONSE TO

MATCH THE QUESTION NUMBER.

18. Is the vendor certified in New York State as a (please check): [:_] Yes

[T Minority Business Enterprise (MBE)
E] Women's Business Enterprise (WBE)
D Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
Please provide a copy of any of the above certifications that apply.

[ ne

19. Does the vendor use, or has it used in the past ten (10) years, any other business v
name, FEIN, DUNS or D/B/A other than those listed in items 2-4 above? [ ves

List all other business name(s), FEIN(s), DUNS(s} or any D/B/A names and the dates that these names or
numbers were/are in use. Explain the relationship to the vendor.

M No

20. Are there any individuals now serving in a ma'nagerial or consulting capacity to the vendor, including
principal owners and officers, who now serve or in the past three (3) years have served as:

a) a full or part-time employee at the NYSTA/CC or a New York State agency, or asa consultant, in an D Yes
individuai capacity, to the NYSTA/CC or a New York State agency? o )

List each individual's name, business t/tle or consuiting capacity, New York State agency name (ir
applicable) and empioyment position with applicable serwce dates.

[ ves

b) If yes to item #20a, did this individual perform services related to the solicitation, negotiation,
operation and/or administration of public contracts for the NYSTA/CC or a New York State agency?

List each individual's name, business title or consufting ¢apacity, New York State agency name (lf
applicable) and the consulting/advisory pOSItian with appllcable service dates Lrst each contract name
and ass:gned contract number.

Jne

DNO

21. Within the past five (5) years, has the vendor, any mdivlduals serving In @ managerlal or consulting capacity,
principal owners, officers, major stockholder(s) (10% or more of the voting shares for publicly traded
companies, 25% or miore of the shares for all other companies), affiliate! or any person involved in the
bidding, contracting, or leasing process;

a) i. been sﬁqunded, debarred or terminated by a local, state or federal authority in connection E] Yes
) with a contract or contracting process;

ii. been disqualified for cause as a bidder on any permit ticense, concess:on franchise or lease;
fii. agreed to a voluntary exclusion from bnddmg/contractlng,

iv. had a bid regected on a NYSTA/CC or a New York State agency contract for failure to compiy with the MacBride Falr
Empioymen Prmmp es;

v. had a low bid rejected on a local, state or federat contract for failure to meet statutory affirmative action or
M/WBE requirements on & prevrous!y held contract;

vi, had status as a Women's Business Enterprise, Minority Business Enterprise or Dlsadvantaged Business
Enterprise denied, de-certified, revoked or forfeited;

vil. been subject to an administrative proceeding or civil action seeking specific performance or restitution in
connection with any local, state or federal government contract;

viii. been denied an award of a local, state or federal govemment contract, had a contract suspended or had a
contract terminated for non- responsmllity, or

ix. had a local, state or federal government contract suspended or terminated for cause prior to the completion of
the term of the contract?

b) been investigated, indicted, convicted, received a judgment against them or a grant of immunity for E] Yes
any business-related conduct constltutmg a crime under local, state or federal faw mcludmg, but not
limited to, fraud, extortion, bribery, racketeering, pnce'ﬁxlng, bud cotlusion or any cnme related to
truthfulness and/or businéss conduct?

O ~o

DNo
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c) been issued a citation, notice, violation order, or are pending an administrative hearing, E] Yes D No
proceeding or determination for violations of:

i. federal, state or local health taws, rules or requlations, including but not limited to Occupational
Safety & Health Administration {OSHA) or New York State labor faw;

if. state or federal environmental laws;

jii. unemployment insurance or workers' compensation coverage or claim reguirements;
iv. Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA);

v. federal, state or local hurman rights laws;

vi. civil rights laws;

vil. federal or state security laws;

viit. federal Immigration and Naturalization Services (INS) and Alienage laws;

ix. state for federal anti-trust laws; or

x. charity or consumer laws

d) been investigated by any federal, state or local government agency for a civil violation for any [ Yes [ no
business related conduct ?

For yes answers to any of the above, detail the situation(s), the date(s), name(s), title(s) and address(es) of any individuals
involved and, If applicable, and any corrective action(s) taken by the vendor.

22,

In the past five (5) years, has the vendor or its affi listes ! had any claims, judgments (satisfled or D Yes D No
unsatisfied), injunctions, liens, fines or penalties secured by any governmental agency including, but not :
limited to, judgemnents based on taxes owed or fines or penalties assessed by any federal, state or.local

. government agency?

Indicate if this is applicable to the submilling vendor or affiliate. State whether the situation(s) was a claim,
Judgment, injunction, lien or other with an explanation. Provide the name(s) and address(es) of the agency,
the amount of the original obhgatlon and outstandlng balance. If any of these items are open or unsatisfied,
indicate the status of each item as "open" or "unsatisfied', i

23.

Has the vendor (for profit and not-for-profit corporations) or its affiliates? , in the past three (3) years, had [ ves  no
any governmental audits that revealed material weaknesses in its system of internal controls, compliance :
with contractual agreements and/or laws and regulations or any material disallowances?

Indicate if this is applicable to the submilting vendor or affiliate. ' Detail the type of material weakness found
or the situation(s) that gave rise to the disallowance, any corrective action taken by the vendor and the
name of the auditing agency. )

24.

25

Is the vender exempt from income taxes under the Internal Revenue Code? ’ O ves O no
Indicate the reason for the exemption and provide a copy of any supporting information, .

During the past threé {3) years, has the vendor failed to:

a) flle returns or pay any applicable federal, state or city taxes? ‘ 3 ves O no
Identify the taxing jurisdiction, type of tax, liability year(s), and tax lability amount the vendor falled
to file/pay and the current status of the I/ablllty

b) file returns or pay.New York State unemployment insurance? : D Yes D No
Indicate the years the vendor failed to file/pay the insurance and the current status of the liability.

26

Have any bankruptcy proceedings been initiated by or against the vendor or Its affiliates? within the [ ves [ no
past seven (7) years {(whether or not closed) or Is any bankruptcy proceeding pending by or against
the vendor or'its affillates regardless of the date of filing?

Indicate if this is applicable to the submitting vendor or affillate. If it is an affiliate, include the
affiliate’s name and FEIN. Provide the court name, address and docket number., Indicate if the

proceedings have been initiated, remain pend/ng or have been closed I closed provide the date '

closed,

127.

Is the vendor currently lnsolvent, or does the vendor currently have reason to believe that an lnvoluntary D Yes D No
bankruptcy proceeding may be brought agalnst it? )

Provide financial information to support the vendors current position, for example, Current Ratio, Debt:
Ratio, Age of Accounts Payable, Cash Flow and any documents that will provide the NYSTA/CC w:th an
understanding of the vendor's situation.

28.

Has the vendor been a.contractor or subcontractor on any contract with. any New York State agency D Yes [:] No
and/or with the NYSTA/CC in the past five (5) years?

List the agency name, address, and contract effective dates Also prowde state contract identification

numbetr, If known,
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29,

In the past five {5) years, has the vendor or any affiliates? : ' D Yes D No
a) defaulted or been terminated on, or had lts surety called upon to complete, any contract (public or private) -
awarded;
b} received an overall unsatisfactory performance assessment from any government agency on any contract; or
¢} had any liens or claims over $25,000 filed against the firm which remain undischarged or were unsatisfied for
more than 90 days?

Indicate if this is applicable to the submitting vendor or affillate. Detail the situation(s) that gave rise to the
negative action, any corrective action taken by the vendor and the name of the contracting agency.

Luptfiliate” meaning: (a) any entity in which the vendor owns more than 50% of the voting stock; (b) any individual, entity or group of
principal owners or officers who own mare than 50% of the voting stock of the vendor; or (c) any entity whose voting stock Is more than
50% owned by the same individual, entity or group described in clause (b). In addition, if a vendor owns less than 50% of the voting
stock of another entity, but directs or has the right to direct such entity's daily operations, that entity will be an "affiliate” for purposes of
this questionnaire.

State of':

County of:

88!

~r

CERTIFICATION:

The undersigned: recognizes that this questionnaire is submitted for the express purpose of assisting.the New York State Thruway
Authority/Canal Corporation (NYSTA/CC) in making a determination regarding an award of contract or approvat of a subcontract;
acknowledges that the NYSTA/CC may In its discretion, by means which it may choose, verify the truth and accuracy of all

. statements made herein; acknowledges that intentional submission of false or misteading information may constitute a felony
under Penal Law Section 210.40 or a misdemeanor under Penal Law Section 210.35 or Section 210,45, and may also be
punishable by a fine and/or imprisonment of up to five years under 18 USC Section 1001 and may result in contract termination;
and states that the information submitted in this questionnaire and any attached pages is true, accurate and complete.

The undersigned certifies that he/she:

has the financial rés_0urcés necessary to fulfill the reduiréments of the pr_-opo,sed contra‘.c.t;

has not a'ltered the content of the questions in the questionnaire in ahy manner; .

has read and 'unders'tands all of fhe items contained in the guestionnaife and any péges attached by the submitting vendor;
has supplied full and complete responses to each item therein to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief;

is knowledgeable about the submitting vendor's business and operaﬁons; '

understands that the NYSTA/CC will rely on the information supplied in this questionnalre when entenng into a contract with the |
vendor; and

is under a duty to notify the NYSTA/CC of any material changes to the vendor's responses herein prior to the NYSTA's/CC's
execution of the contract.

Name of Business Signature of Owner/Officer
Address .. Printed Name of Signatory
City, State, Zip ot , __Titte
Sworn to before me this' . day of , 20 ; ,-
- Notary Public
' Signature
Print Name
Date
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FORME
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

The data on page(s)

of this proposal, identified by an asterisk (*) or marked along the margin with a vertical line,
contain technical or financial information which are considered to be proprietary information or
trade secrets, the disclosure of which would cause substantial injury to the Proposer’s
competitive positions. The Proposer requests that such data be used only for the evaluation of
the proposal, but understands that such data may otherwise be disclosed to the extent that the
Authority detérmines is necessary or proper for compliance with any law, order or decree of any
court or agency of competent jurisdiction, or necessary or proper in the Authority’s view to show
| compliance with any law, order or decree of any court or agency of competent jurisdiction.
Note: ' L

Proposer is urged to only designate as confidential those materials which, in
its' opinion, clearly represent proprietary information or trade secrets. Cost
proposal information and all proposed forms shall not be considered
confidential.

Proposer

Signature of Authorized Official

Date

.Form E




